
AGENDA 
 
 
 
 
 

Planning Commission 
Wednesday, August 6, 2025  7:00 p.m. 

 

LOCATION:  Council Chamber 
1827 N. Squirrel Road  Auburn Hills, MI 

 

PHONE: 248-364-6900   www.auburnhills.org 
Meeting minutes are on file in the City Clerk’s office. 

 

 
1. MEETING CALLED TO ORDER 
 
2. ROLL CALL OF PLANNING COMMISSION 

 
  Welcome New Planning Commission Member Dominic Patrus 

 
3. PERSONS WISHING TO BE HEARD (regarding items not on the agenda) 

 
4. APPROVAL OF MINUTES – May 7, 2025 

 
5. PETITIONERS 
 

5a. Brose Parking Lot Addition 
Public Hearing / Motion - Recommendation to City Council for Site Plan and Tree Removal Permit approval to 
expand the parking at the facility 

 
6. UNFINISHED BUSINESS – None 

 
7. NEW BUSINESS 

 
7a. Presentation by Jackie Monroy and Karen Adcock - Age-Friendly Auburn Hills Y2025-2030 Action Plan 
 
7b. Motion - Adopt the Y2024-2025 Auburn Hills Planning Commission Annual Report 

 
8. COMMUNICATIONS 

 
8a. Planning Michigan Conference 2025 in Kalamazoo / October 22-24, 2025 

 
9. NEXT SCHEDULED MEETING – Wednesday, September 10, 2025 at 7:00 p.m. – Council Chamber 
 
10. ADJOURNMENT   
 NOTE: Anyone planning to attend the meeting who needs special assistance under the Americans with Disabilities Act (ADA) is 
asked to contact the City Clerk's Office at 248-370-9402 or the City Manager's Office at 248-370-9440 48 hours before the meeting.  
Staff will be pleased to make the necessary arrangements.  

 
 
 IMPORTANT NOTICE TO PETITIONERS 

Items will be presented to the City Council on Monday, August 18, 2025. It will be necessary for you 
to have a representative present to answer any questions from the City Council.  CITY COUNCIL 
WILL NOT ACT ON YOUR ITEM IF YOU OR YOUR REPRESENTATIVE ARE NOT PRESENT. 

http://www.auburnhills.org/


CITY OF AUBURN HILLS  
PLANNING COMMISSION  

MINUTES 
NOT YET APPROVED 

 
CALL TO ORDER:  Chairperson Ouellette called the meeting to order at 7:00 p.m. 
 
ROLL CALL: Present: Carolyn Shearer, Darlene MacMillan, Jack Ferguson, Cynthia Pavlich, Raymond 

Saelens, Sam Beidoun, Dominick Tringali, Greg Ouellette 
 Absent:  None. 

Also Present:  Director of Community Development Steve Cohen, and Assistant to the Director of 
Community Development Devin Lang 
Guests: 7 

 
LOCATION:  Council Chambers, 1827 N. Squirrel Road, Auburn Hills, MI  48326 
 
3.   PERSONS WISHING TO BE HEARD 
 
4.   APPROVAL OF MINUTES – March 5, 2025 
 
Moved by Beidoun to approve the minutes of March 5, 2025. 
Second by Ferguson. 
VOTE: Yes: Shearer, MacMillan, Ferguson, Pavlich, Saelens, Beidoun, Tringali, Ouellette 
 No: None         Motion Carried (8-0) 
 
5.   PETITIONERS 
 
5a.  Chillbox Corporate Headquarters (7:01 p.m.) 
Public Hearing/Motion – Recommendation to City Council for Special Land Use Permit and Revised Site 
Plan approval to repurpose the former North Oakland Family YMCA facility into an office building with an 
ancillary café with outside seating. 
 
This is a request from Bazco Holdings, LLC for a Special Land Use Permit and Revised Site Plan approval to 
repurpose the former North Oakland Family YMCA recreational facility at 3378 E. Walton Boulevard into a 
corporate office building for its subsidiary Chillbox Convenience Stores, along with an ancillary café and associated 
outdoor seating.  
 
The proposal includes a small ancillary retail store/café with outside seating on the east side of the building on the 
first floor. The space will replace the area formerly programmed by the YMCA for childcare and multi-purpose use. 
The café will serve coffee and dessert items to Chillbox staff and visitors and be open to the public. This new semi-
covered patio seating area will accommodate up to 24 patrons. A four-foot-tall decorative fence will be added 
around the outside seating area to enclose the space and ensure the patrons’ protection. 
 
The gymnasium and locker rooms on the first floor will be kept “as is” for the company’s employees, visitors, and 
the Chillbox for Kids Foundation. The swimming pool will be removed and filled for safety and cost reasons and 
converted into a multi-purpose room/exposition area. The space will be used for corporate and charitable 
foundation functions and potential office expansion space for employee growth. 
 
The second floor will be converted into a corporate office and training space for Chillbox. This floor will retain the 
walking track that looks down into the first-floor gymnasium and former natatorium spaces. The smaller third floor 
will become the company’s executive office suite. 
 
Aly Bazzi, Bazco Holdings, LLC, 30825 26 Mile Road, New Haven, MI  48048 was available to answer any 
questions of the Commission.  
 
The Commission asked about the following: 
 

1. The use of volunteers in the company’s charitable endeavors; 

May 7, 2025 

 

  



Auburn Hills Planning Commission/Recreation Commission – May 7, 2025 
Page 2 of 2 
 

2. Bazco Holdings business activities; 
3. The number of employees anticipated; 
4. The speed of vehicles travelling past the proposed café area; 
5. Hours anticipated for the café. 

 
Mr. Bazzi stated that he does envision bringing volunteers and the community into the facility, but the facility will not 
be leased or offered for rent to outside entities. He further explained that their family has operated retail/gas station 
businesses since 1989. They operate multiple locations in southeast Michigan and plan to continue expanding. 
They also have a wholesale distribution segment. Their future growth is anticipated to be through Chillbox. They 
also assist small businesses, provide grants, and provide education. The transformation of the YMCA facility into 
the Chillbox Headquarters is expected to house 100 employees. 
 
In addressing the concern regarding the speed of traffic past the café area, Mr. Cohen stated they have discussed 
traffic calming solutions along the north-south drive, which include additional stop signs in the area in front of the 
café’s entrance. 
 
Mr. Bazzi stated that the café's hours have not yet been determined, but it is expected to be generally open during 
business hours, with the exception of operating after 5 p.m. and seven days a week, depending on demand. 
 
Mr. Ouellette opened the public hearing at 7:09 p.m. 

There being no public comments, Mr. Ouellette closed the public hearing at 7:10 p.m. 

Moved by Beidoun to recommend to City Council approval of the Special Land Use Permit and Revised Site 
Plan for Chillbox Corporate Headquarters subject to the conditions of the City’s Administrative Review 
Team.  
Second by Ferguson. 
VOTE: Yes: Saelens, MacMillan, Beidoun, Pavlich, Shearer, Ferguson, Tringali, Ouellette 
No: None          Motion Carried (8-0) 
 
6.     UNFINISHED BUSINESS – None. 
 
7.     NEW BUSINESS 
 
7a. Motion – Cancel the June 4, 2025 Auburn Hills Planning Commission Meeting 
 
Moved by Beidoun to cancel the June 4, 2025 Auburn Hills Planning Commission Meeting. 
Second by Pavlich. 
VOTE: Yes: Shearer, MacMillan, Ferguson, Pavlich, Saelens, Beidoun, Tringali, Ouellette 
 No: None         Motion Carried (8-0) 
 
8.     COMMUNICATIONS 
 
9.     NEXT SCHEDULED MEETING 
The next scheduled meeting is on Wednesday, July 9, 2025 at 7:00 p.m. in the Auburn Hills Council Chambers.  
 
10.   ADJOURNMENT 
There being no further business, Chairperson Ouellette adjourned the meeting at 7:13 p.m.  
 
Submitted by: 
Susan McCullough, MiPMC III, CMC 
Recording Secretary 



 

   

 

MEETING DATE:  AUGUST 6, 2025 AGENDA ITEM NO 5a. 

 COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT 
 

To:  Chairperson Greg Ouellette and the Planning Commission 
From: Steven J. Cohen, AICP, Director of Community Development 
Submitted: July 29, 2025 
Subject: Brose Parking Lot Addition    
 Public Hearing / Motion – Recommendation to City Council for Site Plan and Tree 

Removal Permit Approval  
 
INTRODUCTION AND HISTORY 
Brose North America requests approval to construct an additional 75 parking spaces at its North American 
Headquarters facility located at 3933 Automation Avenue.   
 
Brose North America is the North American 
subsidiary of Brose Group, a German family-
owned automotive supplier.  They are a 
mechatronics specialist that develops and 
produces systems for vehicle doors, seats, and 
liftgates, as well as electric motors, drives, and 
electronics for automotive applications.  
Examples of products the company designs 
and tests at this facility include window 
regulators, door modules, seat structures, 
and electric power steering motors. 
 
The new parking area will expand the facility's 
overall parking capacity to 420 spaces.  The 
parking expansion will complement and 
support the company’s current interior 
renovations of the facility.  In addition to 
landscaping, they will install lighting and 
monitored security cameras in the new 
parking area for the safety of its employees.  
The facility’s main parking lot will be restriped 
to add one additional barrier-free parking 
space, as required by the Zoning Ordinance. 
 
KEY ISSUE 
1. Replacement Trees.  The project requires 54 replacement trees.  The landscape plan indicates that 24 

replacement trees will be planted on the site.   The main reason all the replacement trees cannot be planted on 
site is attributed to the limited space, as the site is heavily wooded.  The proposed landscape plan is designed 
to provide a healthy growing environment and enhance the survival rate of the trees being planted on the site.   
The financial equivalent of the remaining 30 trees will be paid into the City’s Tree Fund (30 trees x $380 per tree 
= $11,400) before the start of tree removal from the site.  The City currently has $847,433 in the Tree Fund.   

CITY OF AUBURN HILLS 

PLANNING COMMISSION AGENDA 

Overall view of the site 



Page 2 
 
 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
STAFF RECOMMENDATION 
Please be advised that the City’s Administrative Site Plan Review Team has reviewed this project and 
recommends approval. 
 
We recommend Conditional Approval of the Site Plan and Tree Removal Permit and offer the following discretionary 
findings of fact: 
1. The Site Plan contains sufficient basic information required by the Zoning Ordinance for a recommendation. 
2. The requirements of Section 1815, Items 7A-7E of the Zoning Ordinance can be met as follows: 

a) All requirements and standards of the Zoning Ordinance and other City Ordinances can be met. 
b) Safe, convenient vehicular and pedestrian ingress/egress has been depicted; primary access will be to 

Automation Avenue. 
c) Traffic circulation features within the site and the location of parking areas avoid common traffic 

problems and can promote safety. 
d) A satisfactory and harmonious relationship will exist between the proposed development and the 

surrounding area. 
e) The proposed use will not have an unreasonable, detrimental or injurious effect upon the natural 

characteristics of the subject parcel, or the adjacent area. 
3. 75 parking spaces are depicted within the expanded parking area. 
4. The parking layout for the expanded area meets minimum requirements, and barrier-free parking spaces are 

provided adjacent to the building (nine are required, and nine are provided).  Two spaces are van accessible.  
5. Parking setback requirements will be met. The requirements are based on the total of 420 parking spaces. 
6. Greenbelts will be provided. 
7. Landscape requirements will be met, and calculations have been submitted.     
 

Landscape plan for the proposed parking lot addition 



Page 3 
 
 
STAFF RECOMMENDATION 
8. A note indicates that exterior lighting shall meet the requirements of the Zoning Ordinance.  Pole and wall-

mounted lighting shall be shielded and directed downward.  Lamp bulbs and lenses shall not extend below 
the light fixture shields.  Light poles will be designed to be consistent in height and style with the existing light 
poles on the site.  

9. A note indicates that parking spaces shall be double-striped. 
10. A note indicates that outside storage, including pallet storage, overnight vehicles, and trailer storage, will not 

be permitted. 
11. A Tree Removal Permit is required - 54 replacement trees are required, and 24 replacement trees are 

proposed. The financial equivalent of the remaining 30 trees will be paid into the City’s Tree Fund (30 trees x 
$380 per tree = $11,400) before the start of tree removal from the site.  

12. Four electric vehicle charging station spaces exist within the facility’s main parking lot.  The City’s electric 
vehicle station signage and pavement markings will be added to those spaces as part of this project. 

 
Conditions: 
1. Brose North America shall comply with the requirements of Section 2007. Performance Guarantees of the 

Zoning Ordinance. 
2. Site Plan approval shall be based on the representations made by Brose North America, as documented in 

this report, submittal materials, and the public meeting minutes. 
 
RECOMMENDED ACTION 
Move to recommend to City Council approval of the Site Plan and Tree Removal Permit for Brose North America 
subject to the conditions of the City’s Administrative Review Team. 









   

Planning Commission  
Public Notice 

 
 
Meeting Date, Time, and Location: 
 

Wednesday, August 6, 2025 at 7:00 p.m. 
City of Auburn Hills - City Council Chambers 
1827 N. Squirrel Road, Auburn Hills, MI 48326 
 

Project Name: Brose Parking Lot Addition 
 

General Property Location: 3933 Automation Avenue  
(Sidwell No. 14-03-401-014) 
 

Applicant: Kenneth Kappler – 248-339-4114 
 

Nature of the Request: Recommendation to City Council for Site Plan and Tree Removal 
Permit approval to construct a parking lot addition. 
 

City Staff Contact: Steven J. Cohen, AICP 
Director of Community Development - 248-364-6941 
 

 

Notice will be sent via U.S. Mail to properties within 1,000 feet of the site.  The proposed application can be 
inspected before the meeting at the Community Development Department, located on the municipal campus 
at 1827 N. Squirrel Road, Auburn Hills, MI 48326, during regular City business hours. 
 
Persons wishing to express their views may do so in person at the meeting or in writing addressed to the 
Planning Commission c/o Steven J. Cohen, AICP, Director of Community Development, at the above 
address. 
 
Anyone planning to attend the meeting who needs special assistance under the Americans with Disabilities 
Act (ADA) is asked to contact the City Clerk's Office at 248-370-9402 or the City Manager's Office at 248-
370-9440 48 hours before the meeting. Staff will be pleased to make the necessary arrangements. 
 

 

 
 
 
 

 

LOCATION MAP 



 
 
 

 

July 28, 2025 
 
 
Mr. Steven Cohen, AICP 
Director of Community Development 
CITY OF AUBURN HILLS 
1827 North Squirrel Road 
Auburn Hills, Michigan 48326 
 
 
RE: Brose Parking Lot Expansion  
 Site Plan 1st Review  
 
 
Dear Mr. Cohen: 
 
We have completed the site plan review for the above referenced project with respect to grading, paving, storm 
drainage/detention, and availability of municipal utilities to serve the site. The site plan, received by this office on 
July 28, 2025, was prepared by Mason Browns Associates, LLC. The review comments are noted below. 
 
PERMITS/EASEMENTS: 
Various permits will be required for this site, including but not limited to the following: 

➢ A soil erosion permit, or waiver, must be obtained from The Oakland County Water Resources 
Commission (O.C.W.R.C.) 

➢ If one is not previously on file, a stormwater management maintenance agreement encompassing 
the on-site storm sewer and detention pond will be required prior to project closeout.  

 
GENERAL: 
The site is located on the west side of Automation Avenue just south of Harmon Road at 3933 Automation 
Avenue in Section 3 of the City of Auburn Hills. The applicant is proposing to expand the parking at the existing 
Brose facility to accommodate additional and returning employees by adding a parking lot on the southwest side of 
the site. The site, along with adjacent properties to the east and west, are zoned Technology and Research (T&R). 
A complete legal description of the parcel is shown on the plans. The City of Auburn Hills Standard Notes and 
Fire Department Notes are included in the plan. A landscape plan and soil erosion and sedimentation control plan 
were included in the plan set and appear to be acceptable.  
 
MUNICIPAL UTILITIES: 
There is an existing 12-inch water main that extends south from Harmon Road along the west side of Automation 
Avenue. From the 12-inch water main along Automation Avenue, a 12-inch water main extends west, through the 
existing parking lot that was constructed in 2012, to the adjacent property at 3800 Giddings Road. The applicant is 
proposing to extend 6-inch water main west, from the 12-inch water main along Automation Avenue, to provide 
one (1) additional fire hydrant which will provide adequate coverage for the proposed parking lot. A 12-foot-wide 
public water main easement has been centered on the new hydrant lead and a profile has been provided.  
 
There is an existing 10-inch sanitary sewer that extends along the southern half of Automation Avenue and an 
existing 8-inch sanitary sewer that services the Brose facility. At this time, the applicant is not proposing any 
changes to the existing sanitary sewer as part of this project.  



City of Auburn Hills 
Brose Parking Lot Expansion 
July 28, 2025  
Page 2 of 3 

 

STORM SEWER AND DETENTION: 
The site is located in the Galloway Drainage District, which has a maximum allowable discharge of 0.097 cfs/acre. 
Storm water runoff for the Brose facility is currently collected via a series of catch basins and routed to an existing 
detention area identified as Wetland ‘A’ in the southwest corner of the site that was previously sized for the 
Pinnacle Site Plan, Lot A. As part of the parking lot addition, the applicant is proposing a sediment forebay/level 
spreader on the south side of the parking lot that will collect and treat stormwater from the parking lot and then 
sheet flow through vegetation to the existing detention area. A storm water management analysis was included in 
the plans stating that the existing detention area was designed to handle improved runoff from the site. The 
existing detention on-site was designed to result in a post development ‘C’ value of 0.75, while the ‘C’ value of the 
proposed site is 0.42. Therefore, the existing detention area has enough capacity for the proposed development. 
Please note, the existing detention area and any outlet control structure will need to be cleaned out and restored to 
its original approved design condition prior to project closeout.  
 
PAVING/TRAFFIC: 
There are currently two (2) existing drive approaches located off Automation Avenue. The applicant is not 
proposing any changes to the existing drive approaches, and access to the new parking lot expansion will be 
through the existing southerly parking lot that was constructed in 2012. Parking is currently located around the 
building along with an additional parking lot available to the south of the facility. The plans indicate concrete curb 
and gutter along the new parking lot expansion with 4-inch asphalt pavement. A pavement cross-section has been 
provided on the plans and appears to meet City standards.  
 
The applicant is proposing 75 parking spaces as part of this project and is planning to re-stripe existing parking 
spaces just south of the building to provide additional barrier free accessible parking spaces. With the proposed 
improvements, the site will have a total of 420 parking spaces including 9 barrier free accessible parking spaces. 
There is an existing 6-foot-wide sidewalk along the existing parking lot to the north; however, the applicant is not 
proposing any new sidewalk or connections as part of this project.  
 
GRADING: 
Existing and proposed grades are shown with contours and spot elevations. The site is sloped towards the south 
and perimeter site slopes shall match into existing contours prior to all abutting property lines. If site slopes exceed 
1:4, protective guardrail and/or fencing will be required. Pavement slopes are mostly consistent with City 
standards and are to remain between 1% and 6% for drive areas and between 1% and 4% for parking areas. No 
retaining walls are proposed as part of this project.  
 
RECOMMENDATIONS: 
The site plan is in substantial compliance with City of Auburn Hills requirements and has been stamped 
“Approved as Noted” by our office. We ask that the site plan approval acknowledge the following: 
 

1. The site improvement plan, designed in accordance with Ordinance No. 806, shall be submitted to 
the City for review and approval prior to construction. A detailed cost estimate for the improvements 
shall be submitted with the plans signed and sealed by the design engineer. 

2. The developer must post a performance guarantee, in accordance with the City’s requirements as set 
forth in the City of Auburn Hills Ordinance No. 372, Section 2007, Performance Guarantees. The 
estimate of the guarantee shall be submitted with the site improvement plan and must reflect all costs 
for site improvements, including but not limited to mass grading, roadways, lighting, utilities, 
pathways, sidewalks, screening, landscaping, driveways, retaining walls, parking lots, drainage, 
stormwater retention basins, and other similar features.  

 
If you have any questions or are in need of any further information, please feel free to contact our office. 
 



City of Auburn Hills 
Brose Parking Lot Expansion 
July 28, 2025  
Page 3 of 3 

 

Sincerely, 
OHM Advisors 
 
 
_____________________________________ 
Hannah Driesenga, P.E. 
 
Transmitted via e-mail to Steven Cohen: July 28, 2025 

cc: File 
 
P:\0101_0125\SITE_AUBURNHILLSCITY\2025\0120251060_BROSE PARKING LOT EXTENSION\BROSE PARKING LOT 
EXPANSION_SITE REV#1_APP.DOCX 

 
 
  



  
 
 

                                                   
 

MEMORANDUM 
 
TO:   Steve Cohen, Director of Community development   
FROM:  Brandon Hollenbeck, Lieutenant  
DATE:  July 14, 2025 
SUBJECT:   Brose Parking Lot Site Plan  
____________________________________________________________________________ 
 
I have reviewed the site plan for the Brose Parking Lot expansion located at 3933 Automation Avenue.  
We have no objections to the project as presented in the site plan.   

POLICE DEPARTMENT 
1899 North Squirrel Road 
Auburn Hills, MI  48326  
 

    
 



1899 N SQUIRREL ROAD – AUBURN HILLS, MICHIGAN 48326 – (248) 370-9461 
 

 

   
 
 

 

Official Memorandum 
 
 
To: Steve Cohen, Director of Community Development 
From: Fred Solomon, Fire Inspector 
Date: July 9, 2025 
Re: Site Plan Review  
 
 
PROJECT:  Brose, 3933 Automation; Parking lot addition 
 

XXX Approved  
 Approved Subject to the following revisions: 

 Denied  
 
 
No comments 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
Fred Solomon 
Fire Inspector 
Auburn Hills Fire Department 
 
  
 
 
 
 

AUBURN HILLS 
FIRE DEPARTMENT 

 
 

 





K
IR

C
O

 M
A

N
IX

C
O

V
E

R
 S

H
E

E
T

C
IV

IL
 E

N
G

IN
E

E
R

S
 &

 S
U

R
V

E
Y

O
R

S

2
7
0
8
  

B
R

ID
L
E

 R
O

A
D

B
L

O
O

M
F

IE
L

D
 H

IL
L

S
, 

M
IC

H
IG

A
N

  
4

8
3

0
4

(2
4
8
) 

4
2
5
-9

7
8
9

m
a
s
o
n
_
b
ro

w
n
@

s
b
c
g
lo

b
a
l.
n
e
t

M
A

SO
N

 B
R

O
W

N
S 

A
SS

O
C

IA
TE

S,
 L

LC
P

R
O

P
O

S
E

D
 P

A
R

K
IN

G
 L

O
T

 E
X

P
A

N
S

IO
N

B
R

O
S

E
, 

IN
C

SIDWELL IDENTIFICATION  NUMBER: PART OF 14-03-401-014

BROSE PARKING LOT EXPANSION
PART OF THE EAST 1/2 OF SECTION 3,

T. 3 N. R. 10 E.,

CITY OF AUBURN HILLS, OAKLAND COUNTY, MICHIGAN

OWNER:
BROSE NORTH AMERICA, INC.

 3933 AUTOMATION AVE.

 AUBURN HILLS, MI 48326

ATTN: KENNETH KAPPLER

 248-339-4114

           Kenneth.Kappler@Brose.com

CONTRACTOR:

ENGINEER:

LANDSCAPE ARCHITECT:
CONROY & ASSOCIATES, INC.

P.O. BOX 542

LAKE ORION, MI 48361

ATTN: PATRICK S. CONROY, RLA

            248-808-8082

pat@conroyla.com

SHEET INDEX:
1. COVER SHEET

2. TREE SURVEY/EXISTING CONDITIONS SHEET

3. TREE SURVEY TABLE

4. DIMENSIONAL SITE PLAN

5. OVERALL SITE PLAN

6. ENGINEERING SITE PLAN

7. STORMWATER MANAGEMENT ANALYSIS

8. SOIL EROSION CONTROL PLAN

9. SITE DETAILS & WATER MAIN PROFILE

10-12    STANDARD WATER MAIN DETAILS

13-14    STANDARD PAVING DETAILS

L-1        CONCEPTUAL LANDSCAPE PLAN

WP-1    WOODLAND PRESERVATION PLAN

WP-2    WOODLAND PRESERVATION TREE LIST

KIRCO MANIX

101 W. BIG BEAVER, SUITE 200

TROY, MI 48084

ATTN:DAVID ENDRES

248-354-5100

          dendres@kircomanix.com

MASON BROWNS ASSOCIATES LLC

2708 BRIDLE ROAD

BLOOMFIELD HILLS, MI 48304

ATTN:MASON L. BROWN, II  P.E. 

248-425-9789

          mason_brown@sbcglobal.net

HARMON RD.

I-75

L
A

P
E

E
R

 R
D

.

B
A

L
D

 M
O

U
N

T
A

IN
 R

D
.G

ID
D

IN
G

S
 R

D
.

DUTTON RD.

A
U

T
O

M
A

T
IO

N
 A

V
E

.

SITE

LOCATION MAP
NO SCALE

LEGAL DESCRIPTION
A PORTION OF THE FOLLOWING LEGAL DESCRIPTION:

A PART OF THE EAST ½ OF SECTION 3, T-3-N., R-10-E., CITY OF AUBURN HILLS, OAKLAND COUNTY, MICHIGAN, MORE PARTICULARLY DESCRIBED AS:

BEGINNING AT A POINT DISTANT S. 00" 11 '55''W., 43.00 FEET AND S.89"42' 11''W., 99.63 FEET AND  N.77"57'31"W. , 311.04 FEET. AND N.65°39'01"W., 56.69 FROM THE EAST 1/4 CORNER OF SECTION 3. T.3N, R.10E. THENCE

S.23"18'07" W. 260.27 FT; THENCE ALONG THE ARC OF A CURVE TO THE RIGHT HAVING A RADIUS OF 457.00 FT.,CHORD BEARING S.34"44'34" W. 149.92 FT. A DISTANCE OF 150.60 FT.; THENCE S. 44"11'01"W. 67.35 FT.; THENCE

ALONG THE ARC OF A CURVE TO THE LEFT HAVING A RADIUS OF 686.00 FT, CHORD BEARING S.40"53'42" W. 78.70 FT. A DISTANCE OF 78.74 FT.; THENCE DUE NORTH 703.29 FT.; THENCE ALONG THE ARC OF A CURVE TO THE

RIGHT HAVING A RADIUS OF 997.98FT; CHORD BEARING S.69"17'32" E.127.61 A DISTANCE OF 127.69 FT.; THENCE S.65"39'01" E. 465.39 FT. TO THE POINT OF BEGINNING

ALSO

A PART OF THE EAST ½ OF SECTION 3, T-3-N., R-10-E., CITY OF AUBURN HILLS, OAKLAND COUNTY, MICHIGAN, MORE PARTICULARLY DESCRIBED AS:

COMMENCING AT THE EAST ¼ CORNER OF SAID SECTION 3; THENCE S. 00" 11 '55''W., 43.00 FEET TO A POINT OF THE SOUTHERLY LINE OF HARMON ROAD (86 FEET WIDE); THENCE THE FOLLOWING THREE COURSES BEING
ALONG SAID SOUTHERLY LINE: (1) S.89"42' 11''W., 99.63 FEET, AND (2)  ALONG A CURVE TO THE RIGHT 313.44 FEET, SAID CURVE HAVING A RADIUS OF 729.62 FEET, CENTRAL ANGLE OF 24"36'52" AND A LONG CHORD BEARING
OF N.7T57'31 "W. , 311.04 FEET. AND (3) N.65°39'01 "W., 56.69 FEET TO A POINT ON THE WESTERLY LINE OF THE ROADWAY PARCEL; THENCE THE FOLLOWING FOUR COURSES BEING ALONG SAID WESTERLY LINE: ( 1) S.25"
18'07"W., 260.27 FEET, AND (2) ALONG A CURVE TO THE RIGHT 150.60 FEET, SAID CURVE HAVING A RADIUS OF 457.00 FEET, CENTRAL ANGLE OF 18"52'54" AND A LONG CHORD BEARING OF S.34"44'34"W., 149.92 FEET, AND (3)
S.44"11'01"W., 67.35 FEET, AND (4)  ALONG A CURVE TO THE LEFT 78.74 FEET, SAID CURVE HAVING A RADIUSOF 686.00 FEET, CENTRAL ANGLE OF 6° 34' 36"  AND A LONG CHORD BEARING OF S.40"53' 42"W., 78. 70 FEET TO THE
POINT OF BEGINNING; THENCE THE FOLLOWING THREE COURSES  BEING ALONG THE WESTERLY LINE OF SAID ROADWAY PARCEL AND ROADWAY CUL-DE-SAC: (1) CONTINUING ALONG A CURVE TO THE LEFT 428.35 FEET,
SAID CURVE HAVING A RADIUS OF 686.00 FEET, CENTRAL ANGLE OF 35" 46' 35" AND A LONG CHORD BEARING OF S.19"43'08"W., 421.42 FEET, AND (2) ALONG A CURVE TO THE RIGHT 37.88 FEET, SAID CURVE HAVING A RADIUS
OF 51.00 FEET, CENTRAL ANGLE OF 42"33'07" AND A LONG CHORD BEARING of S.23"06'24"W.,37.01 FEET, AND (3) ALONG A CURVE TO THE LEFT 188.13 FEET, SAID CURVE HAVING A RADIUS OF 80.00 FEET, CENTRAL ANGLE OF
134"44'22" AND A LONG CHORD BEARING OF S.22°59'12"E. , 147.68 FEET: THENCE S.00°21 '24"E., 551.44 FEET TO A POINT ON THE NORTHERLY LINE OF INTERSTATE 75; THENCE ALONG SAID NORTHERLY LINE ON A CURVE TO
THE LEFT 668.77 FEET, SAID CURVE HAVING A RADIUS OF 2,049.86 FEET, CENTRAL ANGLE OF 18"41 '34" AND A LONG CHORD BEARING OF N.72°06' 13"W., 665.81 FEET; THENCE N.14"02'48"W., 361.51 FEET; THENCE N.16" 10'04"E.,
181.18 FEET; THENCE N.13"53'14''W., 400.50 FEET; THENCE DUE EAST 862.63 FEET TO THE POINT OF BEGINNING AND CONTAINING 679,012 SQUARE FEET OR 15.588  ACRES.

SUBJECT TO ANY EASEMENTS,  RESTRICTIONS  OR RIGHTS OF WAY RECORDED  OR  OTHERWISE.

SIDWELL IDENTIFICATION  NUMBER: PART OF 14-03-401-014

TOTAL SITE ACREAGE: 21.60 ACRES

PROJECT DESCRIPTION:
ADDITIONAL 75 SPACE PARKING LOT ADDITION TO

SERVE THE EXISTING BROSE BUILDING AS

EMPLOYEES ARE RETURNING OR BEING

TRANSFERRED TO THIS LOCATION.

2025-07-22 PER CITY COMMENTS

2025-07-25 PER CITY COMMENTS

2025-07-28 PER CITY COMMENTS



1696
1697

1700

1699

1698

1695

1710

1693

1694

1690

1694

1692

1689

1687

1728

1686

10
32

.0
1

1672

1671

1670

1669

1667

1668

1663

1664 1666

1682

1643

1707

1644

1029.34

1645

1023.45

1646

1023.62

1647

1022.91

1708

1719

1648

1720

1650

16491651

1652

1678

1677

1665

1681

1680

1679

1673

1674

1675

1676

1653

1654

1655

1684

1685

1656

1744

1657

1683

1660

1662

1661

1748

1747

1659

1746

17431742

1740 1741
1745

1749

1738
1739

1734 1733

1735

1736

1732
1727

1726

1737

1725

1723
1724

1729
1714

1715

1716

1717

1711

1658

1704

17051706

1703

1702
1701

1038.83

10
38

.8
9

10
38

.3
5

10
38

.4
4

10
38

.9
1

10
38

.7
8

10
38

.2
4

10
38

.3
1

10
38

.8
5

10
38

.9
3

10
38

.4
5

10
38

.4
4

10
38

.9
9

10
39

.3
3

10
38

.9
4

10
39

.5
2

10
38

.8
0

10
38

.1
4

10
37

.8
9

10
38

.4
4

10
38

.3
2

10
37

.7
9

10
37

.5
7

10
38

.2
7

10
37

.9
5

10
37

.4
4

CB

1037.04

10
37

.5
3

10
37

.5
8

10
37

.8
9

10
38

.7
5

10
38

.3
410

38
.2

8

10
38

.8
1

10
38

.7
5

10
38

.3
21038.69

10
38

.9
9

10
39

.2
2

10
39

.7
2

10
38

.1
1

10
39

.2
1

10
37

.7
7

10
37

.5
3

10
37

.0
8

10
37

.4
8

10
37

.3
2

10
36

.5
6

10
36

.1
8

10
36

.4
4

10
35

.8
2

10
32

.7
1

10
32

.9
8

10
32

.7
3

10
33

.1
6

10
33

.6
9

10
33

.8
6

10
33

.4
8

10
34

.1
410

34
.2

8

10
31

.4
9

10
31

.3
2

10
30

.7
4

10
31

.2
2

10
31

.8
2

10
31

.1
0

10
30

.4
9

10
30

.0
0

10
30

.3
4

10
30

.3
0

10
27

.4
5

10
28

.6
7

10
28

.3
3

10
28

.8
0

10
27

.4
1

10
27

.1
6

10
27

.5
1

10
28

.0
3

10
28

.3
1

10
27

.9
2

10
29

.6
9

CB

1029.15

10
28

.5
0

10
28

.7
9

10
26

.5
3

10
26

.2
9

10
25

.7
4

10
26

.0
8

10
25

.5
6

10
25

.1
1

10
24

.7
4

10
24

.8
8

10
25

.7
0

10
22

.9
7

10
22

.7
8

10
23

.0
5

10
23

.5
4

10
23

.1
7

10
23

.2
7

10
22

.7
9

10
23

.2
2

10
23

.6
6

10
23

.1
6

10
23

.3
5

10
25

.6
6

10
22

.5
1

10
22

.3
9

10
21

.7
9

10
22

.0
6

10
21

.6
7

10
20

.5
4

0
53

10
20

.6
8

10
20

.3
1

10
21

.2
8

10
21

.5
5

10
22

.2
4

10
21

.9
9

10
37

.9
4

10
38

.1
0

10
38

.3
7

10
37

.4
1

10
35

.6
4

10
34

.0
3

10
30

.7
4

10
29

.2
6

10
30

.7
5

10
30

.3
2

10
30

.2
8

10
29

.3
7

10
28

.0
1

10
27

.1
8

10
25

.7
8

10
23

.9
1

10
21

.8
8

10
20

.2
8

10
32

.1
7

1020

1
0
3
0

1040

1
0
4
0

1018

1022
1024

1
0
2
6

1
0
2
8

1
0
3
2

1034

1034

1034

1036

1038

1
0
3
8

1
0
3
8

1042

1042

1044

1044

1020

1030

1030

1030

1016

1018

1022

1024

1024

1024

1026

1026

1026

1028

1028

1028

1032

10321032

1034

1034

1
0
3
6

1036

1038

10
38

1038

1
0
3
8

1020

1
0
2
0

1018

1
0
1
8

1022

1
0
2
2

1024

1
0
2
4

1
0
2
6

1
0
2
0

1
0
1
4

1
0
1
6

1
0
1
8

1
0
2
2

01001
0

1020

10
20

10
12

1014

10
14

1016

10
16

1018

10
18

1022

10
22

10
24

1024

1026

1026

1028

1028

1
0
2
0

1020

10
14

1014

10
16

1016

10
18

1018

1
0
2
2

1022

1024

1024

10
26

1
0
2
6

1026

1028

1
0
2
8

1030

1024

1026

1028

1030

1040

1026

1028

1032

1034

1036

1038

1
2
" 

S
T

E
X

IS
T

. 
R

.O
.W

. 
L
IN

E

W
M

12" ST

1
2
" 

S
A

N

1
2
" S

T

1
2
" 

S
T

1022

1022

1
0
2
8

1030

1030

1
0
3
0

1
0
3
0

1020
1022

1024
1026

1028

1030

1
0
3
0

1026

1026

1
0
2
6

1
0
2
8

1028

1
0
2
8

1030

1
0
3
2 1034

1026

1028

1030
1032

1034

1018

1016

1014

1012

1018

1001

1002

1003

1004

1005

1006
1007

1008

1009
1010

1011

1012

1013

1014

1015

1016

1017

1018

1019

1020

1021

1022

1023

1024

1025
1026

1027

1028

1029
1030

1031

1032

1033

1034

1035

1036

1037

1038

1039
1040

1041

1042

1043 1044

1045

1046

1047

1048

1049

1050

1051

1052

1053

1054

1055

1056

1057

1058

1059 1060

1061

1062

1063

1064

1065

1066

1067
1068

1069

1070

1071

1072

1073

1074

1075

1076
1077

1078

1079

1080

1081

1082

1083

1084

1085
1086

1087

1088

1089

1090

1091

1092

1093

1094

1095

1096

1097

1098

1099

1100

1101

1102

1103

1104

1106

1107

1108

1109

1110

1111

1112

1113

1114

1115

1116

1117

1118

1119

1120

1121

1122

1123

1124

1125

1126

1127

1128

1129

1130

1131

1132

1133 1134

1135

1136

1137

1688

1030

1040

1040

1028

1032

1034

1034

1036

1036

1038

1038

1042

1042

1042
1
0
4
2

1
0
4
4

1044

10
46

1046

1
0
4
810

48

1040

1040

1040

1040

1036

1036

1038

1038

1042

1042

1042

1044

1
0
4
6

1
0
4
0

1042

1042

1042

1044

1046

1
0
4
0

1
0
4
0

1040

1040

1034

10
34

1
0
3
4

1036

1
0
3
6

10
36

1036

1038

1038

10
38

1
0
3
8

1042

1042

1030

1040

1032

1034

1036

1038

1038

1038

1042

1044

1046

1040

1034

1036

1038

10
42

10
44

1046

10
40

1
0
4
0

1040

1
0
4
2

1044

1
0
4
4

1
0
4
6

1
0
4
6

10
40

10
36

10
38

10
42

10
44

10
46

1036

1030

C
O

N
C

. 
C

U
R

B

C
O

N
C

. 
C

U
R

B

C
O

N
C

. 
C

U
R

B

C
O

N
C

. 
C

U
R

B

A
U

T
O

M
A

T
IO

N
 A

V
E

.

EXISTING PARKING LOT

2
5
 F

T
. 
F

R
O

N
T

L
A

N
D

S
C

A
P

E
 B

U
F

F
E

R

C
E

N
T

E
R

 L
IN

E
 O

F
 R

O
A

D

1
2
" 

S
T

12" WM

12" WM

1038

1036

1036

1032

1032

L
=

4
2

8
.3

4
',

R
=

6
8

6
.0

0
'

L
=

3
7
.8

7
',

R
=

5
1.

0
0

'

0.
00 EX. SPOT ELEVATION

EX. STORM SEWER MANHOLE

EX. SANITARY SEWER MANHOLE

EX. CATCH BASIN

EX. LIGHT POLE

EX. UTILITY POLE

EX. ELEVATION CONTOUR

EX. STORM SEWER

EX. SANITARY SEWER

EX. WATER MAIN

EX. GAS MAIN

EX. UNDERGROUND
ELECTRIC/PHONE/CATV

PROP. STORM SEWER

PROP. SANITARY
SEWER SERVICE LEAD

PROP. WATER SERVICE LEAD

PROP. CATCH BASIN

LEGEND

PROP. CONCRETE PAVEMENT

000.00 PROP. SPOT ELEVATION

PROP. ELEVATION CONTOUR

PROP. SILT FENCE

TEMP. INLET PROTECTION FILTER

PROP. ASPHALT PAVEMENT

tag # EX. REGULATED TREE

K
IR

C
O

 M
A

N
IX

T
R

E
E

 S
U

R
V

E
Y

/ 
E

X
IS

T
IN

G
 C

O
N

D
IT

IO
N

S

C
IV

IL
 E

N
G

IN
E

E
R

S
 &

 S
U

R
V

E
Y

O
R

S

2
7

0
8

  
B

R
ID

L
E

 R
O

A
D

B
L

O
O

M
F

IE
L

D
 H

IL
L

S
, 

M
IC

H
IG

A
N

  
4

8
3

0
4

(2
4
8
) 

4
2
5
-9

7
8
9

m
a
s
o
n
_
b
ro

w
n
@

s
b
c
g
lo

b
a
l.
n
e
t

M
A

SO
N

 B
R

O
W

N
S 

A
SS

O
C

IA
TE

S,
 L

LC

SURVEY NOTES:
NO WETLANDS IN THE PROPOSED WORK AREA PER EGLE ON LINE MAPS.

NO DRAINAGE COURSES OBSERVED N THE PROPOSED WORK AREA

NO FLOOD AREAS IN THE PROPOSED WORK AREA PER FEMA, FIRM MAP 26125C0359F, EFFECTIVE DATE 9/29/2006.

SEE TREE INVENTORY TABLE ON SHEET 3

P
R

O
P

O
S

E
D

 P
A

R
K

IN
G

 L
O

T
 E

X
P

A
N

S
IO

N

B
R

O
S

E
, 

IN
C

2025-07-22 PER CITY COMMENTS

1"=20'

0

20

40

2025-07-25 PER CITY COMMENTS

2025-07-28 PER CITY COMMENTS



K
IR

C
O

 M
A

N
IX

T
R

E
E

 S
U

R
V

E
Y

T
A

B
L

E

C
IV

IL
 E

N
G

IN
E

E
R

S
 &

 S
U

R
V

E
Y

O
R

S

2
7

0
8

  
B

R
ID

L
E

 R
O

A
D

B
L

O
O

M
F

IE
L

D
 H

IL
L

S
, 

M
IC

H
IG

A
N

  
4

8
3

0
4

(2
4
8
) 

4
2
5
-9

7
8
9

m
a
s
o
n
_
b
ro

w
n
@

s
b
c
g
lo

b
a
l.
n
e
t

M
A

SO
N

 B
R

O
W

N
S 

A
SS

O
C

IA
TE

S,
 L

LC
P

R
O

P
O

S
E

D
 P

A
R

K
IN

G
 L

O
T

 E
X

P
A

N
S

IO
N

B
R

O
S

E
, 

IN
C

2025-07-22 PER CITY COMMENTS

2025-07-25 PER CITY COMMENTS

2025-07-28 PER CITY COMMENTS



10
38

.11

10
39

.21

EX
IS

T.
 R

.O
.W

. L
IN

E

W
M

20

9

19

12

12

3

24.0'

25.1'

9.0'

18.0'

9.0'

18.0'

9.0' 18.0'

18.0'

9.0' 18.0'

24.0'

24.0'

24.0'

18.0'

9.0'

8.5'

8.5'

R5.0'

R
10

.0
'

R4.0'

R44.0'

R20.0'

R
5.

0'

C
O

N
C

. C
U

R
B

C
O

N
C

. C
U

R
B

C
O

N
C

. C
U

R
B

C
O

N
C

. C
U

R
B

AU
TO

M
AT

IO
N

 A
VE

.

EXISTING PARKING LOT

SAW CUT & REMOVE CURB

25
 F

T.
 F

R
O

N
T

LA
N

D
SC

AP
E 

BU
FF

ER

C
EN

TE
R

 L
IN

E 
O

F 
R

O
AD

12" WM

12" WM

171.0'

27.0'

5.6'

R10.0'

R3.0'

81.0' 180.0'

298.9'

168.7'

PROP HYD FG: 1035.92 (match)

L=
42

8.
34

',
R

=6
86

.0
0 '

L=
37

.8
7'

, R
=5

1.
00

'

FIRE TRUCK TURNING PATH

6" WM IN 12 FT.WIDE EASEMENT

8 in x 6 in TS GV&W

67 lf 6" DI WM

9.
6'

SAW CUT 3' WIDE BUTT JOINT

0.0
0 EX. SPOT ELEVATION

EX. STORM SEWER MANHOLE

EX. SANITARY SEWER MANHOLE

EX. CATCH BASIN

EX. LIGHT POLE

EX. UTILITY POLE

EX. ELEVATION CONTOUR

EX. STORM SEWER

EX. SANITARY SEWER

EX. WATER MAIN

EX. GAS MAIN

EX. UNDERGROUND
ELECTRIC/PHONE/CATV

PROP. STORM SEWER

PROP. SANITARY
SEWER SERVICE LEAD
PROP. WATER SERVICE LEAD

PROP. CATCH BASIN

LEGEND

PROP. CONCRETE PAVEMENT

000.00 PROP. SPOT ELEVATION

PROP. ELEVATION CONTOUR

PROP. SILT FENCE

TEMP. INLET PROTECTION FILTER

PROP. ASPHALT PAVEMENT

tag # EX. REGULATED TREE

KI
R

C
O

 M
AN

IX

D
IM

EN
SI

O
N

AL
 S

IT
E 

PL
AN

C
IV

IL
 E

N
G

IN
EE

R
S 

& 
SU

R
VE

YO
R

S
27

08
  B

R
ID

LE
 R

O
AD

BL
O

O
M

FI
EL

D
 H

IL
LS

, M
IC

H
IG

AN
  4

83
04

(2
48

) 4
25

-9
78

9
m

as
on

_b
ro

w
n@

sb
cg

lo
ba

l.n
et

M
A

SO
N

 B
R

O
W

N
S 

A
SS

O
C

IA
TE

S,
 L

LC
PR

O
PO

SE
D

 P
AR

KI
N

G
 L

O
T 

EX
PA

N
SI

O
N

BR
O

SE
, I

N
C

LEGAL DESCRIPTION
A PORTION OF THE FOLLOWING LEGAL DESCRIPTION:
A PART OF THE EAST ½ OF SECTION 3, T-3-N., R-10-E., CITY OF AUBURN HILLS, OAKLAND COUNTY, MICHIGAN,
MORE PARTICULARLY DESCRIBED AS:
BEGINNING AT A POINT DISTANT S. 00" 11 '55''W., 43.00 FEET AND S.89"42' 11''W., 99.63 FEET AND
N.77"57'31"W. , 311.04 FEET. AND N.65°39'01"W., 56.69 FROM THE EAST 1/4 CORNER OF SECTION 3. T.3N, R.10E.
THENCE S.23"18'07" W. 260.27 FT; THENCE ALONG THE ARC OF A CURVE TO THE RIGHT HAVING A RADIUS OF
457.00 FT.,CHORD BEARING S.34"44'34" W. 149.92 FT. A DISTANCE OF 150.60 FT.; THENCE S. 44"11'01"W. 67.35
FT.; THENCE ALONG THE ARC OF A CURVE TO THE LEFT HAVING A RADIUS OF 686.00 FT, CHORD BEARING
S.40"53'42" W. 78.70 FT. A DISTANCE OF 78.74 FT.; THENCE DUE NORTH 703.29 FT.; THENCE ALONG THE ARC
OF A CURVE TO THE RIGHT HAVING A RADIUS OF 997.98FT; CHORD BEARING S.69"17'32" E.127.61 A DISTANCE
OF 127.69 FT.; THENCE S.65"39'01" E. 465.39 FT. TO THE POINT OF BEGINNING

ALSO

A PART OF THE EAST ½ OF SECTION 3, T-3-N., R-10-E., CITY OF AUBURN HILLS, OAKLAND COUNTY, MICHIGAN,
MORE PARTICULARLY DESCRIBED AS:
COMMENCING AT THE EAST ¼ CORNER OF SAID SECTION 3; THENCE S. 00" 11 '55''W., 43.00 FEET TO A POINT
OF THE SOUTHERLY LINE OF HARMON ROAD (86 FEET WIDE); THENCE THE FOLLOWING THREE COURSES
BEING ALONG SAID SOUTHERLY LINE: (1) S.89"42' 11''W., 99.63 FEET, AND (2)  ALONG A CURVE TO THE RIGHT
313.44 FEET, SAID CURVE HAVING A RADIUS OF 729.62 FEET, CENTRAL ANGLE OF 24"36'52" AND A LONG
CHORD BEARING OF N.7T57'31 "W. , 311.04 FEET. AND (3) N.65°39'01 "W., 56.69 FEET TO A POINT ON THE
WESTERLY LINE OF THE ROADWAY PARCEL; THENCE THE FOLLOWING FOUR COURSES BEING ALONG SAID
WESTERLY LINE: ( 1) S.25" 18'07"W., 260.27 FEET, AND (2) ALONG A CURVE TO THE RIGHT 150.60 FEET, SAID
CURVE HAVING A RADIUS OF 457.00 FEET, CENTRAL ANGLE OF 18"52'54" AND A LONG CHORD BEARING OF
S.34"44'34"W., 149.92 FEET, AND (3)  S.44"11'01"W., 67.35 FEET, AND (4)  ALONG A CURVE TO THE LEFT 78.74
FEET, SAID CURVE HAVING A RADIUSOF 686.00 FEET, CENTRAL ANGLE OF 6° 34' 36"  AND A LONG CHORD
BEARING OF S.40"53' 42"W., 78. 70 FEET TO THE POINT OF BEGINNING; THENCE THE FOLLOWING THREE
COURSES  BEING ALONG THE WESTERLY LINE OF SAID ROADWAY PARCEL AND ROADWAY CUL-DE-SAC: (1)
CONTINUING ALONG A CURVE TO THE LEFT 428.35 FEET, SAID CURVE HAVING A RADIUS OF 686.00 FEET,
CENTRAL ANGLE OF 35" 46' 35" AND A LONG CHORD BEARING OF S.19"43'08"W., 421.42 FEET, AND (2) ALONG
A CURVE TO THE RIGHT 37.88 FEET, SAID CURVE HAVING A RADIUS OF 51.00 FEET, CENTRAL ANGLE OF
42"33'07" AND A LONG CHORD BEARING of S.23"06'24"W.,37.01 FEET, AND (3) ALONG A CURVE TO THE LEFT
188.13 FEET, SAID CURVE HAVING A RADIUS OF 80.00 FEET, CENTRAL ANGLE OF 134"44'22" AND A LONG
CHORD BEARING OF S.22°59'12"E. , 147.68 FEET: THENCE S.00°21 '24"E., 551.44 FEET TO A POINT ON THE
NORTHERLY LINE OF INTERSTATE 75; THENCE ALONG SAID NORTHERLY LINE ON A CURVE TO THE LEFT
668.77 FEET, SAID CURVE HAVING A RADIUS OF 2,049.86 FEET, CENTRAL ANGLE OF 18"41 '34" AND A LONG
CHORD BEARING OF N.72°06' 13"W., 665.81 FEET; THENCE N.14"02'48"W., 361.51 FEET; THENCE N.16" 10'04"E.,
181.18 FEET; THENCE N.13"53'14''W., 400.50 FEET; THENCE DUE EAST 862.63 FEET TO THE POINT OF
BEGINNING AND CONTAINING 679,012 SQUARE FEET OR 15.588  ACRES.
SUBJECT TO ANY EASEMENTS,  RESTRICTIONS  OR RIGHTS OF WAY RECORDED  OR  OTHERWISE.
SIDWELL IDENTIFICATION  NUMBER: PART OF 14-03-401-014

TOTAL SITE ACREAGE: 21.60 ACRES

1"=20'

0
20

40

LOCATION MAP

SIDWELL IDENTIFICATION  NUMBER:
PART OF 14-03-401-014

SITE DATA:
ZONING: SUBJECT SITE AND ALL ADJACENT PROPERTIES ARE ZONE T & R "TECHNOLOGY & RESEARCH."

INGRESS/EGRESS: NO NEW CURB CUTS ARE PROPOSED. ENTRY TO THIS PARKING LOT WOULD BE THROUGH THE EXISTING. LOT.

NO CHANGE IS PROPOSED TO THE EXISTING ROAD R.O.W. LINE

THE NUMBER OF PARKING SPACES IS PER OWNER REQUIREMENTS TO ACCOMMODATE NEW EMPLOYEES IN THEIR EXISTING BUILDING.

NO INTERNAL SIDEWALKS ARE PROPOSED.

TOTAL NEW PAVEMENT/IMPERVIOUS SURFACE = 24,094 SQUARE FEET.

NO LOADING/UNLOADING AREA PROPOSED.

NO PATHWAY PARALLELING THE R.O.W. IS PROPOSED.

NO TRASH RECEPTACLE, DUMPSTER ENCLOSURES ARE PROPOSED.

NO SIGNS ARE PROPOSED.

SITE IS NOT LOCATED ON A WETLAND, PER EGLE ONLINE MAPS.

GENERAL NOTES

1. All lighting shall be shielded and directed downward and away from adjacent properties. Lighting
shall meet the requirements of Zoning Ordinance No. 372.

2. Signs shall meet the requirements of Zoning Ordinance No. 372.
3. No outside storage will be allowed, which includes pallet storage, overnight vehicles, or trailer storage.
4. Ground-mounted transformers and roof-mounted mechanical equipment shall be screened per

Zoning Ordinance No. 372.
5. Parking spaces shall be double-stripped per Zoning Ordinance No. 372.
6. An Environmental Impact Statement is not required.
7. A Land Division or Combination is not required.
8. Special Land Use permit application(s) are not required.
9. No alterations, amendments, modifications, or revisions shall be made to the approved site plan
during engineering and building plan submittal and review or during construction without prior approval
from Community Development.

WB-40

8.
5'

8'25'13'4'

AASHTO

AUBURN HILLS FIRE TRUCK

TRUCK TURNING TEMPLATE USED

SITE

NOT FOR CONSTRUCTION DRAWINGS

PARKING:

EXISTING
             337 REGULAR SPACES

                           8 READILY ACCESSIBLE SPACES
TOTAL:          345 SPACES

PROPOSED (PRIOR TO ADDITIONAL ACCESSIBLE SPACE
RESTRIPING.)
                    ADD 75 SPACES
 TOTAL        420  SPACES

REQUIRED: 9 TOTAL READILY ACCESSIBLE SPACES.

SINCE 8 ALREADY EXIST, RESTRIPE AS SHOWN ON SHEET
5 TO OBTAIN 1 ADDITIONAL READILY ACCESSIBLE SPACE
AND VAN ACCESS AREA.

ADDING THE VAN ACCESS AREA ELIMINATES 1 REGULAR
SPACE.

TOTAL PROPOSED PARKING:
411 REGULAR SPACES
    9 READILY ACCESSIBLE SPACES

TOTAL         420 SPACES

PROPRIETOR'S NAME & ADDRESS:
BROSE NORTH AMERICA, INC.
3933 AUTOMATION AVE.
AUBURN HILLS, MI 48326
ATTN: KENNETH KAPPLER
248-339-4114

          Kenneth.Kappler@Brose.com

2025-07-22 PER CITY COMMENTS
2025-07-25 PER CITY COMMENTS

BROSE NORTH AMERICA SHALL RESTRIPE A PORTION OF ITS MAIN PARKING LOT
SURROUNDING THE BUILDING TO PROVIDE 1 ADDITIONAL BARRIER-FREE PARKING
SPACE IN ORDER TO OBTAIN A TOTAL OF 9 PER ZONING ORDINANCE AND MICHIGAN
BARRIER FREE REQUIREMENTS. SEE SIGN DETAILS, SHEET 9.

BROSE NORTH AMERICA WILL ADD THE REQUIRED SIGNAGE AND PAVEMENT MARKINGS
FOR ITS FOUR EXISTING CHARGING STATION SPACES. SEE SIGN DETAILS, SHEET 9.

BROSE NORTH AMERICA SHALL ADDRESS THE PAVEMENT CONDITION IN ITS LOWER LOT
AS DETERMINED BY THE CITY'S ENGINEER AND REPLACE ANY DEAD OR DYING TREES
ON THE PROPERTY AS DETERMINED BY THE CITY’S WOODLAND CONSULTANT.

2025-07-28 PER CITY COMMENTS

AutoCAD SHX Text
D

AutoCAD SHX Text
Y

AutoCAD SHX Text
H

AutoCAD SHX Text
4

AutoCAD SHX Text
25-011

AutoCAD SHX Text
MLB

AutoCAD SHX Text
07-07-2025

AutoCAD SHX Text
mb

AutoCAD SHX Text
1"=20'

AutoCAD SHX Text
net

AutoCAD SHX Text
MB

AutoCAD SHX Text
25-011

AutoCAD SHX Text
SHEET

AutoCAD SHX Text
SCALE:

AutoCAD SHX Text
DATE:

AutoCAD SHX Text
JOB NO.

AutoCAD SHX Text
DESIGN:

AutoCAD SHX Text
DRAWN:

AutoCAD SHX Text
CHECKED:

AutoCAD SHX Text
FIELD CK:

AutoCAD SHX Text
.DWG

AutoCAD SHX Text
REVISIONS:

AutoCAD SHX Text
W

AutoCAD SHX Text
E

AutoCAD SHX Text
S

AutoCAD SHX Text
N



20
9

19

12

12

3

S0°11'55"W

43.00'

S89°42'11"W

99.63'

L=313.44', R=729.62'

N65°39'01"W

56.69'

S
2
5
°1

8
'0

7
"W

2
6
0
.2

7
'

L
=1

5
0.

6
0
',

R
=

4
5
7
.0

0
'

S44°11'01"W

67.35'

L=78.74', R=686.00'

L
=

4
2

8
.3

4
',

R
=

6
8

6
.0

0
'

L=37.8
7
',

R
=

5
1.

0
0

'

L
=

1
8

8
.13

' ,
R

=80.00'

S
0
°2

1
'2

4
"E

5
5
1
.4

4
'

L=668.77' , R=2049.86'

N
1
4
°0

2
'4

8
"W

3
6
1
.5

1
'

N
1
6
°1

0
'0

4
"E

1
8
1
.1

8
'

N
1
3
°5

3
'1

4
"W

4
0
0
.5

0
'

N90°00'00"E

862.63'

N71°57'31"W

311.04'

N90°00'00"W  248.22'

N
0
°0

0
'0

0
"E

  
7
0
3
.2

9
'

L=127.70', R=997.98' S65°39'01"E  465.39'

EAST 1/4 CORNER, SECTION 3

T. 3 N., R. 10 E.

CITY OF AUBURN HILLS

OAKLAND COUNTY MICHIGAN

3

12

12

19

9
20

DROP C
URB H

GT TO 0"

1"-3
" L

IM
ESTONE

6" T
HIC

K

3.0'

4.0'

1

1

1034

1036

1035
1

6

1"-3" LIMESTONE

6" THICK

CURB DROP TO 0" HGT

0.
00 EX. SPOT ELEVATION

EX. STORM SEWER MANHOLE

EX. SANITARY SEWER MANHOLE

EX. CATCH BASIN

EX. LIGHT POLE

EX. UTILITY POLE

EX. ELEVATION CONTOUR

EX. STORM SEWER

EX. SANITARY SEWER

EX. WATER MAIN

EX. GAS MAIN

EX. UNDERGROUND
ELECTRIC/PHONE/CATV

PROP. STORM SEWER

PROP. SANITARY
SEWER SERVICE LEAD

PROP. WATER SERVICE LEAD

PROP. CATCH BASIN

PROP. CONCRETE PAVEMENT

000.00 PROP. SPOT ELEVATION

PROP. ELEVATION CONTOUR

PROP. SILT FENCE

TEMP INLET PROTECTIO

PROP. ASPHALT PAVEMENT

tag # EX. REGULATED TREE

REPAINT STRIPE FOR READILY
ACCESSIBLE PARKING. ADD
WHEELCHAIR GRAPHIC TO
EXIST'G SPACE

K
IR

C
O

 M
A

N
IX

O
V

E
R

A
L

L
 S

IT
E

 &
 R

E
S

T
R

IP
IN

G
 P

L
A

N

C
IV

IL
 E

N
G

IN
E

E
R

S
 &

 S
U

R
V

E
Y

O
R

S

2
7

0
8

  
B

R
ID

L
E

 R
O

A
D

B
L

O
O

M
F

IE
L

D
 H

IL
L

S
, 

M
IC

H
IG

A
N

  
4

8
3

0
4

(2
4
8
) 

4
2
5
-9

7
8
9

m
a
s
o
n
_
b
ro

w
n
@

s
b
c
g
lo

b
a
l.
n
e
t

M
A

SO
N

 B
R

O
W

N
S 

A
SS

O
C

IA
TE

S,
 L

LC

P
R

O
P

O
S

E
D

 P
A

R
K

IN
G

 L
O

T
 E

X
P

A
N

S
IO

N

B
R

O
S

E
, 

IN
C

LOCATION MAP

SIDWELL IDENTIFICATION  NUMBER:
PART OF 14-03-401-014

SITE

NOT FOR CONSTRUCTION DRAWINGS

OVERALL PROPERTY

1"=100'

0

100

200

RE-STRIPE AS SHOWN TO OBTAIN 1 ADDITIONAL READILY  ACCESSIBLE SPACE AND 1 VAN ACCESS AREA.

RESTRIPING PLAN FOR ADDITIONAL
HANDICAPPED PARKING SPACE

1"=20'

0

20

40

PROPOSED PARKING LOT

EXISTING PARKING LOT

EXISTING BUILDING

AREA TO BE RESTRIPED FOR

ADD'L HANDICAPPED SPACE

PROPRIETOR'S NAME & ADDRESS:
BROSE NORTH AMERICA, INC.

3933 AUTOMATION AVE.

AUBURN HILLS, MI 48326

ATTN: KENNETH KAPPLER

248-339-4114

          Kenneth.Kappler@Brose.com

2025-07-22 PER CITY COMMENTS

2025-07-25 PER CITY COMMENTS

BROSE NORTH AMERICA SHALL RESTRIPE A PORTION OF ITS MAIN PARKING LOT

SURROUNDING THE BUILDING TO PROVIDE 1 ADDITIONAL BARRIER-FREE PARKING

SPACE IN ORDER TO OBTAIN A TOTAL OF 9 PER ZONING ORDINANCE AND MICHIGAN

BARRIER FREE REQUIREMENTS.

BROSE NORTH AMERICA WILL ADD THE REQUIRED SIGNAGE AND PAVEMENT MARKINGS

FOR ITS FOUR EXISTING CHARGING STATION SPACES. SEE SIGN DETAILS, SHEET 9.

BROSE NORTH AMERICA SHALL ADDRESS THE PAVEMENT CONDITION IN ITS LOWER LOT

AS DETERMINED BY THE CITY'S ENGINEER AND REPLACE ANY DEAD OR DYING TREES

ON THE PROPERTY AS DETERMINED BY THE CITY’S WOODLAND CONSULTANT.

2025-07-28 PER CITY COMMENTS



1696
1697

1700

1699

1698

1695

1710

1693

1694

1690

1694

1692

1689

1687

1728

1686

10
32

.0
1

1672

1671

1670

1669

1667

1668

1663

1664 1666

1682

1643

1707

1644

1029.34

1645

1023.45

1646

1023.62

1647

1022.91

1708

1709

1719

1648

1720

1650

16491651

1652

1678

1677

1665

1681

1680

1679

1673

1674

1675

1676

1653

1654

1655

1684

1685

1656

1744

1657

1683

1660

1662

1661

1748

1747

1659

1746

17431742

1740 1741
1745

1749

1738
1739

1734 1733

1735

1736

1732

1731

1727

1726

1737

1725

1723
1724

1729

1730

1714

1715

1716

1717

1711

1712

1713

1658

1704

17051706

1703

1702
1701

1038.83

10
38

.8
9

10
38

.3
5

10
38

.4
4

10
38

.9
1

10
38

.7
8

10
38

.2
4

10
38

.3
1

10
38

.8
5

10
38

.9
3

10
38

.4
5

10
38

.4
4

10
38

.9
9

10
39

.3
3

10
38

.9
4

10
39

.5
2

10
38

.8
0

10
38

.1
4

10
37

.8
9

10
38

.4
4

10
38

.3
2

10
37

.7
9

10
37

.5
7

10
38

.2
7

10
37

.9
5

10
37

.4
4

CB

1037.04

10
37

.5
3

10
37

.5
8

10
37

.8
9

10
38

.7
5

10
38

.3
410

38
.2

8

10
38

.8
1

10
38

.7
5

10
38

.3
21038.69

10
38

.9
9

10
39

.2
2

10
39

.7
2

10
28

.5
0

10
28

.7
9

10
26

.5
3

10
26

.2
9

10
23

.1
6

10
23

.3
5

10
25

.6
6

10
22

.5
1

10
22

.3
9

10
21

.7
9

10
22

.0
6

10
21

.6
7

10
20

.5
4

10
20

.5
3

10
37

.9
4

10
38

.1
0

10
38

.3
7

10
37

.4
1

10
35

.6
4

10
34

.0
3

10
30

.7
4

10
29

.2
6

10
30

.7
5

10
30

.3
2

10
30

.2
8

10
29

.3
7

10
28

.0
1

10
27

.1
8

10
25

.7
8

10
23

.9
1

10
21

.8
8

10
20

.2
8

10
19

.6
6

10
32

.1
7

1020

1
0
3
0

1040

1
0
4
0

1018

1022
1024

1
0
2
6

1
0
2
8

1
0
3
2

1034

1034

1034

1036

1038

1
0
3
8

1
0
3
8

1042

1042

1044

1044

1020

1030

1016

1018

1022

1

1024

1026

1028

1032

1034

1

1036

1038

10
38

1038

1
0
3
8

1020

1
0
2
0

1018

1
0
1
8

1022

1
0
2
2

1024

1
0
2
4

1
0
2
6

1
0
2
0

1
0
1
4

1
0
1
6

1
0
1
8

1
0
2
2

1010

10
10

1020

10
20

1012

10
12

1014

1014

10
14

1016

1016

10
16

1018

8

10
18

1022

10
22

10
24

1024

1026

1026

1028

1028

1
0
2
0

1020

10
14

1014

10
16

1016

10
18

1018

1
0
2
2

1022

1024

1024

10
26

1
0
2
6

1026

1028

1
0
2
8

1030

1024

1026

1028

1030

1040

1026

1028

1032

1034

1036

1038

1
2
" 

S
T

E
X

IS
T

. 
R

.O
.W

. 
L
IN

E

W
M

1022

1036.15  G

1036.65  TC

1
0
2
8

1030

1030

1
0
3
0

1
0
3
0

1020
1022

1024
1026

1028

1030

1
0
3
0

1026

1026

1
0
2
6

1
0
2
8

1028

1
0
2
8

1030

1
0
3
2 1034

1026

1028

1030
1032

1034

3.6%

1018

1016

1014

1012

1018

20

9

19

12

12

3

1001

1002

1003

1004

1005

1006
1007

1008

1009
1010

1011

1012

1013

1014

1015

1016

1017

1018

1019

1020

1021

1022

1023

1024

1025
1026

1027

1028

1029
1030

1031

1032

1033

1034

1035

1036

1037

1038

1039
1040

1041

1042

1043 1044

1045

1046

1047

1048

1049

1050

1051

1052

1053

1054

1055

1056

1057

1058

1059 1060

1061

1062

1063

1064

1065

1066

1067
1068

1069

1070

1071

1072

1073

1074

1075

1076
1077

1078

1079

1080

1081

1082

1083

1084

1085
1086

1087

1088

1089

1090

1091

1092

1093

1094

1095

1096

1097

1098

1099

1100

1101

1102

1103

1104

1106

1107

1108

1109

1110

1111

1112

1113

1114

1115

1116

1117

1118

1119

1120

1121

1122

1123

1124

1125

1126

1127

1128

1129

1130

1131

1132

1133 1134

1135

1136

1137

1688

1030

1040

1040

1028

1032

1034

1034

1036

1036

1038

1038

1042

1042

1042
1
0
4
2

1
0
4
4

1044

10
46

1046

1
0
4
810

48

1040

1040

1040

1040

1036

1036

1038

1038

1042

1042

1042

1044

1
0
4
6

1
0
4
0

1042

1042

1042

1044

1046

1
0
4
0

1
0
4
0

1040

1040

1034

10
34

1
0
3
4

1036

1
0
3
6

10
36

1036

1038

1038

10
38

1
0
3
8

1042

1042

1030

1040

1032

1034

1036

1038

1038

1038

1042

1044

1046

1040

1034

1036

1038

10
42

10
44

1046

10
40

1
0
4
0

1040

1
0
4
2

1044

1
0
4
4

1
0
4
6

1
0
4
6

10
40

10
36

10
38

10
42

10
44

10
46

1036

1030

C
O

N
C

. 
C

U
R

B

EXISTING PARKING LOT

SAW CUT & REMOVE CURB

2
5
 F

T
. 
F

R
O

N
T

L
A

N
D

S
C

A
P

E
 B

U
F

F
E

R

1
2
" 

S
T

1036.76  G
1037.26  T

C

12" WM

12" WM

1037.00  G
1037.50  T

C

1038

1036

1036

1032

1039.25  G

1039.75  TC

1041.38  G

1041.88  TC

1041.07  G
1041.57  T

C

1038.68  G
1039.18  T

C

SEDIM
ENT FOREBAY/LEVEL S

PREADER

1035

1034

1042

1044

1042

1040

1038

1036

1034
1032

1030

1036.20  T
C

1035.70  G

1038

1032

10
32

1040

PROP HYD FG: 1035.92 (match)

L
=

4
2

8
.3

4
',

R
=

6
8

6

L
=

3
7
.8

7
',

R
=

5
1.

0
0

'

1038.00 G

1038.50 TC

1041.19  G

1041.69  TC

1040.49  G

1040.99  TC

1040.76  G
1041.26  T

C
1039.56  G

1040.06  T
C

1039.80 G
1040.30  T

C

1037.57  G
1038.07  T

C 1.0%

1.6
%

4
.0

%

2.
8%

1.5%

103802  G

1038.52  TC

1.0%

6.0%

1039.72  G

1040.22  TC

3.6%

1036.79  G
1037.29  T

C

1.0%

2.5%

3.0%

1037.88  TC

1037.38  G

1039.06  G

1039.56 TC

4
.0

%

4
.0

%

4
.0

%

4.0%

4
.0

%

3.6%

4.0%

4
.0

%

8 in x 6 in TS GV&W

67 lf 6" DI WM

1036.20  T
C

1035.70  G

1036.42   P

4.0%

SAW CUT 3' WIDE BUTT JOINT

STANDARD 6" C
ONC. C

URB &
 G

UTTER

ALL O
THER C

URB TO B
E 6" R

EVERSE

SEE D
ETAILS FOR S

PILLW
AY IN

FORMATIO
N

1038.96  G

1039.46  TC

1036.20  T
C

1035.70  G
3.6%

1038.72  TC

1038.22  G

4
.0

%

4
.0

%

1038.72  TC

1038.22  G

4
.0

%

1035

1:4

1
:3

1
:6

1
:6

1:4

1
:4

1
:6

1
:6

CONSTRUCT S
PILLW

AYS IN
TO

FOREBAY/LEVEL S
PREADER

SEE D
ETAILS, S

H. 9

0.
00 EX. SPOT ELEVATION

EX. STORM SEWER MANHOLE

EX. SANITARY SEWER MANHOLE

EX. CATCH BASIN

EX. LIGHT POLE

EX. UTILITY POLE

EX. ELEVATION CONTOUR

EX. STORM SEWER

EX. SANITARY SEWER

EX. WATER MAIN

EX. GAS MAIN

EX. UNDERGROUND
ELECTRIC/PHONE/CATV

PROP. STORM SEWER

PROP. SANITARY
SEWER SERVICE LEAD

PROP. WATER SERVICE LEAD

PROP. CATCH BASIN

PROP. CONCRETE PAVEMENT

000.00 PROP. SPOT ELEVATION

PROP. ELEVATION CONTOUR

PROP. SILT FENCE

TEMP INLET PROTECTION FILTER

PROP. ASPHALT PAVEMENT

tag # EX. REGULATED TREE

K
IR

C
O

 M
A

N
IX

E
N

G
IN

E
E

R
IN

G
 P

L
A

N

C
IV

IL
 E

N
G

IN
E

E
R

S
 &

 S
U

R
V

E
Y

O
R

S

2
7
0
8
  

B
R

ID
L
E

 R
O

A
D

B
L

O
O

M
F

IE
L

D
 H

IL
L

S
, 

M
IC

H
IG

A
N

  
4

8
3

0
4

(2
4
8
) 

4
2
5
-9

7
8
9

m
a
s
o
n
_
b
ro

w
n
@

s
b
c
g
lo

b
a
l.
n
e
t

M
A

SO
N

 B
R

O
W

N
S 

A
SS

O
C

IA
TE

S,
 L

LC

P
R

O
P

O
S

E
D

 P
A

R
K

IN
G

 L
O

T
 E

X
P

A
N

S
IO

N

B
R

O
S

E
, 

IN
C

1"=20'

0

20

40

SIDWELL IDENTIFICATION  NUMBER: PART OF 14-03-401-014

WATER MAIN:              6" HYDRANT LEAD TO SERVICE THE NEW PARKING LOT.

SANITARY SEWER:     NONE PROPOSED

STORM WATER MANAGEMENT

SEE SHEET 7 FOR STORMWATER MANAGEMENT ANALYSIS.

CITY OF AUBURN HILLS STANDARD NOTES

CONSTRUCTION SHALL CONFORM TO CURRENT CITY OF AUBURN HILLS' STANDARDS.

NO WORK SHALL BE PERFORMED WITHOUT INSPECTION.

A PERMIT FROM THE DPW IS REQUIRED FOR ALL CONSTRUCTION WITHIN CITY ROW. NO EQUIPMENT
OR MATERIAL STORAGE WILL BE PERMITTED IN THE ROW.

ALL CITY STREETS MUST BE MAINTAINED DURING CONSTRUCTION. STREETS SHALL BE KEPT FREE OF
MUD, DIRT, CONSTRUCTION DEBRIS, DUST AND THE LIKE. IF CLEAN-UP IS NOT PERFORMED WITHIN 24
HOURS OF NOTIFICATION, THE CITY RESERVES THE RIGHT TO PERFORM THE WORK AND CHARGE THE
DEVELOPER ACCORDINGLY.

WORKING HOURS (INCLUDING RUNNING OF ANY MACHINERY) SHALL BE RESTRICTED TO MONDAY
THROUGH SATURDAY, 7:00 AM TO 7:00 PM; SUNUP TO SUNDOWN; WHICHEVER IS LESS.
CONSTRUCTION OPERATIONS BEYOND THE PERIODS MENTIONED ABOVE SHALL BE PERMITTED ONLY
AFTER WRITTEN APPROVAL OF THE CITY MANAGER OR HIS DESIGNEE.

ALL MATERIALS AND MANUFACTURERS SHALL CONFORM TO THE STANDARD DETAILS.

UTILITY STRUCTURES SHALL NOT BE LOCATED IN DRIVEWAYS, AND WHERE POSSIBLE, SHALL NOT BE
LOCATED IN PAVED AREAS.

THE CONTRACTOR SHALL NOTIFY ALL UTILITY COMPANIES IN ACCORDANCE WITH ACT 53 OF P.A. OF
1974 AND ALSO CONTACT OAKLAND COUNTY UTILITY AND PROTECTION SERVICE (MISS DIG
1-800-482-7171) THREE (3) WORKING DAYS BEFORE THE START OF ANY CONSTRUCTION.

THE CONTRACTOR SHALL PROVIDE NECESSARY SIGNS, BARRICADES AND LIGHTS TO PROTECT TRAFFIC
AND THE WORK AS DIRECTED BY THE ENGINEER. SUCH DEVICES SHALL BE PLACED PRIOR TO STARTING
WORK IN AFFECTED AREAS.

ALL SOIL EROSION AND SEDIMENTATION CONTROLS SHALL BE IN ACCORDANCE WITH THE OAKLAND
COUNTY STANDARDS AND DETAILS. THE CONTRACTOR SHALL FOLLOW LOCAL RULES AND
REGULATIONS FOR SOIL EROSION AND SEDIMENTATION CONTROL FOR ALL MATERIALS THAT ARE
DISPOSED OF OFF OF THE PROJECT SITE.

ALL SOIL EROSION MEASURES MUST BE PROPERLY PLACED PRIOR TO GRADING OR OTHER
CONSTRUCTION ACTIVITIES.

FIELD CHANGES TO THE APPROVED PLAN SHALL BE BROUGHT TO THE ATTENTION OF THE INSPECTOR
ON SITE, WHO WILL DETERMINE WHETHER THE CHANGE IS CONSIDERED "SIGNIFICANT". "SIGNIFICANT"
FIELD CHANGES SHALL BE SUBMITTED TO THE CITY BY THE DESIGN ENGINEER. THE CITY SHALL NOT BE
HELD RESPONSIBLE FOR DELAYS IN APPROVAL OF CHANGES TO THE APPROVED SITE IMPROVEMENT
(ENGINEERING) PLAN.

WHERE POSSIBLE, PUBLIC UTILITIES SHALL NOT BE PLACED UNDER PAVEMENT. THE CITY OF AUBURN
HILLS SHALL NOT BE RESPONSIBLE FOR PAVEMENT, CURB, OR OTHER RESTORATION OF PERMANENT
FACILITIES LOCATED WITHIN THE MUNICIPAL EASEMENT.

3 WORKING DAYS PRIOR TO STARTING CONSTRUCTION, CONTACT THE CONSTRUCTION DEPARTMENT
OF ORCHARD, HILTZ & McCLIMENT, INC. AT (734) 466-4539 TO SCHEDULE INSPECTION. OHM SHALL
INSPECT ALL SITE IMPROVEMENTS INCLUDING UNDERGROUND UTILITY INSTALLATION, EARTHWORK
OPERATIONS, RETAINING WALLS, PAVEMENT IN CITY R.O.W., ALL SIDEWALKS OR SAFETY PATHS IN ANY
PUBLIC R.O.W., AND ANY ADDITIONAL ITEMS NOTED DURING REVIEW OR AT THE PRE-CONSTRUCTION
MEETING. FINAL OCCUPANCY MAY BE AFFECTED IF PROCEDURES ARE NOT FOLLOWED FOR PROPER
INSPECTION.

PERMANENT STRUCTURES OF ANY TYPE, INCLUDING BUT NOT LIMITED TO, TREES, LIGHT POLES,
DRAINAGE STRUCTURES, SANITARY STRUCTURES, BENCHES, TRASH RECEPTACLES, ETC., WILL NOT BE
ALLOWED WITHIN THE INFLUENCE OF THE PUBLIC WATER MAIN OR SANITARY SEWER EASEMENTS.

FIRE DEPARTMENT NOTES
1. THE FOUR (4) INCH STEAMER CAPS ON ALL HYDRANTS WILL BE PAINTED

ACCORDING TO THE FOLLOWING: WHITE-ON 4.00 INCH MAINS

RED -ON 6.00 INCH MAINS ORANGE -ON

8.00 INCH MAINS GREEN-ON 12.00 INCH

MAINS

BLUE-ON 16.00 INCH OR LARGER MAINS

2. NO PARKING SHALL BE PERMITTED AND/OR NO OBSTRUCTIONS SHALL BE PLACED

OR CONSTRUCTED WITHIN FIFTEEN (15) FEET OF ANY FIRE HYDRANT OR FIRE

DEPARTMENT CONNECTION, PUBLIC OR PRIVATE.

3. THE FIRE DEPARTMENT CONNECTION MUST BE LOCATED WITHIN ONE HUNDRED

(100) FEET OF A FIRE HYDRANT AND WITHIN FIFTY (50) FEET OF A MINIMUM TWENTY

(20) FOOT WIDE PAVED DRIVEWAY OR STREET.

4. GAS METERS, PROPANE TANKS, OVERHEAD ELECTRICAL SERVICE, AND

TRANSFORMERS MUST NOT BE LOCATED ON THE SAME SIDE OF THE BUILDING OR

STRUCTURE AS THE FIRE DEPARTMENT CONNECTION UNLESS A CLEAR DISTANCE

OF ONE HUNDRED FIFTY (150) FEET CAN BE MAINTAINED BETWEEN UTILITIES AND

THE FIRE DEPARTMENT CONNECTION.

5. ALL DRIVE AREAS MUST BE POSTED AS FIRE LANES WITH UNIFORM SIGNS IN

KEEPING WITH THE STANDARD ESTABLISHED IN THE MICHIGAN MANUAL OF

UNIFORM TRAFFIC CONTROL DEVICES. SIGNS MUST BE ERECTED ON BOTH SIDES

OF THE FIRE LANES WITH SPACING BETWEEN SIGNS NOT TO EXCEED ONE

HUNDRED (100) FEET.

6. DESIGNATED EXIT DOORS ONTO DRIVES OR PARKING AREAS MUST BE PROTECTED

WITH GUARD POSTS OR PARKING BLOCKS.

7. A WHITE HIGH VISIBILITY STRIP SHALL BE PAINTED ON THE UPPER FLANGE OF ALL

FIRE HYDRANTS.

A SOIL EROSION PERMIT IS REQUIRED

FROM OCWRC.

SEE PLAN ON SHEET 7 AND DETAILS ON

SHEET 8.

A STORMWATER MAINTENANCE

AGREEMENT ENCOMPASSING THE

ON-SITE-STORM SEWER AND DETENTION

POND WILL BE REQUIRED TO BE CREATED

OR UPDATED PRIOR TO PROJECT

CLOSEOUT.

COVER OVER EXISTING AND PROPOSED

WATER MAIN SHALL BE MAINTAINED AT

5.5 FEET.

2025-07-22 PER CITY COMMENTS

2025-07-25 PER CITY COMMENTS

2025-07-28 PER CITY COMMENTS



10
38

.1
1

10
39

.2
1

10
31

.8
2

10
28

.8
0

10
25

.7
0

10
23

.1
7

10
25

.6
6

10
21

.6
7

10
20

.1
0

10
19

.7
5

10
19

.3
7

10
20

.4
1

1
2

" 
S

A
N

20

9

19

12

12

3

A
U

T
O

M
A

T
IO

N
 A

V
E

.

L
=

4
2

8
.3

4
',

R
=

6
8

6
.0

0
'

L=
3
7
.8

7
',

R
=

5
1.

0
0

'

L
=
18

8
.13

' ,
R

=

80.00'

S
0
°2

1
'2

4
"E

5
5
1
.4

4
'

N
1
4
°0

2
'4

8
"W

3
6
1
.5

1
'

N
1
6
°1

0
'0

4
"E

1
8
1
.1

8
'

N
1
3
°5

3
'1

4
"W

4
0
0
.5

0
'

N90°00'00"E

862.63'

N90°00'00"W  248.22'

3

12

12

19

9

20

995

1000

1005
1010

1015

1020

1025

SEDIMENT
FOREBAY/LEVEL
SPREADER

SHEET FLOW THROUGH
VEGETATION TO
EXISTING BASIN

 EXISTING BASIN

DROP C
URB H

GT TO 0"

1"-3
" L

IM
ESTONE

6" T
HIC

K

3.0'

4.0'

1

1

1034

1036

1035
1

6

1"-3" LIMESTONE

6" THICK

CURB DROP TO 0" HGT

K
IR

C
O

 M
A

N
IX

S
T

O
R

M
W

A
T

E
R

 M
A

N
A

G
E

M
E

N
T

 A
N

A
L

Y
S

IS

C
IV

IL
 E

N
G

IN
E

E
R

S
 &

 S
U

R
V

E
Y

O
R

S

2
7
0
8
  

B
R

ID
L
E

 R
O

A
D

B
L

O
O

M
F

IE
L

D
 H

IL
L

S
, 

M
IC

H
IG

A
N

  
4

8
3

0
4

(2
4
8
) 

4
2
5
-9

7
8
9

m
a
s
o
n
_
b
ro

w
n
@

s
b
c
g
lo

b
a
l.
n
e
t

M
A

SO
N

 B
R

O
W

N
S 

A
SS

O
C

IA
TE

S,
 L

LC

P
R

O
P

O
S

E
D

 P
A

R
K

IN
G

 L
O

T
 E

X
P

A
N

S
IO

N

B
R

O
S

E
, 

IN
C

SIDWELL IDENTIFICATION  NUMBER: PART OF 14-03-401-014

STORM WATER MANAGEMENT DESCRIPTION
PROPOSED PARKING LOT
STORM WATER TO SHEET FLOW TO LOW AREA IN THE PARKING LOT, THROUGH

SPILLWAYS TO A SEDIMENT FOREBAY AND LEVEL SPREADER. OUTLET TO THE

LOW EXISTING LOW AREA VIA  300 FEET SHEET FLOW THROUGH GRASS AND

TREED AREA - THE DEFINITION OF A VEGETATIVE FILTER STRIP - TO EXISTING

LOW AREA ON SITE FOR DETENTION.

OVERALL SITE ANALYSIS
THE SITE DRAINS INTO WETLAND "A" WHICH WAS PREVIOUSLY SIZED FOR THE

PINNACLE SITE PLAN, LOT A. THE DESIGN WAS FOR A TOTAL AREA OF 26.5

ACRES AND A POST DEVELOPMENT "C" FACTOR OF 0.75, RESULTING IN AN

EQUIVALENT  AREA OF 26.5 X 0.75 = 19.87.

THE PROPOSED PARKING LOT ADDS HARD SURFACES WHICH INCREASES THE

"C" TO 0.42.  THE PROPOSED EQUIVALENT AREA  = 11.63.

THEREFORE THERE WILL BE NO IMPACT ON THE EXISTING POND.

FOREBAY VOLUME  3630 x C x A    C = 0.95,  A=0.55 ACRE

VOLUME = 517 CF

1"=40'

0

40

80

FOREBAY/LEVEL SPREADER STORAGE TABLE

ELEV

AREA

(sq. ft.)

DEPT

H

(ft)

AVG END

INC. VOL.

(cu. ft.)

AVG END

TOTAL VOL.

(cu. ft.)

CONIC

INC. VOL.

(cu. ft.)

CONIC

TOTAL VOL.

(cu. ft.)

1,034.00 229.60 N/A N/A 0.00 N/A 0.00

1,035.00 1,700.96 1.00 965.28 965.28 851.83 851.83

2025-07-22 PER CITY COMMENTS

2025-07-25 PER CITY COMMENTS

2025-07-28 PER CITY COMMENTS



1696
1697

1700

1699

1698

1695

1710

1693

1694

1690

1694

1692

1689

1687

1728

1686

10
32

.0
1

1672

1671

1670

1669

1667

1668

1663

1664 1666

1682

1643

1707

1644

1029.34

1645

1023.45

1646

1023.62

1647

1022.91

1708

1709

1719

1648

1720

1650

16491651

1652

1678

1677

1665

1681

1680

1679

1673

1674

1675

1676

1653

1654

1655

1684

1685

1656

1744

1657

1683

1660

1662

1661

1748

1747

1659

1746

17431742

1740 1741
1745

1749

1738
1739

1734 1733

1735

1736

1732

1731

1727

1726

1737

1725

1723
1724

1729

1730

1714

1715

1716

1717

1711

1658

1704

17051706

1703

1702
1701

1038.83

10
38

.8
9

10
38

.3
5

10
38

.4
4

10
38

.9
1

10
38

.7
8

10
38

.2
4

10
38

.3
1

10
38

.8
5

10
38

.9
3

10
38

.4
5

10
38

.4
4

10
38

.9
9

10
39

.3
3

10
38

.9
4

10
39

.5
2

10
38

.8
0

10
38

.1
4

10
37

.8
9

10
38

.4
4

10
38

.3
2

10
37

.7
9

10
37

.5
7

10
38

.2
7

10
37

.9
5

10
37

.4
4

CB

1037.04

10
37

.5
3

10
37

.5
8

10
37

.8
9

10
38

.7
5

10
38

.3
410

38
.2

8

10
38

.8
1

10
38

.7
5

10
38

.3
21038.69

10
38

.9
9

10
39

.2
2

10
39

.7
2

10
38

.1
1

10
39

.2
1

10
37

.7
7

10
37

.5
3

10
37

.0
8

10
37

.4
8

10
37

.3
2

10
36

.5
6

10
36

1

10

10
32

.7
1

10
32

.9
8

10
32

.7
3

10
33

.1
6

10
33

.6
9

10
33

.8
6

10
33

.4
8

10
34

.1
410

34
.2

8

10
31

.4
9

10
31

.3
2

10
30

.7
4

10
31

.2
2

10
31

.8
2

10
31

.1
0

10
30

.4
9

10
30

.0
0

10
30

.3
4

10
30

.3
0

10
27

.4
5

10
28

.6
7

10
28

.3
3

10
28

.8
0

10
27

.4
1

10
27

.1
6

10
27

.5
1

10
28

.0
3

10
28

.3
1

10
27

.9
2

10
29

.6
9

CB

1029.15

10
28

.5
0

10
28

.7
9

10
26

.5
3

10
26

.2
9

10
25

.7
4

10
26

.0
8

10
25

.5
6

10
25

.1
1

10
24

.7
4

10
24

.8
8

10
25

.7
0

10
22

.9
7

10
22

.7
8

10
23

.0
5

10
23

.5
4

10
23

.1
7

10
23

.2
7

10
22

.7
9

10
23

.2
2

10
23

.6
6

10
23

.1
6

10
23

.3
5

10
25

.6
6

10
22

.5
1

10
22

.3
9

10
21

.7
9

10
22

.0
6

10
21

.6
7

10
20

.5
4

10
20

.5
3

10
20

.6
8

10
20

.3
1

10
21

.2
8

10
21

.5
5

10
22

.2
4

10
21

.9
9

10
37

.9
4

10
38

.1
0

10
38

.3
7

10
37

.4
1

10
35

.6
4

10
34

.0
3

10
30

.7
4

10
29

.2
6

10
30

.7
5

10
30

.3
2

10
30

.2
8

10
29

.3
7

10
28

.0
1

10
27

.1
8

10
25

.7
8

10
23

.9
1

10
21

.8
8

10
20

.2
8

10
32

.1
7

1020

1
0
3
0

1040

1
0
4
0

1018

1022
1024

1
0
2
6

1
0
2
8

1
0
3
2

1034

1034

1034

1036

1038

1
0
3
8

1
0
3
8

1042

1042

1044

1044

1020

1030

1030

1030

1016

1018

1022

1024

1024

1024

1026

1026

1026

1028

1028

1028

1032

10321032

1034

1034

1
0
3
6

1036

1038

10
38

1038

1
0
3
8

1020

1
0
2
0

1018

1
0
1
8

1022

1
0
2
2

1024

1
0
2
4

1
0
2
6

1
0
2
0

1
0
1
4

1
0
1
6

1
0
1
8

1
0
2
2

1010

10
10

1020

10
20

1012

10
12

1014

10
14

1016

10
16

1018

10
18

1022

10
22

10
24

1024

1026

1026

1028

1028

1
0
2
0

1020

10
14

1014

10
16

1016

10
18

1018

1
0
2
2

1022

1024

1024

10
26

1
0
2
6

1026

1028

1
0
2
8

1030

1024

1026

1028

1030

1040

1026

1028

1032

1034

1036

1038

1
2
" 

S
T

E
X

IS
T

. 
R

.O
.W

. 
L
IN

E

W
M

12" ST

1
2
" 

S
A

N

1
2
" S

T

1
2
" 

S
T

1022

1022

1036.15  G

1036.65  TC

1
0
2
8

1030

1030

1
0
3
0

1
0
3
0

1020
1022

1024
1026

1028

1030

1
0
3
0

1026

1026

1
0
2
6

1
0
2
8

1028

1
0
2
8

1030

1
0
3
2 1034

1026

1028

1030
1032

1034

3.6%

1018

1016

1014

1012

1018

20

9

19

12

12

3

1001

1002

1003

1004

1005

1006
1007

1008

1009
1010

1011

1012

1013

1014

1015

1016

1017

1018

1019

1020

1021

1022

1023

1024

1025
1026

1027

1028

1029
1030

1031

1032

1033

1034

1035

1036

1037

1038

1039
1040

1041

1042

1043 1044

1045

1046

1047

1048

1049

1050

1051

1052

1053

1054

1055

1056

1057

1058

1059 1060

1061

1062

1063

1064

1065

1066

1067
1068

1069

1070

1071

1072

1073

1074

1075

1076
1077

1078

1079

1080

1081

1082

1083

1084

1085
1086

1087

1088

1089

1090

1091

1092

1093

1094

1095

1096

1097

1098

1099

1100

1101

1102

1103

1104

1106

1107

1108

1109

1110

1111

1112

1113

1114

1115

1116

1117

1118

1119

1120

1121

1122

1123

1124

1125

1126

1127

1128

1129

1130

1131

1132

1133 1134

1135

1136

1137

1688

1030

1040

1040

1028

1032

1034

1034

1036

1036

1038

1038

1042

1042

1042
1
0
4
2

1
0
4
4

1044

10
46

1046

1
0
4
810

48

1040

1040

1040

1040

1036

1036

1038

1038

1042

1042

1042

1044

1
0
4
6

1
0
4
0

1042

1042

1042

1044

1046

1
0
4
0

1
0
4
0

1040

1040

1034

10
34

1
0
3
4

1036

1
0
3
6

10
36

1036

1038

1038

10
38

1
0
3
8

1042

1042

1030

1040

1032

1034

1036

1038

1038

1038

1042

1044

1046

1040

1034

1036

1038

10
42

10
44

1046

10
40

1
0
4
0

1040

1
0
4
2

1044

1
0
4
4

1
0
4
6

1
0
4
6

10
40

10
36

10
38

10
42

10
44

10
46

1036

1030

C
O

N
C

. 
C

U
R

B

C
O

N
C

. 
C

U
R

B

C
O

N
C

. 
C

U
R

B

C
O

N
C

. 
C

U
R

B

A
U

T
O

M
A

T
IO

N
 A

V
E

.

EXISTING PARKING LOT

SAW CUT & REMOVE CURB

2
5
 F

T
. 
F

R
O

N
T

L
A

N
D

S
C

A
P

E
 B

U
F

F
E

R

C
E

N
T

E
R

 L
IN

E
 O

F
 R

O
A

D

1
2
" 

S
T

1036.76  G
1037.26  T

C

12" WM

12" WM

1037.00  G
1037.50  T

C

1038

1036

1036

1032

1039.25  G

1039.75  TC

1041.38  G

1041.88  TC

1041.07  G
1041.57  T

C

1038.68  G
1039.18  T

C

SEDIM
ENT FOREBAY/LEVEL S

PREADER

1035

1034

1042

1044

1042

1040

1038

1036

1034
1032

1030

1036.20  T
C

1035.70  G

1038

1032

10
32

1040

PROP HYD FG: 1035.92 (match)

L
=

4
2

8
.3

4
',

R
=

6
8

6
.0

0
'

L
=

3
7
.8

7
',

R
=

5
1.

0
0

'

1038.00 G

1038.50 TC

1041.19  G

1041.69  TC

1040.49  G

1040.99  TC

1040.76  G
1041.26  T

C
1039.56  G

1040.06  T
C

1039.80 G
1040.30  T

C

1037.57  G
1038.07  T

C 1.0%

1.6
%

4
.0

%

2.
8%

1.5%

103802  G

1038.52  TC

1.0%

6.0%

1039.72  G

1040.22  TC

3.6%

1036.79  G
1037.29  T

C

1.0%

2.5%

3.0%

1037.88  TC

1037.38  G

1039.06  G

1039.56 TC

4
.0

%

4
.0

%

4
.0

%

4.0%

4
.0

%

3.6%

4.0%

4
.0

%

8 in x 6 in TS GV&W

67 lf 6" DI WM

1036.20  T
C

1035.70  G

1036.42   P

4.0%

SAW CUT 3' WIDE BUTT JOINT

STANDARD 6" C
ONC. C

URB &
 G

UTTER

ALL O
THER C

URB TO B
E 6" R

EVERSE

SEE D
ETAILS FOR S

PILLW
AY IN

FORMATIO
N

1038.96  G

1039.46  TC

1036.20  T
C

1035.70  G
3.6%

1038.72  TC

1038.22  G

4
.0

%

4
.0

%

1038.72  TC

1038.22  G

4
.0

%

1035

1:4

1
:3

1
:6

1
:6

1:4

1
:4

1
:6

1
:6

CONSTRUCT S
PILLW

AYS IN
TO

FOREBAY/LEVEL S
PREADER

SEE D
ETAILS, S

H. 9

0.
00 EX. SPOT ELEVATION

EX. STORM SEWER MANHOLE

EX. SANITARY SEWER MANHOLE

EX. CATCH BASIN

EX. LIGHT POLE

EX. UTILITY POLE

EX. ELEVATION CONTOUR

EX. STORM SEWER

EX. SANITARY SEWER

EX. WATER MAIN

EX. GAS MAIN

EX. UNDERGROUND
ELECTRIC/PHONE/CATV

PROP. STORM SEWER

PROP. SANITARY
SEWER SERVICE LEAD

PROP. WATER SERVICE LEAD

PROP. CATCH BASIN

LEGEND

PROP. CONCRETE PAVEMENT

000.00 PROP. SPOT ELEVATION

PROP. ELEVATION CONTOUR

PROP. SILT FENCE

TEMP. INLET PROTECTION FILTER

PROP. ASPHALT PAVEMENT

tag # EX. REGULATED TREE

K
IR

C
O

 M
A

N
IX

S
O

IL
 E

R
O

S
IO

N
 A

N
D

 S
E

D
IM

E
N

T
A

T
IO

N
 C

O
N

T
R

O
L

 P
L

A
N

C
IV

IL
 E

N
G

IN
E

E
R

S
 &

 S
U

R
V

E
Y

O
R

S

2
7
0
8
  

B
R

ID
L
E

 R
O

A
D

B
L

O
O

M
F

IE
L

D
 H

IL
L

S
, 

M
IC

H
IG

A
N

  
4

8
3

0
4

(2
4
8
) 

4
2
5
-9

7
8
9

m
a
s
o
n
_
b
ro

w
n
@

s
b
c
g
lo

b
a
l.
n
e
t

M
A

SO
N

 B
R

O
W

N
S 

A
SS

O
C

IA
TE

S,
 L

LC

P
R

O
P

O
S

E
D

 P
A

R
K

IN
G

 L
O

T
 E

X
P

A
N

S
IO

N

B
R

O
S

E
, 

IN
C

1"=20'

0

20

40

SIDWELL IDENTIFICATION  NUMBER: PART OF 14-03-401-014

Street Cleaning Schedule

Existing parking lot shall be scraped daily and swept weekly.

Erosion Control Notes

1.   All erosion and sedimentation control work shall conform to the current standards and specifications of the Oakland County Water

Resources Commissioner's Office and the City of Auburn Hills.

2.  Daily inspections shall be made by the Contractor for effectiveness of erosion and sedimentation control measures.  Any necessary

repairs shall be performed without delay.

3.  Erosion and any sedimentation from work on this site shall be contained within the work area and not allowed to collect on any off-site

area or in waterways.  Waterways include both natural and man-made ditches, streams, storm drains, lakes, ponds and wetlands.

4.  The Contractor shall apply temporary erosion and sedimentation control measures as directed on these plans and where otherwise

required by the work.  The Contractor shall remove temporary measures as soon as permanent stabilization of slopes, ditches and other

changes have been accomplished.

5.   Soil Erosion Control Practices will be established in early stages of construction by the Contractor. Sediment control practices will be

applied as a perimeter defense against any transporting of dirt off the work area.

6.  The Contractor shall preserve off-site natural vegetation as much as possible.

7.  Remove trees which interfere with berm construction.

8.  Stabilization of all disturbed areas shall be established using the appropriate vegetation within 5 days of completion of final grading.

9.  The Contractor shall sweep the existing streets surrounding the project site as needed.

10. The Contractor shall be responsible for dust control and shall provide all equipment and material to keep dust in check at all times.

The contractor shall respond immediately to any and all complaints.

Soil Erosion Control Construction Sequence: (ALL DATES ARE APPROXIMATE)

Day:

01                Install silt fencing

02-15 Rough Grade Site

16-22 Finish Grade Site

23-25           Install Concrete Curbing

26-28  Install both base and finish courses of asphalt

29-36 Install landscaping, restore all disturbed areas.

50 Remove silt fencing

Long Term Maintenance

(all work will be the responsibility of the Owner)
Forebay to inspected annually. Any built up silt/debris shall be removed offsite & legally disposed of. Forebay to be restored to it's original condition.

2025-07-22 PER CITY COMMENTS

2025-07-25 PER CITY COMMENTS

2025-07-28 PER CITY COMMENTS



10
38

.8
0

10
38

.1
4

10
37

.8
9

10
38

.4
4

10
38

.3
2

10
37

.7
9

10
37

.5
7

10
38

.2
7

10
37

.9
5

10
37

.4
4

CB
1037.04

10
37

.5
3

10
37

.5
8

10
37

.8
9

1

10
33

.4
8

10
31

.4
9

10
31

.3
2

10
30

.7
4

10
31

.2
2

10
31

.8
2

10
28

.3
1

10
27

.9
2

10
29

.6
9

CB
1029.15

10
28

.5
0

10
28

.7
9

10
37

.9
4

10
38

.1
0

10
38

.3
7

10
37

.4
1

10
35

.6
4

10
34

.0
3

10
30

.7
4

10
29

.2
6

10
30

.7
5

10
30

.3
2

10
30

.2
8

10
29

.3
7

10
28

.0
1

10
32

.1
7

1040

1
0
4
0

1036

1038

1
0
3
8

1
0
3
8

1042

1042

1044

1044

10

1030

1030

1022

1024

1026

1028

1028

1032

1032

1032

1034

1036

1
0
3
8

1038

1030

1040

1026

1028

1032

1034

1036

1038

1
2
" 

S
T

W
M

1036.15  G
1036.65  TC

044

A
U

T
O

M
A

T
IO

N
 A

V
E

.

1
2
" 

S
T

EBAY/L
EVEL 

SPR
EAD

ER

G

PROP HYD FG: 1035.92 (match)

L
=

4
2

8
.3

4
',

R
=

6
8

10
37

.5
7 

 G

10
38

.0
7 

 T
C

1.0%

2
.8

%

1.
5%

8 in x 6 in TS GV&W

67 lf 6" DI WM

B
& G

U
TTER

EVER
SE

FO
R
M

ATIO
N

1

1:3

1:6

1:6

DATUM ELEV

1024.000

1028

1032

1036

0+000+50

67 lf 6" DI WM

(TEE TO HYD)

5
.5

' 
M

IN
.

STD. FIRE HYD

FG = 1035.92

(MATCH EX.)

8" x 6" TS, GV & W

FG = 1032.02

(MATCH EX.)

E
X
IS

TIN
G

 G
R
O

U
N
D

103

1
0
3
4

1
0
3
6

1
0
3
8

1030

1040

1032

1034

1036

1038

1036.15  G

1036.65  TC

20

1040

1040

1034

1034

1036

1036

1038

1038

1042

1036.76  G

1037.26  TC

1032

SEDIMENT FOREBAY/LEVEL SPREADER

1035

1034

1036.20  TC

1035.70  G

1038

2

1040

1.5%

2.5%

3.0%

1036.20  TC

1035.70  G

4
.0

%

STANDARD 6" CONC. CURB & GUTTER

ALL OTHER CURB TO BE 6" REVERSE

SEE DETAILS FOR SPILLWAY INFORMATION

1036.20  TC

1035.70  G

1035

DROP CURB HGT TO 0"

1"-3" LIMESTONE

6" THICK

3.0'

4.0'

1

1

1
:3

1
:6

1
:6

1
:6

1
:6

1034

1036

1035
1

6

1"-3" LIMESTONE

6" THICK

CURB DROP TO 0" HGT

K
IR

C
O

 M
A

N
IX

S
IT

E
 D

E
T

A
IL

S
 A

N
D

 W
A

T
E

R
 L

IN
E

 P
R

O
F

IL
E

C
IV

IL
 E

N
G

IN
E

E
R

S
 &

 S
U

R
V

E
Y

O
R

S

2
7
0
8
  

B
R

ID
L
E

 R
O

A
D

B
L

O
O

M
F

IE
L

D
 H

IL
L

S
, 

M
IC

H
IG

A
N

  
4

8
3

0
4

(2
4
8
) 

4
2
5
-9

7
8
9

m
a
s
o
n
_
b
ro

w
n
@

s
b
c
g
lo

b
a
l.
n
e
t

M
A

SO
N

 B
R

O
W

N
S 

A
SS

O
C

IA
TE

S,
 L

LC
P

R
O

P
O

S
E

D
 P

A
R

K
IN

G
 L

O
T

 E
X

P
A

N
S

IO
N

B
R

O
S

E
, 

IN
C

SIDWELL IDENTIFICATION  NUMBER: PART OF 14-03-401-014

8
"

2
 1

/2
"

1
 1

/2
"

1"=20'

0

20

40

WATER MAIN PLAN

WATER MAIN PROFILE

SCALE: HOR   1"=20'

             VERT  1" = 2'

COVER OVER EXISTING AND PROPOSED WATER MAIN SHALL BE MAINTAINED AT 5.5 FEET.
2025-07-22 PER CITY COMMENTS

CONC. CURB PER CITY DETAIL

3' 3'

25' C-C

FRONT ELEVATION

NO SCALE

PLAN

1"=20' CURB DROP

TO 0" HGT

SECTION THRU FOREBAY/LEVEL SPREADER

1' = 5'

2025-07-25 PER CITY COMMENTS

SPILLWAYS INTO FOREBAY/LEVEL SPREADER

READILY ACCESSIBLE PARKING SPACE SIGNAGE

2025-07-28 PER CITY COMMENTS













W
M

20

9

19

12

12

3

A
U

T
O

M
A

T
IO

N
 A

V
E

.

REMOVE CURB

WM

SEDIM
ENT FOREBAY

1035
1034

1042

1044

1042

1040

1038

1036

1034
1032

1030

1038

10
32

1040

1696
1697

1699

1698

1695

1710

1686

1672

1029.34

1038.83

10
38

.8
9

10
38

.3
5

10
38

.4
4

10
38

.9
1

10
38

.7
8

10
38

.2
4

10
38

.3
1

10
38

.8
5

10
38

.9
3

10
38

.4
5

10
38

.4
4

10
38

.9
9

10
39

.3
3

10
38

.9
4

10
39

.5
2

10
38

.8
0

10
38

.1
4

10
37

.8
9

10
38

.4
4

10
38

.3
2

10
37

.7
9

10
37

.5
7

10
38

.2
7

10
37

.9
5

10
37

.4
4

CB

1037.04

10
37

.5
3

10
37

.5
8

10
37

.8
9

10
38

.7
5

10
38

.3
410

38
.2

8

10
38

.8
1

10
38

.7
5

10
38

.3
21038.69

10
38

.9
9

10
39

.2
2

10
39

.7
2

10
38

1

10
39

.2
1

10
34

.1
410

34
.2

8

10
31

.4
9

10
31

.3
2

10
30

.7
4

10
31

2

10
28

.3
1

10
27

.9
2

10
29

.6
9

CB

1029.15

10
28

.5
0

10
28

.7
9

10
26

.5
3

10
26

.2
9

10
25

.7
4

10
26

.0
8

10

10
25

.6
6

10
37

.9
4

10
38

.1
0

10
38

.3
7

10
37

.4
1

10
35

.6
4

10
34

.0
3

10
30

.7
4

10
29

.2
6

10
30

.7
5

10
30

.3
2

10
30

.2
8

10
29

.3
7

10
28

.0
1

10
27

.1
8

10
25

.7
8

10
32

.1
7

1009
1010

1011

1012

1013

1014

1026

1027

1028

1029
1030

1032

1033

1034

1041

1042

1053

1054

1055

1056

1057

1058

1059 1060

1061

1062

1063

1064

1066

1067
1068

1069

1089

1091

1092

1093

1094

1095
1107

1108

1109

1110

L
=

4
2

8
.3

4
',

R
=

6
8

6
.0

0
'

EXISTING CRIMSON
 KING MAPLE
- LESS THAN 6",
 TO BE SAVED

EXISTING PARKING LOT
EXISTING TREES
TO REMAIN, TYP.

EXISTING TREES
TO REMAIN, TYP.

SEEDED LAWN, TYP.

8 - PA

4 - LEC

5 - ARP

SEEDED LAWN, TYP.

SEEDED LAWN, TYP.

PARKING LOT
LIGHTS & SECURITY
CAMERA POLES

SEE ISLANDS
LANDSCAPING
DETAIL (THIS SHEET)

2 - LEC

2 - LEC

3 - ARP

1
2
" 

S
T

1
2
" 

S
T

WM

PROP HYD FG: 1035.92 (match)

67 lf 6" DI WM

CB

8 in x 6 in TS GV&W

1707

10 - KFG

LIGHT POLE WITH
SECURITY CAMERA, TYP.

33 - EGC

CONCEPTUAL LANDSCAPE PLAN

P
A

T
R

IC
K

 S
.

A
N

D
   

  A
SS

O
C

IA
T

E
S

P
.O

. B
ox

 5
42

L
ak

e 
O

ri
on

, M
ic

hi
ga

n 
48

36
1-

05
42

P
: 2

48
.8

14
.8

08
2

A
LL

 D
ES

IG
N
S
, 

D
ET

A
IL

S
 A

N
D

 N
O

TE
S
 A

R
E

TH
E 

PR
O

PE
R
TY

 O
F 

PA
TR

IC
K 

S
. 

C
O

N
R
O

Y
A
N
D

 A
S
S
O

C
IA

TE
S
 A

N
D

 L
A
N
D

S
C
A
PE

M
A
N
A
G

EM
EN

T 
S
O

LU
TI

O
N
S
 A

N
D

 A
R
E

IN
TE

N
D

ED
 F

O
R
 U

S
E 

O
N
 T

H
IS

 S
PE

C
IF

IC
PR

O
JE

C
T.

  
A
N
Y 

U
S
E 

O
F 

TH
IS

IN
FO

R
M

A
TI

O
N
 O

N
 O

TH
ER

 P
R
O

JE
C
TS

 O
R

A
N
Y 

R
EP

R
O

D
U
C
TI

O
N
S
 W

H
A
TS

O
EV

ER
W

IT
H
O

U
T 

TH
E 

EX
PR

ES
S
ED

 W
R
IT

TE
N

PE
R
M

IS
S
IO

N
 F

R
O

M
 B

O
TH

 P
A
TR

IC
K 

S
.

C
O

N
R
O

Y 
A
N
D

 A
S
S
O

C
IA

TE
S
 A

N
D

LA
N
D

S
C
A
PE

 M
A
N
A
G

EM
EN

T 
S
O

LU
TI

O
N
S
 IS

S
TR

IC
TL

Y 
PR

O
H
IB

IT
ED

.

2025

L 1
25 102

B
R

O
SE

 P
A

R
K

IN
G

 L
O

T
 A

D
D

IT
IO

N
A

U
B

U
R

N
 H

IL
L

S,
 M

I

K
IR

K
O

 M
A

N
IX

10
1 

W
. B

IG
 B

E
A

V
E

R
, S

T
E

. 2
00

T
R

O
Y

, M
I 

48
08

4

C
O

N
C

E
P

T
U

A
L

 L
A

N
D

SC
A

P
E

 P
L

A
N

N

 Conroy

TYPICAL PARKING LOT ISLAND PLAN



W
M

12

1
2

" 
S

A
N

20

9

19

12

12

3

A
U

T
O

M
A

T
IO

N
 A

V
E

.

REMOVE CURB

WM

SEDIM
ENT FOREBAY

1035
1034

1042

1044

1042

1040

1038

1036

1034
1032

1030

1038

10
32

1040

FG=1030.34        (match)

1696
1697

1699

1698

1695

1710

1693

1694

1690

1694

1692

1689

1688

1687

1686

1672

1029.34

1023.45

1023.62

1038.83

10
38

.8
9

10
38

.3
5

10
38

.4
4

10
38

.9
1

10
38

.7
8

10
38

.2
4

10
38

.3
1

10
38

.8
5

10
38

.9
3

10
38

.4
5

10
38

.4
4

10
38

.9
9

10
39

.3
3

10
38

.9
4

10
39

.5
2

10
38

.8
0

10
38

.1
4

10
37

.8
9

10
38

.4
4

10
38

.3
2

10
37

.7
9

10
37

.5
7

10
38

.2
7

10
37

.9
5

10
37

.4
4

CB

1037.04

10
37

.5
3

10
37

.5
8

10
37

.8
9

10
38

.7
5

10
38

.3
410

38
.2

8

10
38

.8
1

10
38

.7
5

10
38

.3
21038.69

10
38

.9
9

10
39

.2
2

10
39

.7
2

10
38

.1
1

10
39

.2
1

10
37

.7
7

10
37

.5
3

10
33

8

10
33

.4
8

10
34

.1
410

34
.2

8

10
31

.4
9

10
31

.3
2

10
30

.7
4

10
31

.2
2

10
31

.8
2

10
31

.1
0

10
27

.5
1

10
28

.0
3

10
28

.3
1

10
27

.9
2

10
29

.6
9

CB

1029.15

10
28

.5
0

10
28

.7
9

10
26

.5
3

10
26

.2
9

10
25

.7
4

10
26

.0
8

10
25

.5
6

10
25

.1
1

10
23

.0
5

10
23

.5
4

10
23

.1
7

10
23

.2
2

10
23

.6
6

10
23

.1
6

10
23

.3
5

10
25

.6
6

10
37

.9
4

10
38

.1
0

10
38

.3
7

10
37

.4
1

10
35

.6
4

10
34

.0
3

10
30

.7
4

10
29

.2
6

10
30

.7
5

10
30

.3
2

10
30

.2
8

10
29

.3
7

10
28

.0
1

10
27

.1
8

10
25

.7
8

10
23

.9
1

88

10
32

.1
7

1001

1002

1003

1004

1005

1006
1007

1008

1009
1010

1011

1012

1013

1014

1015

1016

1017

1018

1019

1020

1021

1022

1023

1024

1025
1026

1027

1028

1029
1030

1031

1032

1033

1034

1035

1036

1037

1038

1039
1040

1041

1042

1043
1044

1045

1046

1047

1048

1049

1050

1051

1052

1053

1054

1055

1056

1057

1058

1059 1060

1061

1062

1063

1064

1065

1066

1067
1068

1069

1079

1080

1081

1082

1083

1084

1085
1086

1087

1088

1089

1090

1091

1092

1093

1094

1095

1096

1097

1098

1099

1100

1101

1102

1103

1104

1106

1107

1108

1109

1110

1115

1116

1117

1118

1119

1120

1121

1122

1123

1124

1125

1126

1127

1128

1129

1130

1131

1132

1133 1134

1135

1136

1137

L
=

4
2

8
.3

4
',

R
=

6
8

6
.0

0
'

',
R

=
5
1.

0
0

'

EXISTING CRIMSON KING MAPLE
- LESS THAN 6", TO BE SAVED

EXISTING PARKING LOT

TREE PROTECTION FENCE, TYP.

TREE PROTECTION FENCE, TYP.

1
2
" 

S
T

1
2
" 

S
T

WM

PROP HYD FG: 1035.92 (match)

67 lf 6" DI WM

CB

8 in x 6 in TS GV&W

1707

WOODLAND PRESERVATION PLAN TREE SURVEY DATA PROVIDED BY:
Conroy and Associates
& Michigan Land Surveying

KEY:

TREE TO BE REMOVED

TREE TO BE SAVED1014

1015

P
A

T
R

IC
K

 S
.

A
N

D
   

  A
SS

O
C

IA
T

E
S

P
.O

. B
ox

 5
42

L
ak

e 
O

ri
on

, M
ic

hi
ga

n 
48

36
1-

05
42

P
: 2

48
.8

14
.8

08
2

A
LL

 D
ES

IG
N
S
, 

D
ET

A
IL

S
 A

N
D

 N
O

TE
S
 A

R
E

TH
E 

PR
O

PE
R
TY

 O
F 

PA
TR

IC
K 

S
. 

C
O

N
R
O

Y
A
N
D

 A
S
S
O

C
IA

TE
S
 A

N
D

 L
A
N
D

S
C
A
PE

M
A
N
A
G

EM
EN

T 
S
O

LU
TI

O
N
S
 A

N
D

 A
R
E

IN
TE

N
D

ED
 F

O
R
 U

S
E 

O
N
 T

H
IS

 S
PE

C
IF

IC
PR

O
JE

C
T.

  
A
N
Y 

U
S
E 

O
F 

TH
IS

IN
FO

R
M

A
TI

O
N
 O

N
 O

TH
ER

 P
R
O

JE
C
TS

 O
R

A
N
Y 

R
EP

R
O

D
U
C
TI

O
N
S
 W

H
A
TS

O
EV

ER
W

IT
H
O

U
T 

TH
E 

EX
PR

ES
S
ED

 W
R
IT

TE
N

PE
R
M

IS
S
IO

N
 F

R
O

M
 B

O
TH

 P
A
TR

IC
K 

S
.

C
O

N
R
O

Y 
A
N
D

 A
S
S
O

C
IA

TE
S
 A

N
D

LA
N
D

S
C
A
PE

 M
A
N
A
G

EM
EN

T 
S
O

LU
TI

O
N
S
 IS

S
TR

IC
TL

Y 
PR

O
H
IB

IT
ED

.

2025

WP 1
25 102

B
R

O
SE

 P
A

R
K

IN
G

 L
O

T
 A

D
D

IT
IO

N
A

U
B

U
R

N
 H

IL
L

S,
 M

I

K
IR

K
O

 M
A

N
IX

10
1 

W
. B

IG
 B

E
A

V
E

R
, S

T
E

. 2
00

T
R

O
Y

, M
I 

48
08

4

W
O

O
D

L
A

N
D

 P
R

E
SE

R
V

A
T

IO
N

 P
L

A
N

N

 Conroy

TREE PROTECTION DETAIL

TREE PROTECTION NOTES

Identify on site all trees or areas of trees which are being proposed to be preserved with fluorescent
orange spray paint (chalk base) or by red flagging tape.

Erect barriers of four (4) foot high fencing staked with metal "T-posts" five (5) feet on center or all such
trees or groups of trees proposed to remain

Protective barriers are to be erected prior to any clearing or grubbing on the site, and barriers are to
remain in tact until approved by the City to be removed, or when a Certificate of Occupancy is issued.

Keep clear all debris or fill, equipment, and material from within the required protective barrier.

During construction, the owner, developer, or agent shall not cause or permit any activity within the fence
line of any protected tree or group of trees, including, but not limited to, the storage of equipment,
dumpsters, boulders, dirt, and excavated material, building or waste material, or any other material
harmful to the life of a tree.

No damaging attachment, wires (other than cable wires for trees), signs, or permits may be fastened to
any tree protected by this Ordinance.



WOODLAND PRESERVATION TREE LIST

TREE SURVEY DATA PROVIDED BY:
Conroy and Associates
& Michigan Land Surveying

P
A

T
R

IC
K

 S
.

A
N

D
   

  A
SS

O
C

IA
T

E
S

P
.O

. B
ox

 5
42

L
ak

e 
O

ri
on

, M
ic

hi
ga

n 
48

36
1-

05
42

P
: 2

48
.8

14
.8

08
2

A
LL

 D
ES

IG
N
S
, 
D

ET
A
IL

S
 A

N
D

 N
O

TE
S
 A

R
E

TH
E 

PR
O

PE
R
TY

 O
F 

PA
TR

IC
K 

S
. 
C

O
N
R
O

Y
A
N
D

 A
S
S
O

C
IA

TE
S
 A

N
D

 L
A
N
D

S
C
A
PE

M
A
N
A
G

EM
EN

T 
S
O

LU
TI

O
N
S
 A

N
D

 A
R
E

IN
TE

N
D

ED
 F

O
R
 U

S
E 

O
N
 T

H
IS

 S
PE

C
IF

IC
PR

O
JE

C
T.

  
A
N
Y 

U
S
E 

O
F 

TH
IS

IN
FO

R
M

A
TI

O
N
 O

N
 O

TH
ER

 P
R
O

JE
C

TS
 O

R
A
N
Y 

R
EP

R
O

D
U
C

TI
O

N
S
 W

H
A
TS

O
EV

ER
W

IT
H
O

U
T 

TH
E 

EX
PR

ES
S
ED

 W
R
IT

TE
N

PE
R
M

IS
S
IO

N
 F

R
O

M
 B

O
TH

 P
A
TR

IC
K 

S
.

C
O

N
R
O

Y 
A
N
D

 A
S
S
O

C
IA

TE
S
 A

N
D

LA
N
D

S
C
A
PE

 M
A
N
A
G

EM
EN

T 
S
O

LU
TI

O
N
S
 IS

S
TR

IC
TL

Y 
PR

O
H
IB

IT
ED

.

2025

WP 2
25 102

B
R

O
SE

 P
A

R
K

IN
G

 L
O

T
 A

D
D

IT
IO

N
A

U
B

U
R

N
 H

IL
L

S,
 M

I

K
IR

K
O

 M
A

N
IX

10
1 

W
. B

IG
 B

E
A

V
E

R
, S

T
E

. 2
00

T
R

O
Y

, M
I 

48
08

4

W
O

O
D

L
A

N
D

 P
R

E
SE

R
V

A
T

IO
N

 T
R

E
E

 L
IS

T

TREE SUMMARY
TOTAL TREES ON SITE: 141
TREES TO BE SAVED:   51

REGULATED TREES TO BE REMOVED:        54
NON-REGULATED TREES TO BE REMOVED: 34
DEAD TREES TO BE REMOVED:     2

REPLACEMENT TREES REQUIRED:   54

CONDITION KEY:
G GOOD
F FAIR
P POOR
D DEAD

REGULATED KEY:
Y YES
N NO

Brose Tree Identification

Tag # Botanical Name Common Name Size in Inches Condition Status Regulated Tag # Botanical Name Common Name Size in Inches Condition Status Regulated

1001 Quercus Oak 11 F Remove Y 1080 Prunus Choke Cherry 11 F Remove Y

1002 Prunus Choke Cherry 15 F Remove Y 1081 Quercus Oak 19 F Remove Y

1003 Quercus Oak 7 F Remove Y 1082 Prunus Choke Cherry 4,5,6 F Remove Y

1004 Quercus Oak 12,13 F Remove Y 1083 Quercus Oak 12 F Remove Y

1005 Quercus Oak 10 F Remove Y 1084 Quercus Oak 12 F Remove Y

1006 Quercus Oak 13 F Remove Y 1085 Carya Hickory 12 F Remove Y

1007 Prunus Choke Cherry 10 F Remove Y 1086 Prunus Choke Cherry 10 F Remove Y

1008 Quercus Oak 16 F Remove Y 1087 Quercus Oak 11 F Remove Y

1009 Quercus Oak 16 F Save Y 1088 Quercus Oak 10 F Remove Y

1010 Tilia Basswood 8 F Save Y 1089 Quercus Oak 11 F Save Y

1011 Quercus Oak 9 F Save Y 1090 Betula pendula European White Birch 11 F Remove N

1012 Quercus Oak 14 F Save Y 1091 Quercus Oak 10 F Save Y

1013 Quercus Oak 14 F Save Y 1092 Ulmus pumila Siberian Elm 6 F Save N

1014 Quercus Oak 11 F Save Y 1093 Quercus Oak 9 F Save Y

1015 Quercus Oak 11 F Remove Y 1094 Quercus Oak 14 F Save Y

1016 Ulmus pumila Siberian Elm 9 F Remove N 1095 Quercus Oak 7 F Save Y

1017 Prunus Choke Cherry 9 F Remove Y 1096 Quercus Oak 6,8,9 F Remove Y

1018 Quercus Oak 11 F Remove Y 1097 Quercus Oak 6 F Remove Y

1019 Populus Poplar 7 F Save N 1098 Quercus Oak 11 F Remove Y

1020 Populus Poplar 10 F Remove N 1099 Quercus Oak 9 F Remove Y

1021 Populus Poplar 7 F Remove N 1100 Prunus Choke Cherry 4,5,7 F Remove Y

1022 Prunus Choke Cherry 9,9,11 F Remove Y 1101 Quercus Oak 21 F Remove Y

1023 Dead D Remove N/A 1102 Quercus Oak 10 F Remove Y

1024 Populus Poplar 11 F Remove N 1103 Ulmus pumila Siberian Elm 7 F Remove N

1025 Populus Poplar 10 F Remove N 1104 Acer rubrum Red Maple 4,7 F Remove Y

1026 Populus Poplar 12 F Save N 1105 Acer rubrum Red Maple 7 F Remove Y

1027 Quercus Oak 6 F Save Y 1106 Quercus Oak 7 F Remove Y

1028 Populus Poplar 11 F Save N 1107 Prunus Choke Cherry 9 F Save Y

1029 Populus Poplar 11 F Save N 1108 Quercus Oak 12 F Save Y

1030 Populus Poplar 11 F Save N 1109 Quercus Oak 10 F Save Y

1031 Populus Poplar 12 F Remove N 1110 Quercus Oak 11 F Save Y

1032 Populus Poplar 15 F Save N 1115 Quercus Oak 17 F Remove Y

1033 Quercus Oak 7 F Save Y 1116 Quercus Oak 11 F Remove Y

1034 Robinia Black Locust 17 F Save N 1117 Quercus Oak 15 F Remove Y

1035 Populus Poplar 11 F Remove N 1118 Populus Poplar 9 F Remove N

1036 Populus Poplar 9 F Remove N 1119 Pyrus Pear 7,9 F Remove N

1037 Populus Poplar 11 F Remove N 1120 Populus Poplar 8 F Remove N

1038 Populus Poplar 7 F Remove N 1121 Prunus Choke Cherry 7,9 F Remove Y

1039 Populus Poplar 10 F Remove N 1122 Populus Poplar 13 F Remove N

1040 Populus Poplar 8 F Remove N 1123 Prunus Choke Cherry 9 F Remove Y

1041 Populus Poplar 15 F Save N 1124 Populus Poplar 6,7 F Remove N

1042 Acer rubrum Red Maple 11 F Save Y 1125 Quercus Oak 10 F Remove Y

1043 Populus Poplar 11 F Remove N 1126 Quercus Oak 11 F Remove Y

1044 Populus Poplar 7 F Remove N 1127 Acer rubrum Red Maple 7 F Remove Y

1045 Populus Poplar 9 F Remove N 1128 Acer rubrum Red Maple 6 F Remove Y

1046 Populus Poplar 10 F Remove N 1129 Quercus Oak 11,13 F Remove Y

1047 Populus Poplar 8 F Remove N 1130 Acer rubrum Red Maple 13,13 F Remove Y

1048 Populus Poplar 10 F Remove N 1131 Prunus Choke Cherry 4,5,6,7 F Remove Y

1049 Populus Poplar 10 F Remove N 1132 Prunus Choke Cherry 10 F Remove Y

1050 Populus Poplar 10 F Remove N 1133 Quercus Oak 7 P Remove Y

1051 Populus Poplar 10 F Remove N 1134 Malus Crabapple 4,8,10 F Remove Y

1052 Populus Poplar 10 F Remove N 1135 Quercus Oak 11 F Remove Y

1053 Populus Poplar 11 F Save N 1136 Quercus Oak 13 F Remove Y

1054 Populus Poplar 10 F Save N 1137 Quercus Oak 16 F Remove Y

1055 Populus Poplar 11 F Save N 1672 Quercus Oak 11 F Save Y

1056 Populus Poplar 8 F Save N 1686 Malus Crabapple 6,4,4,3 F Save Y

1057 Populus Poplar 7 F Save N 1687 Malus Crabapple 6, 3 F Remove Y

1058 Populus Poplar 10 F Save N 1688 Quercus Oak 6 G Remove Y

1059 Populus Poplar 8 F Save N 1689 Quercus Oak 9 G Remove Y

1060 Populus Poplar 9 F Save N 1690 Dead D Remove N/A

1061 Populus Poplar 7 F Save N 1691 Prunus Cherry 11 P Remove Y

1062 Populus Poplar 8 F Save N 1692 Robinia Black Locust 18 F Remove N

1063 Populus Poplar 11 F Save N 1693 Ulmus pumila Siberian Elm 9 F Remove N

1064 Populus Poplar 11 F Save N 1694 Ulmus pumila Siberian Elm 8 F Remove N

1065 Quercus Oak 7,8,25 F Remove Y 1695 Robinia Black Locust 18,10 F Save N

1066 Prunus Choke Cherry 12 F Save Y 1696 Prunus Cherry 6,5,3,3 F Save Y

1067 Robinia Black Locust 7 F Save N 1697 Robinia Black Locust 6 F Save N

1068 Quercus Oak 8 F Save Y 1698 Quercus Oak 7 F Save Y

1069 Populus Poplar 9 P Save N 1699 Robinia Black Locust 15 F Save N

1079 Ulmus pumila Siberian Elm 3,6 F Remove N 1707 Populus Poplar 17 G Save N

1710 Quercus Oak Save Y



2025-2030 action plan

Draft 07-28-2025



The 2025-2030 Action Plan is our commitment to our residents, demonstrating that we are
continuing our efforts to become an Age-Friendly community ideal for residents of all ages. The
ongoing community conversations have consistently revealed areas for improvement. We learned
that gaps in communication with residents persist, that more educational programs are necessary,
and that there are more effective ways to prepare the community to stay safe.

Upon approval of our Action Plan, we aim to continue creating partnerships that will strengthen our
community and explore opportunities that will add value to this initiative. We are very proud of the
work that we have done and the work that we will continue to do. We are grateful for the support and
participation of all members of our Auburn Hills community. We look forward to becoming an even
greater community for our residents to work, live, play, and age.

Sincerely,

Brian W. Marzolf

On behalf of the City of Auburn Hills, we would like to present to the Michigan AARP our 2025-2030
Age-Friendly Action Plan. Since enrolling in the Age-Friendly Communities Network, accomplishing
the 2015-2020 Age-Friendly Plan, and beginning the 2025-2030 plan, City staff, residents, local
nonprofits, and organizations have come together to create a shared vision and work toward making
the City an accessible community for all. 

Dear Mr. Harris,

Mr. Ramón Harris, State Director

July 22, 2025

Michigan AARP
309 N. Washington Square #110
Lansing, MI 48933

Mayor of the City of Auburn Hills

Page 2Age Fr iendly 2025 Act ion Plan

Throughout this process, we have gained a deeper understanding of the residents we represent and
what we can do to help them overcome the challenges they face, ultimately improving their overall
quality of life. Through community conversations, residents have helped identify gaps that the City
had the resources to address but had not previously recognized. The plans put our goals into writing
and outline clear strategies to achieve these milestones in a timely and effective manner.



AGE-FRIENDLY AUBURN HILLS      

Page 3Age Fr iendly 2025 Act ion Plan

INTRODUCTION 

WHAT WAS ACHIEVED?

WHY IS AGE-FRIENDLY IMPORTANT?

ACKNOWLEDGEMENTS

AGE-FRIENDLY AUBURN HILLS

ACTION PLAN DEVELOPMENT

4

5

6

7

8

8

COMMUNITY ENGAGEMENT         
COMMUNITY CONVERSATIONS

AGE-FRIENDLY LEADERSHIP TEAM

KEY FINDINGS

WHERE DO WE GO FROM HERE?

9

9

10

13

ACTION PLAN                          
ACTION ITEMS INDEX

DOMAIN: SOCIAL AND CIVIC PARTICIPATION

DOMAIN: COMMUNICATION AND INFORMATION

DOMAIN: PUBLIC SAFETY AND EMERGENCY PREPAREDNESS

14

15

19

24

ADDITIONAL INFORMATION       
CONCLUSION

LIST OF COMMUNITY PARTICIPANTS

ADDITIONAL INFORMATION

28

28

29

TABLE OF CONTENTS



The 2015-2025 Age-Friendly Action Plan began with seven
community conversations, a survey of  Auburn Hills
residents age 50 and above, five focus groups, and a
business roundtable. Ways to improve the City, or action
items, were derived from the comments, suggestions, and
complaints of  residents from these community
conversations and focus groups. Through three
development meetings, the community identified 20 action
items along with the steps, resources, obstacles, solutions,
possible partners, timeframe, and indicators of  success.
Between 2015 and 2025, the responsible City departments
worked on these action items and successfully
accomplished 17 out of  the 20. This was accomplished
through the COVID-19 pandemic, with assistance from
community partners and volunteers. In 2017, the City of
Auburn Hills received the Planning Excellence Award for
Best Practices from the Michigan Association of  Planning.
With an 85% accomplishment rate of  the action items, the
Age-Friendly Action Plan was deemed successful. 

For this reason, it was decided that the 2025-2030 Age-
Friendly Action Plan would follow the same outline. It will
follow the same cycle, involving residents, City employees,
and community leaders, to identify areas for improvement
and then commit to initiatives that make the City more age-
friendly and retain citizens for life. 

According to the 2020 Census Data from the Southeast
Council of  Michigan Governments (SEMCOG), Auburn
Hills has 24,360 residents, representing a 13% increase
since 2010. 3,379 of  those residents are 60 and older. By
2040, SEMCOG projects that number to increase to 5,575,
representing a steady 6% increase since 2010, when there
were 2,011 seniors. Auburn Hills is a growing community
with an aging population, and it has taken steps to become
more accessible for all ages. 

In August 2013, the City of  Auburn Hills enrolled in the
American Association of  Retired Persons (AARP) Age-
Friendly Communities Network and became the first
municipality from the State of  Michigan to be accepted into
this network. In 2014, the City of  Auburn Hills and the
Senior Services Department began the five-year, four-
stage process of  becoming a City where all generations
are welcome. 

Page 4Age Fr iendly 2025 Act ion Plan

INTRODUCTION

COMMUNITY PROFILE

The City of Auburn Hills is a diverse community committed to innovation and growth in southeast Michigan. It’s home to
26,000 residents, as well as a workday population of approximately 85,000. The City of Auburn Hills is often called the
“Little Big Town,” being a good mix between a City and the suburbs with nine parks, a revitalized downtown district, a
welcoming City complex with a library and community center, one of the state’s largest destination shopping centers,
Great Lakes Crossing Outlets, and three colleges and universities. Today, the City is recognized, among other
accolades, as an "Active Adult Community" and a "Community for a Lifetime" that embraces a high quality of life for all its
residents and the workforce of its businesses, which is expected to support steady population growth and nonresidential
development for decades to come. For more information, visit www.auburnhills.org.



Page 5Age Fr iendly 2025 Act ion Plan

WHAT WAS ACHIEVED?

The 2015-2020 Age-Friendly Action Plan achieved 17 out of  its 20 action items, which increased awareness of  City
programs, increased communication, and improved the overall livability of  the City. 

The Action Plan built awareness of  Age-Friendly housing options and increased ridership of  the bus program.
Appointments were available through the senior services department to help seniors explore different housing options
and research various housing topics. The bus transportation program experienced a 3% annual increase in ridership until
the COVID-19 pandemic. There was a dramatic drop in ridership during the COVID-19 pandemic, which has since
returned to pre-pandemic numbers.

The Action Plan also built important relationships and partnerships. A unique relationship developed between Oakland
University’s Physical Therapy Department and the Senior Services Department, specifically the Hop UP PT or Home-
based Older Persons Upstreaming Physical Therapy initiative. This program started as an opportunity for students to
partner with seniors at risk of  falling and work with them to improve their balance. It has since grown into an extensive
research project and has become an insurance-covered benefit. Another partnership that developed provided 720 boxes
of  shelf-stable food for 235 seniors. FCA Auburn Hills, an automobile company, donated 19,000 pounds of  shelf-stable
food, and with the help of  40 volunteers, it was packed and delivered over the span of  three days. 

The most important aspect of  the Age-Friendly Action Plan was that it sparked the conversation on livability and has
continued to foster ongoing communication. It’s a living document used in making land-use and service-level decisions. It
has opened lines of  communication with residents and brought this information to the attention of  the City Council. For
more information on the 2015-2020 Age-Friendly Action Plan results, visit www.auburnhills.org.

AGE-FRIENDLY PLANNING ASSISTANT

To support the analysis and development phases of  the Age-Friendly Communities Network, the Community Development
Department approved the assistance of  two interns from Oakland University. These interns were responsible for
advancing the development of  the Age-Friendly Action Plan. Their duties included conducting community conversations,
coordinating community development meetings, preparing reports, and other tasks that support the Age-Friendly Auburn
Hills initiative. The two interns came from the Oakland University School of  Business Administration and the Master’s
School of  Public Health.   



The Age-Friendly Action Plan helps the City of Auburn Hills identify and address service gaps, as well as the most
pressing issues raised by residents. In the 2015-2020 plan, three areas for improvement were identified: insufficient
support for aging in place, lack of reliable transportation, and walkability for seniors. 

Providing insufficient housing options for seniors to age in place fails to account for the needs of seniors and aging
individuals. This can lead to displacement, economic stress, and social isolation. There were four action items to help
seniors age in place safely: encourage a universal age-friendly design, build awareness of reliable home contractors,
partner with emergency services to check on seniors during inclement weather, and improve understanding of age-
friendly housing options. 

At the time, the lack of a transportation system was identified in community conversations as a barrier to grocery stores
and medical appointments. With limited transportation options, certain groups can be disproportionately disadvantaged:
seniors who can no longer drive, people with disabilities who require accessible options, and individuals without cars or
driver's licenses. The City addressed transportation through four key action items: increasing funding for the senior
transportation program, expanding ridership of the senior bus program, ensuring driving safety, and raising awareness of
affordable transportation options. 

Finally, walkability can be designed without the needs of minority groups in mind, like seniors and those with disabilities.
Walkability for seniors was important to residents and emerged as a key finding in the 2015–2020 Age-Friendly Action
Plan. A few problems that affected walkability were crosswalks not allowing enough time for seniors to cross, and poor
lighting.  To address this, Auburn Hills considered increasing the number of crosswalks and walk times, adding more
signage, installing shaded and well-lit benches, and improving lighting in areas used for evening walking.

Opening up the discussion allows these gaps to be identified and helps find ways to address the residents’ concerns.
The community conversations provide a platform for demographics that may be overlooked in design decisions. The
conversation helps the City of Auburn Hills address these issues, encourages seniors to age in place, and increases the
likelihood of residents staying in the City of Auburn Hills. 

Page 6Age Fr iendly 2025 Act ion Plan

WHY IS AGE-FRIENDLY IMPORTANT?



Page 7Age Fr iendly 2025 Act ion Plan

ACKNOWLEDGEMENTS
Hosting these community conversations required collaboration from many members of the Auburn Hills Community. Our
Age-Friendly Leadership Team has played a crucial role in these outreach events. They have helped plan events, lead
discussions, and gather information from residents. The support from these team members has helped maximize the Age-
Friendly engagement the City has with the community. Committee members include:

Karen Adcock - Director of  Recreation and Senior Services (Co-chair of  Leadership Team)
Steve Cohen - Director of  Community Development (Co-chair of  Leadership Team)
Ramón Harris - AARP Associate State Director
Sadie Shattuck - AARP Communications Analyst
Pauline Beckett - Assistant Director of  Recreation and Senior Services
Jacqueline Monroy Krieg - Age-Friendly Planning Assistant
Pul Ali - Age-Friendly Planning Assistant
Stephanie Carroll - Economic Development Manager
Devin Lang - Assistant Director of  Community Development

The City Council, the Planning Commission, and the Senior Services Department were also crucial to the success of these
Community Conversations. Many members of these groups assisted our leadership team in collecting information from
residents and providing feedback. Due to their efforts, the Age-Friendly Leadership Team was able to provide several
opportunities for residents to share their thoughts and perspectives. The Leadership Team will use this feedback to
improve and identify upcoming needs for our community. We are very appreciative of their strong, consistent support of
these organizations as we move forward in the Age-Friendly Communities Program.

We also would like to thank the following organizations for allowing us to host these Community Conversations in their
facilities:

Avondale High School
The Meadows of Auburn Hills
Meadow Creek Village - National Church Residences

To determine what City programs and services will be needed in the future, it is important to first hear from the individuals
who will be most affected: our residents. We would like to thank all our residents who took the time to sit down with us and
share their vision of an Age-Friendly Community. It is because of your active participation in this program through
community conversations and similar events that we can move forward. Without these efforts, creating an action plan
would not be possible. We look forward to continuing to partner with our residents, local businesses, and non-profits as we
move forward with the implementation and evaluation of our action plan. 



Page 8Age Fr iendly 2025 Act ion Plan

AGE-FRIENDLY AUBURN HILLS

ACTION PLAN DEVELOPMENT

Members of  the AARP Age-Friendly communities are committed to providing older residents in their community with
the opportunity to lead fulfilling, dynamic, and safe lives. During the 2015-2020 Age-Friendly Action Plan, the City of
Auburn Hills identified seven domains of  livability that impact the quality of  life for residents of  all ages: outdoor spaces
and buildings, transportation, housing, community health services, social activities, volunteer and civic engagement,
and communication and information. 

For the 2025-2030 Age-Friendly Action Plan,
the City of Auburn Hills chose to narrow its
focus on two domains of livability and add
another that was identified as important.

Social & Civic Participation

Communication & Information

Public Safety & Emergency Preparedness

PUBLIC SAFETY &
EMERGENCY

PREPAREDNESS

The Action Plan was created from several interactions with residents, including:

Four Community Conversations -  Fall 2023

Two Surveys of  Auburn Hills Residents - Age 50+ Spring 2023

Three Age-Friendly Auburn Hills Action Plan Development Committee Meetings - June 2025 to July 2025

Parks and Recreation Master Plan 2024-2028 Survey Results - July 2022 to August 2022

Interviews with Department Heads - August to October 2024

These community engagement opportunities were selected to provide seniors and the community with an opportunity
to participate and offer their feedback on improvements the City could make. Through these events, the community
identified 15 action items along with steps, resources, obstacles, solutions, possible partners, timeframes, and
indicators of  success. 



The Age-Friendly Auburn Hills Leadership
Team conducted four community
conversations, which involved
approximately 120 residents of all ages.
Each community conversation lasted about
two hours and was held from May 2023
through October 2023. The community
conversations were held in various
locations. Having multiple locations and
dates allowed the Age-Friendly leadership
team to gather feedback from residents in
all parts of the City at their convenience.
Community conversations were advertised
in the Spring/Summer Auburn Hills Review.
Residents could also learn about the
events from flyers posted, social media,
and information posted on the City website. 

During the community conversations, each
participating resident received a booklet
containing the Age-Friendly information,
community conversation questions, and a
post-it note for their “Rock Star Idea”.

Members of  the Age-Friendly leadership
team helped lead discussions. The
questions asked of  participants included:

How do you currently receive your
communications from the City and
surrounding areas?
What have been your experiences in
community life, such as volunteering or
engaging in community organizations?
Do you understand the services that
public safety delivers to the
community?

Members of  the leadership team recorded
the responses to these questions.
Residents shared their “Rock Star Ideas” to
improve their quality of  life in Auburn Hills.
The Age-Friendly planning assistant took
the recorded opinions and organized them
by the appropriate domain of  livability.
Once organized, comments that were
stated repeatedly by residents could be
identified. 

Page 9Age Fr iendly 2025 Act ion Plan

COMMUNITY CONVERSATIONS

AGE-FRIENDLY LEADERSHIP TEAM

The Age-Friendly Auburn Hills Leadership Team is a mix of  City departments and community leaders who volunteer
their time to engage the Auburn Hills community in the Age-Friendly Communities Program. These members
collaborate to increase awareness of  opportunities for residents to share their opinions on age-friendly initiatives. This
committee also oversees the creation and implementation of  the Age-Friendly Auburn Hills Action Plan.   

Karen Adcock - Director of  Recreation and Senior Services (Co-chair of  Leadership Team)
Steve Cohen - Director of  Community Development (Co-chair of  Leadership Team)
Ramón Harris - AARP Associate State Director
Sadie Shattuck - AARP Communications Analyst
Pauline Beckett - Assistant Director of  Recreation and Senior Services
Jacqueline Monroy Krieg - Age-Friendly Planning Assistant
Ali Pul - Age-Friendly Planning Assistant
Stephanie Carroll - Economic Development Manager
Devin Lang - Assistant Director of  Community Development



Page 10Age Fr iendly 2025 Act ion Plan

KEY FINDINGS: COMMUNICATION

ROCK STAR IDEAS!
More communication between communities
More meetings to go over the residents’
concerns
Have one person at each senior community
pass out information
Provide monthly calendars for seniors
An Auburn Hills app with full community
calendar you can add to your calendar
One Central Auburn Hills Phone Number

The website was not age-friendly
For many of Auburn Hills’ older residents, the form in
which they received their information was important.
Many stated that they preferred physical flyers and
posters because they have difficulties accessing or
understanding the internet. Many of the comments
received during the community conversations on the
topic of communication and information centered on the
website. Many residents stated that there needed to be
more up-to-date information on the website, as it took too
many clicks to access the webpage they needed, and
they found the website confusing to navigate. 

To resolve this issue, the City of Auburn Hills has
updated its website to be more user-friendly, requiring
fewer clicks to access necessary web pages and
incorporating more images to enhance the clarity of the
content. This change had been in the works since 2024
and was launched in July 2025. The website is constantly
being updated and revised as comments, critiques, and
suggestions are offered. Additionally, it was suggested
that all PDFs and future editions of the Auburn Hills
Review be made screen-reading friendly for seniors or
those with visual impairments. 

be harder to access that information online and through
the Auburn Hills review if you don’t know where to look.
Participants suggested providing magnets and postcards
with quick, easy-to-access information for seniors. This
could include department phone numbers, important City
dates, meeting times for the City Council, and other key
resources that residents want to have readily available.

Easier access to important information
Having a quick and easy way to access the vital
information that residents need was another topic that
residents deemed important throughout the community
conversations. Many seniors and residents reported
finding it challenging to locate the information they
needed or figure out which questions to ask. Employees
also stated that residents don’t understand where to look
for help online, and it is difficult to route calls from
residents about programs and events done by other
departments. 

Residents also stated that they had different preferred
methods for receiving information. At the time, the City of
Auburn Hills provided information online through its
website, through flyers, and the Auburn Hills Review. For
quick and necessary information, it may 

Language accessibility
During the community conversations, employees and
residents raised concerns about the lack of language
options on the website and the availability of translators
at the City. There are multiple languages spoken
throughout the City of Auburn Hills, with many employees
stating that language barriers between residents and
staff were a challenge. 

In July 2025, the City of Auburn Hills website was
updated to include multiple language options. The update
now translates the website to 11 different languages:

Arabic
Chinese (simplified)
Chinese (traditional)
French
Hindi
German

This improves accessibility and expands the reach of
the information to a broader audience.

Italian
Korean
Portugese
Russian
Spanish



Page 11Age Fr iendly 2025 Act ion Plan

KEY FINDINGS: SOCIAL AND CIVIC
PARTICIPATION

ROCK STAR IDEAS!
More activities with transportation
Senior Picnic Day
Senior Prom for seniors
Community Garden
Sign the Mayor’s Monarch Pledge through the
National Wildlife Federation
Intergenerational Volunteering
Purchase a Swimming Pool

More nature programs
In 2022 and 2024, the Recreation and Senior Services
Department conducted surveys of the City of Auburn
Hills regarding its programs and events. A common
theme throughout the 401 responses that we received
was the lack of nature programs and the lack of a nature
center. The residents asked for various types of  
programs:

Nature photography workshops
Bingo at Hawkwoods
A botanical garden
Yoga in the park
Sustainability classes
Recycling and composting program

The number of requests and the variety of suggestions
indicate that residents have a clear idea of the kinds of
programs they want and are eager to see more of them.
These nature programs can be achieved by partnering
with local nature organizations, the nature departments
of universities and colleges, and volunteers with
experience in nature. These partnerships could help
develop educational workshops, guided hikes, and
hands-on learning projects for all ages. These programs
were requested by residents of all ages and are
designed to promote environmental awareness.

has days when they may not be able to fit any more riders.
Unfortunately, if  there is a program or event on a weekend
or evening, seniors wouldn’t be able to use our bus
program. There are other transportation programs
throughout the City available to seniors for use in events
and programs, such as SMART FLEX, NOTA, and
Neighborhood House. One recommendation was to
increase resident awareness of  these options through
marketing and distribution of  informational magnets. This
may increase participation in city events such as the Friday
Night Concert Series, Summerfest, and Blues and Jazz in
the Park, which currently lack transportation options.

Transportation for events
Throughout the year, the City of Auburn Hills hosts
multiple events, programs, and meetings. Many seniors
throughout the City may lack reliable transportation and
feel compelled to prioritize medical appointments or
choose not to travel at all. The community center offers
transportation through its bus program, which operates
Monday through Friday from 8 am to 3 pm. The bus
program also prioritizes medical appointments and  

Up-to-date information
Residents requested that program and event information be
regularly updated and maintained. Seniors, in particular,
stated that they have difficulty using the internet, making it
even more important that the correct information is
available. Each department is responsible for managing its
respective Facebook page and webpage, and should
ensure that all content shared is accurate and current. This
approach helps prevent the burden from falling on any one
individual while maintaining consistent and current
information.



Page 12Age Fr iendly 2025 Act ion Plan

KEY FINDINGS: PUBLIC SAFETY AND
EMERGENCY PREPAREDNESS 

ROCK STAR IDEAS!
Class on the Next Steps after Housing Food
Emergency
Periodic Practice Fire Drills
Tornado Practice Drill
Self Defense Classes
Provide Quality Safety Information Per
Season
Provide Fire Extinguishers & Emergency
Buttons

In case of emergency
Seniors in independent living were asked, “Do you have
a plan in place in case of an emergency?” and “Are you
worried that hearing, mobility, or visibility issues could be
a problem for you during an emergency?” Many of the
seniors didn’t have a plan, or an updated plan, or feared
that they would do the wrong thing during an emergency.
In the past, seniors recalled participating in fire drills
conducted by the Fire Department, but the program has
not returned for some time. Those with mobility issues
expressed concerns about navigating stairs, those with
visual impairments worried about locating the nearest
exits, and those in independent senior living worried
about what would happen during a prolonged power
outage. 

Throughout the conversation, the seniors showed
interest in receiving information on a wide range of
emergency preparedness topics, including:

What to do in case of a tornado?
What to do in case of a fire?
How to identify different sirens
30-day food supply
Senior housing food emergency

Through partnerships with the Police Department, Fire
Department, and local higher education institutions,
these classes can be offered at little to no cost to seniors,
making this important information more accessible. The
content of these classes can be tailored to suit a variety
of audiences: families, seniors, youth, teens, and college
students, ensuring that each group receives relevant and
age-appropriate information. They also help build a safer
and more prepared community in the event of an
emergency. 

Scam awareness
Scams are on the rise, and with the quick advancement
of artificial intelligence, they have become more
convincing and more challenging to detect. Seniors,
especially, are at risk, but scams affect people
indiscriminately. Many comments throughout the
community conversations brought up the need for scam
awareness and advocates for those who suspect they’re
being scammed. This can be accomplished by simply
having literature available at the community center and
having a staff member available to listen to those in
need. 

Home identification
The Police and Fire Department both stated the lack of
visible home identification on residents’ homes as a
concern during department head interviews. Proper and
visible home identification is essential for emergency
services and response time. In an emergency, first
responders are more likely to overlook a home that lacks
proper identification or visible address markers. An
initiative to address this issue can be led collaboratively
by the community center, code enforcement, and the
police and fire department.



Page 13Age Fr iendly 2025 Act ion Plan

WHERE DO WE GO FROM HERE?

The City of  Auburn Hills is committed to delivering efficient and high-
quality services to its residents and businesses. We aim to create a
healthy and vibrant community where people can live, work, and play.
The City currently provides several resources for our community. Our
transportation services, city events, and public services are just a few
of  the reasons why residents choose to live in Auburn Hills. 

Through partnerships with individuals, organizations, higher education,
and businesses, we strive to enhance the quality of life and create a
community for all ages. As we continue to improve Auburn Hills, we
will identify ways to enhance its livability. Some of the ideas that we
have heard through these community conversations have already
been put into motion. One of these ideas included working on making
the Auburn Hills website more age-friendly. 

There was also a need expressed by residents to provide more
information and education about scams for all ages. Resources from
the Federal Trade Commission have been included in the information
distributed at the community center, and classes in partnership with
the Auburn Hills Police Department will be planned for the upcoming
year.   

These community conversations are just one of  many outreach events
we will host for our community members. We will continue to seek
feedback through focus groups and surveys. The information gathered
at these events was then presented to residents who volunteered to sit
on the Age-Friendly Action Plan Development Committee. This group
met twice to identify what steps the City should take during the next
three years to create a more livable community. 

Again, we would like to thank the many citizens and staff  members
who have supported our commitment to the AARP Age-Friendly
Communities Network. With your help, we can provide a community
that is ideal for all generations to live, work, and play. 

If  you are interested in learning more or participating in this initiative,
please visit our website at www.auburnhills.org or contact the Senior
Services Department at 248-370-9353. 



Domain: Communication & Information
Reorganize the Senior Support Services website to more effectively showcase the resources
available to seniors in Auburn Hills
Better advertise the new resident packet to new Auburn Hills residents
Make the printed newsletter compliant with upcoming ADA laws
Create and circulate magnets with important City information
Include a directory in the newsletter with information on what each department does. Use the
directory for the main phone line to get residents to the right departments

15

16
17
17
18

Domain: Social & Civic Participation
Improve the promotion of  all transportation options
Explore a partnership with higher education between students and older adults to earn college
credits in exchange for chore services
Create a City citizens academy for Auburn Hills residents to meet and understand every department
Explore partnerships with a local school district for a senior swim program
Increase the number of  nature programs
Redesign one of  the current parks to be more inclusive of  different abilities

19
20

21
21
22
23

Domain: Public Safety & Emergency Preparedness
Increase scam education for all ages
Explore an Initiative to improve house identification
Provide emergency preparation classes for Auburn Hills residents
Provide personal safety and self-defense classes for all ages
Create a fillable, tear-out emergency plan worksheet in the newsletter that residents can complete
with their households

24
25

26
27

26

Page 14Age Fr iendly 2025 Act ion Plan

ACTION ITEMS INDEX

Through four community conversations, three community development meetings, and contributions from community
partners, 16 action items were developed and will be implemented over the next five years. The following action
items will be implemented by City departments, with assistance from partners such as Oakland University’s HOP UP
PT program and Rochester Christian University’s nursing students. 



DOMAIN: COMMUNICATION & INFORMATION

Page 15Age Fr iendly 2025 Act ion Plan

The City of  Auburn Hills communicates with residents and business owners in several ways, including the Auburn Hills
Review, Social Media, flyers, the “Inside Auburn Hills” blog, cable channel, a distributed events calendar, and Nixle. Nixle is
a free community notification service that allows Auburn Hills residents to receive alerts from the Police Department
directly on their mobile phones.

The communication and information domain allows Auburn Hills to examine the methods used to connect with residents.
To be considered age-friendly, all information should be easily accessible to residents of  all ages. During the community
conversations with residents, we heard suggestions for more easily accessible information and better advertising of
Auburn Hills services. This highlights the need to find additional ways to share important information with residents and
ensure it's accessible to people of  all ages and backgrounds.

Activities
Create an easily accessible City services directory
Keep the website up-to-date
Create easy-to-find buttons with fewer clicks to get to
the webpage
Separate the resources that are from the Auburn
Hills Community Center and those that are from
other organizations
Make a frequently asked questions page

Timespan
January 2026 - August 2026

Responsible Departments
Senior Services
Community Engagement Department

Resources and Support
Web developer
Senior organizations in the community

Potential Barriers or Resistance
Potential technical issues after the launch of  the
redesign
Whether the redesign will be effective
Staff  time to collect and organize all information

What solutions exist for these obstacles?
Do a test run before the launch of the redesign
Run a focus group with a group of seniors on the
effectiveness of the redesign
Have volunteers compile information

What individuals and organizations should be
informed or involved in these tasks?

Senior Services Department
Information Technology Department
Volunteer groups
Local Senior Organizations

Metrics
Fewer calls from confused seniors
More traffic on the senior services webpage
Increased participation in the senior support
services

REORGANIZE THE SENIOR SUPPORT SERVICES WEBSITE MORE EFFECTIVELY TO
SHOWCASE THE RESOURCES AVAILABLE TO SENIORS IN AUBURN HILLS

ACTION PLAN ITEM #1



Page 16Age Fr iendly 2025 Act ion Plan

BETTER ADVERTISE THE NEW RESIDENT PACKET TO NEW AUBURN HILLS RESIDENTS

Activities
Postcards in the clerk’s/assessor’s office to visit
the community center
Postcards in Realtor’s offices to give to new
residents
Offer a smaller packet at the City hall front desk in
case they don’t want/can’t visit the community
center
Use community organizations to tell residents what
we offer
Educate all employees on the material
Advertise the new resident packet on the website,
Auburn Hills Review, and social media
Inform communities/apartments/HOAs on the new
resident packet

Responsible Departments
Community Center
City Clerks

Timespan
September 2025 - September 2026

Resources and Support
Housing organizations
The new resident packets
List of homeowners with addresses

Potential Barriers or Resistance
Residents not wanting to take the time to travel
to the community center
Budget for printing, advertising, and distributing

What solutions exist for these obstacles?
Provide incentives to increase interest
Include the new resident packet in the new
budget

What individuals and organizations should be
informed or involved in these tasks?

Realtors
Homeowners Associations
City Clerks
Finance Department
Community Center
Local Organizations

Metrics
The number of packets given out
More involvement from new residents at the
community center and events

ACTION PLAN ITEM #2



Page 17Age Fr iendly 2025 Act ion Plan

MAKE THE PRINTED NEWSLETTER COMPLIANT WITH UPCOMING ADA LAWS

Activities
Simplify the Auburn Hills Review verbiage
Make The Review screen-reading-friendly
Redirecting away from PDF to the website for web
reading software
Enlarge the font size

Responsible Departments
Community Engagement Department
All City Departments

Timespan
September 2025 - May 2026

Resources and Support
Web reading software
Time for volunteers and employees to write things in
a compliant manner
Someone who can explain the ADA laws more
thoroughly

Potential Barriers or Resistance
Budget
How to make The Review screen-reading friendly
Not understanding ADA laws

What solutions exist for these obstacles?
Better understand how screen readers work
Someone to explain ADA laws

What individuals and organizations should be
informed or involved in these tasks?

All City Departments
ADA Compliance Offices
Easter Seals MORC

Metrics
Less confusion about the website
More participation
Fewer complaints about the website

CREATE AND CIRCULATE MAGNETS WITH IMPORTANT CITY INFORMATION

Activities
Conduct graphic design with a readable font
Include the magnet in the new resident packet
Distribute with City services, like MOW and Focus
Hope, at events, and during elections

Responsible Departments
Community Engagement Department
All City Departments

Timespan
January 2026 - March 2026

Resources and Support
Time to gather information and design the magnet
Volunteers to hand out magnets at events
Advertising for the magnet

Potential Barriers or Resistance
Budget
Narrowing down the information for the magnet

What solutions exist for these obstacles?
Find a sponsor for the magnet
Survey which departments are called the most often

What individuals and organizations should be
informed or involved in these tasks?

All City Departments
Community Engagement Department
Department of Public Works

Metrics
Increased engagement
Less confused calls
More direct calls

ACTION PLAN ITEM #3

ACTION PLAN ITEM #4



Activities
Work collaboratively with all departments
Put the directory in the shortest Auburn Hills
Review- the winter edition
Use the department descriptions from the budget
guide
Relocate the location of the current directory closer
to the front of The Review
Source the most asked and important questions for
routing purposes
Gather all resources and information for the
directory from each department
Conduct customer service training

Responsible Departments
Community Engagement Department
City Clerks

Timespan
September 2025 - November 2026

Resources and Support
Local print companies
Volunteers to help gather information
Other City departments

Potential Barriers or Resistance
Taking time to gather information
Increase the pages in the review
Departments opposed to having a direct line

What solutions exist for these obstacles?
Departments could gather their information so as
not to fall on one person
The directory could take up half of a page. 
Individuals within the department would not need
to advertise their direct numbers, but each
department would need one direct line

What individuals and organizations should be
informed or involved in these tasks?

City departments
Community Engagement Department
City Clerks

Metrics
Fewer calls directed by the reception desk
Fewer mistaken calls
Increased engagement

Page 18Age Fr iendly 2025 Act ion Plan

INCLUDE A DIRECTORY IN THE NEWSLETTER WITH INFORMATION ON
WHAT EACH DEPARTMENT DOES. USE THE DIRECTORY FOR THE

MAIN PHONE LINE TO GET RESIDENTS TO THE RIGHT DEPARTMENTS

ACTION PLAN ITEM #5



DOMAIN: SOCIAL & CIVIC PARTICIPATION

Activities
Use half-sheet postcards, the Auburn Hills Review,
buck slips, and magnets to share transportation
options
Include information in the new resident packet
Have a separate webpage for transportation
information
Educate drivers to teach riders what their options are

Timespan
June 2026 - December 2026

Responsible Departments
Senior Services
Community Engagement Department

Resources and Support
Printing materials
Education for drivers & staff  on transportation
options
SMART
Local community organizations & partners

Potential Barriers or Resistance
Buck slips would only reach 5,000 out of  11,200
households
Seniors don’t typically get their information online
There is a learning curve when learning how to use
other transportation options

What solutions exist for these obstacles?
Once we run out of buck slips, supplement with
online advertisements- prioritize seniors
Have volunteers pass out transportation information
at senior gatherings
Post videos on where to find information on
transportation, how to call and make an appointment

What individuals and organizations should be
informed or involved in these tasks?

Senior Services Department
Bus riders & drivers
SMART
Local senior organizations
Local senior housing & housing neighborhoods

Metrics
Increased participation in the transportation program
New riders
Ask new riders how they heard about the
transportation program
Less reliance on our buses
Increased participation at city events

Page 19Age Fr iendly 2025 Act ion Plan

The City of  Auburn Hills hosts a variety of  fun and engaging events throughout the year. From our summer concerts, senior
monthly parties, and year-round exercise classes, there is something for every resident of  any age. The Senior Services
Program Developer is responsible for creating programs, classes, activities, travel, and special events for older adults. All
City programs and events can be found in the Auburn Hills Review. All residents receive a print copy of  The Review mailed
to their homes, or they can view it online on the City website. 

The social and civic participation domain emphasized increasing the number of  nature programs and exploring partnerships
with local schools for senior programs. Throughout the Parks and Recreation Master Plan, many residents commented on
the lack of  nature programs and the need to use Hawkwoods Park. In community conversations, we learned that residents
wanted the swim program reinstated, especially following the YMCA's closure. 

IMPROVE THE PROMOTION OF ALL TRANSPORTATION OPTIONS

ACTION PLAN ITEM #6



What solutions exist for these obstacles?
Speak to previous successful chore programs
on how they became sustainable
Partner with local church youth groups to fill in
when students are off
Find grants to buy cleaning supplies when
seniors cannot afford or do not have
Have a cap on the program, then have a
different chore program to recommend to
seniors when the cap is met
Cast a wide net to multiple universities,
colleges, schools, and disciplines to increase
the odds

What individuals and organizations should be
informed or involved in these tasks?

Seniors in assistance programs
Homebound seniors
Caregiving programs
Local universities
Local church youth groups
Other successful chore programs

Metrics
Participation

Page 20Age Fr iendly 2025 Act ion Plan

EXPLORE A PARTNERSHIP WITH HIGHER EDUCATION BETWEEN STUDENTS AND
OLDER ADULTS TO EARN COLLEGE CREDITS IN EXCHANGE FOR CHORE SERVICES

Activities
Research prior successful programs where
students receive credit in partnership
Build relationships with local higher education
institutions
Collaborate with professors to see what programs
would benefit older adults and students
Advertise the program on campus with flyers,
posters, radio, and social media
Conduct background checks on seniors & students
Create a curriculum with the professor and see
how the program can be sustained once the class
ends

Responsible Departments
Senior Services Department

Timespan
January 2026 - June 2027

Resources and Support
Professors
Students
Local Universities
Previous successful chore programs

Potential Barriers or Resistance
Finding a way to make the program sustainable
when the students are not in class
Developing a new program that has never before
been implemented by the City
Budget, buying supplies for chores
Too many seniors are enrolled in the program
compared to students in the class
Finding a university/professor to partner with

ACTION PLAN ITEM #7



Page 21Age Fr iendly 2025 Act ion Plan

CITY CITIZENS ACADEMY FOR AUBURN HILLS RESIDENTS
TO MEET & UNDERSTAND EVERY DEPARTMENT

Activities
Create a program similar to Auburn Hills University
or the Citizens Police Academy for residents
Find sponsors for the meals and t-shirts
Each department would give a presentation

Responsible Departments
Human Resources Department
All City Departments

Timespan
June 2026 - December 2027

Resources and Support
Sponsors
Volunteers to aid with the program

Potential Barriers or Resistance
Time for planning, registration, and implementing
Departments are busy at different times
Cost

What solutions exist for these obstacles?
Allowing staff to flex their time when needed
Bringing in volunteers for planning & implementing
Planning around the department’s schedule
Finding sponsors to supplement costs

What individuals and organizations should be informed
or involved in these tasks?

All City Departments
Auburn Hills merchants
Volunteers

Metrics
Participation
Satisfaction surveys
Return of participants as volunteers

EXPLORE PARTNERSHIPS WITH LOCAL SCHOOL DISTRICT FOR SENIOR SWIM PROGRAM

Activities
Partner with Avondale High School or Oakland
University for an Open Swim Program
Work with volunteers, lifeguards, and swim coaches
to supervise the program
Set regulations for participants to abide by

Responsible Departments
Recreation Department
Senior Department

Timespan
January 2026 - December 2026

Resources and Support
Collaboration with Avondale High School
Collaboration with Oakland University
Volunteers to help monitor the program

Potential Barriers or Resistance
Safety Issues & Liability
Staffing

What solutions exist for these obstacles?
Collaborating with the OU Physical Therapy program
or PT Clinics to teach classes as a final project
Having staff become lifeguard certified
Finding sponsors and volunteers

What individuals and organizations should be
informed or involved in these tasks?

Oakland University & Avondale High School
Local physical therapy clinics or programs
Senior swimming clubs

Metrics
Number of participants
Successful collaborations between senior services
and the pool program

ACTION PLAN ITEM #8

ACTION PLAN ITEM #9



Page 22Age Fr iendly 2025 Act ion Plan

ACTION PLAN ITEM #10
INCREASE THE NUMBER OF NATURE PROGRAMS

Activities
Hire a nature program lead & supportive staff
Bring on volunteers to help with programs
Advertise nature programs
Send a survey to see what kind of programs
residents want to see
Increase budget on nature programs
Partner with nature organizations
Increase accessibility to parks 

Responsible Departments
Recreation Department
Parks Department
Department of Public Works

Timespan
January 2026 - December 2026

Resources and Support
Information in the Parks and Recreation Master Plan
Partner with local school districts
More funding for hiring staff
Volunteers to help with the nature programs
Local nature organizations and education programs
Funding to increase accessibility

Potential Barriers or Resistance
Not enough time for programmers to carry out nature
programs
Not enough staff for nature programs
Not enough enrollments in nature programs

What solutions exist for these obstacles?
Hiring more staff and bringing on volunteers to help
with programs
Partner with local nature education programs to
conduct programs at our location
Bring existing nature programs to the community
center, which would bring new people into the
community center and potentially introduce them to
other programs
Collaborating with other nature programs and
centers to see what works for them

What individuals and organizations should be
informed or involved in these tasks?

Local universities and colleges
Local nature programs
Volunteers
City departments
Nearby nature centers

Metrics
Increased participation in nature programs
Increased participation in youth programs
Increased interest in the parks



Page 23Age Fr iendly 2025 Act ion Plan

ACTION PLAN ITEM #11
REDESIGN ONE OF THE CURRENT PARKS TO BE MORE INCLUSIVE OF DIFFERENT ABILITIES

Activities
Conduct a park assessment with an accessibility
company to develop a plan
Look at rubber compost track as a possible
alternative- easier than woodchips & pavement
Research local parks with accessibility features
Awareness of all ADA requirements
Building the new facilities
Acquiring all necessary certifications
Redesign park access
Improving facility access
Have a ribbon cutting & open the park to the public

Responsible Departments
Recreation Department
Parks Department
Department of Public Works

Timespan
January 2026 - September 2028

Resources and Support
Local, State, and National Grants
Local accessible parks
Accessibility companies and organizations
ADA laws and information
Local design companies
Sponsors

Potential Barriers or Resistance
Budget
Time
Not meeting the expectations of the public
Not meeting proper ADA laws and regulations

What solutions exist for these obstacles?
Finding sponsors for the park
Applying for grants to supplement the budget
Hiring a group to research & design the park
Bringing together a diverse focus group of  different
abilities to get as much public input as possible

What individuals and organizations should be
informed or involved in these tasks?

TUV SUD- Local Auburn Hills design company
State Grants
Oakland University
Local accessibility groups
Nearby City parks
Parks Department
Support Services Department

Metrics
Increased interest in the parks
Increased use by all abilities
Praise from families



DOMAIN: PUBLIC SAFETY & EMERGENCY
PREPAREDNESS

Page 24Age Fr iendly 2025 Act ion Plan

The City of  Auburn Hills provides several public safety services to its residents. The Police Department conducts Safe City,
which is a staff  training program for local churches, schools, and businesses. The Police Department also offers the
Citizens Academy, the Regional Youth Academy, and community events, such as National Night Out. 

The public safety and emergency preparedness domain emphasized the need for education. Throughout the community
conversations, residents expressed a desire for more education on scams, self-defense, and emergency preparedness.
Classes can be held in tandem with local organizations and the Auburn Hills Police Department at the Community Center.
These topics were raised by residents of  all ages and should therefore be made available to everyone, regardless of  age.
Throughout the senior conversations, a common topic was the lack of  information on what to do in case of  an emergency.
Emergency preparedness information can be provided through classes, videos, and an informational worksheet to
encourage people to think about their emergency plans. 

Activities
Send out mailers with the most recent scams
Partner with the Police Department to conduct
education classes
Have resources available when scams are
suspected
Add information to the Auburn Hills website 

Timespan
September 2025 - December 2026

Responsible Departments
Senior Services
Police Department

Resources and Support
Printed information on scams
Video educational material to send
Local organizations

Potential Barriers or Resistance
People may think it’s a boring topic
People believe it won’t happen to them
Scams are constantly changing

What solutions exist for these obstacles?
Bring in stories from a variety of  scam victims
Vary the methods to get information to people
Partner with the Police Department

What individuals and organizations should be
informed or involved in these tasks?

Police Department
AARP
State of MI
Senior Services
Local banks & organizations
Senior living communities

Metrics
Fewer scam reports being made to the Police
Department
More calls asking for help on this issue
Participation in the programs

INCREASE SCAM EDUCATION FOR ALL AGES

ACTION PLAN ITEM #12



Activities
Prioritize enforcement of  City ordinance to require
residents to display a visible house number
Education on the importance of  having these
numbers visible on the house
Partner with contractors to sponsor the purchasing of
reflective house numbers or the attachment of  house
numbers
Apply for a grant to pay for those who cannot
purchase the house numbers themselves
Have SHARP attach the house numbers for seniors
Purchase yard signs for sponsors- put them into yards
where they attach the numbers

Responsible Departments
Senior Services Department
Code Enforcement
Fire Department

Timespan
January 2027 - August 2027

Resources and Support
Local contracting companies
Local home improvement stores
SHARP
Local housing contractors
Grants
Sponsors

Potential Barriers or Resistance
Too much demand/not enough time to attach the
house numbers
Navigating HOA regulations
Dealing with stubborn residents

What solutions exist for these obstacles?
Finding sponsors or grants to pay for the numbers or
the installation
Allowing households to take their numbers and attach
them themselves if  they would like
If  the program has too many enrollees, have the
program repeat the following summer
Reach out to HOAs within the City to get their
guidelines
Explain the importance of  having visible house
numbers- Police and Fire Departments could drive
past in case of  emergency

What individuals and organizations should be
informed or involved in these tasks?

Building Managers
HOAs
Code Enforcement
Police Department
Fire Department
Homeowners
Realtors
Landlords
Department of  Public Works
SHARP

Metrics
Decreased response time for first responders
Survey first responders on efficiency
Easier deliveries for MOW
Number of  participants
Number of  organizations that want to sponsor

Page 25Age Fr iendly 2025 Act ion Plan

ACTION PLAN ITEM #13
INITIATIVE TO IMPROVE HOUSE IDENTIFICATION



Page 26Age Fr iendly 2025 Act ion Plan

PROVIDE EMERGENCY PREPARATION CLASSES FOR AUBURN HILLS RESIDENTS

Activities
Research the most up-to-date information
Facilitate classes with the Police and Fire
Department
Provide classes at the community center with
transportation for seniors

Responsible Departments
Senior Services Department
Police Department
Recreation Department

Timespan
January 2026 - December 2026

Resources and Support
Information on emergency preparedness information
Collaboration with local organizations & volunteers

Potential Barriers or Resistance
Increasing interest in the program 
Budget & Time

What solutions exist for these obstacles?
Offering incentives that align with the class- waterproof
emergency kits, first aid kits, emergency plans, etc.
Apply for federal and state grants 
Find sponsors who could partner for supplies
Split the work between the senior services, police
department, & fire department

What individuals and organizations should be
informed or involved in these tasks?

Police & Fire Department
Auburn Hills residents & families
Local Organizations

Metrics
Enrollment in the program
Satisfaction surveys
Better outcomes during emergencies
Families feel prepared going into emergencies

Activities
Partner with individuals and gyms who can teach these
classes
Have Police talk to residents about personal safety
Find instructors who can teach all ages from youth to
seniors
Plan classes and host them at the community center

Responsible Departments
Recreation Department
Senior Department
Police Department

Timespan
September 2025 - December 2025

Resources and Support
Local instructors and gyms
More funding for hiring instructors
Partnering with local schools & senior housing facilities

Potential Barriers or Resistance
Increasing awareness of the classes
Finding a competent instructor

What solutions exist for these obstacles?
Increasing awareness by sending flyers to schools,
neighborhoods, social media, &  gyms
Researching and taking classes at different centers &
gyms

What individuals and organizations should be
informed or involved in these tasks?

Local universities & schools
Neighborhoods
Local gyms

Metrics
Number of participants
Increased confidence after the class
Return of participants

ACTION PLAN ITEM #14

PROVIDE PERSONAL SAFETY & SELF-DEFENSE CLASSES FOR ALL AGES
ACTION PLAN ITEM #15



Activities
Collaborate with the Police & Fire Department on
what information will go on the emergency plan
worksheet
Collaborate with the Community Engagement
Manager to create the emergency plan worksheet,
which will go inside the newsletter
Find which newsletter the information on the
emergency plan should go into 
Find a sponsor that could cover the cost of the extra
pages

Responsible Departments
Senior Services Department
Police Department
Fire Department
Community Engagement Manager

Timespan
January 2027 - December 2026

Resources and Support
Police Department
Fire Department
Community Engagement Manager
Local home security companies
Local insurance companies
Local printing companies

Potential Barriers or Resistance
Budget
Knowing whether the tear-out is useful
Knowing which information to put into the newsletter

What solutions exist for these obstacles?
Find a sponsor who can cover the cost of  the extra
pages
Do a social media poll after the newsletter is out to
see if people have used it and whether they found it
useful
The information put into the newsletter can change
with the season
Put together a focus group to see what information
people want to know and what information people
don’t know

What individuals and organizations should be
informed or involved in these tasks?

Police Department
Fire Department
Community Engagement Manager
Local home security companies
Local insurance companies
Local printing companies
Families
Homeowners

Metrics
Increased confidence in what to do in case of  an
emergency
Better emergency preparedness
Better safety
Residents interacting with the emergency
preparedness worksheet

Page 27Age Fr iendly 2025 Act ion Plan

ACTION PLAN ITEM #16
CREATE A FILLABLE, TEAR-OUT EMERGENCY PLAN WORKSHEET IN THE

NEWSLETTER THAT RESIDENTS CAN COMPLETE WITH THEIR HOUSEHOLDS



CONTACT US

  

Page 28Age Fr iendly 2025 Act ion Plan

CONCLUSION

AGE-FRIENDLY AUBURN HILLS PARTICIPANTS

As we move into the next phase of the Age-Friendly Communities Program, we are excited to have the opportunity to
make a positive impact on residents of all ages. This plan provides a framework to measure progress over the next five
years and ensure we are actively working to enhance the overall quality of life. 

Thank you to everyone, especially our residents, for helping to make this Action Plan. Your willingness to participate in
the process and have your voice heard is the foundation for all the initiatives that we will be implementing for the next
three years. As we continue to move forward, please do not hesitate to let us know if you have any new ideas by going
to our Age-Friendly webpage at www.auburnhills.org and submitting them in the Rock Star Ideas Comment Box. 

Thank you to all our residents, business partners, and community leaders who contributed to the development of
our Action Plan. With your support, we’ve created a vision for a vibrant, inclusive community that serves all ages. 

City Council Members
Mayor Brian Marzolf
Mayor Pro-Tem Eugene Hawkins, III
Jack D. Ferguson
Dr. Shawanna Fletcher
Henry V. Knight
Kevin McDaniel
Cheryl Verbeke

Tom Tanghe, City Manager
Brandon Skopek, Assistant City Manager

Planning Commission
Greg Ouelette, Chairperson
Sam Beidoun, Vice-Chairperson
Carolyn Shearer, Secretary
Jack Ferguson, City Council Liaison
Darlene MacMillan
Cynthia Pavlich
Raymond Saelens
Dominick Tringali

Business and Non-Profit Participants
AARP - Auburn Hills Chamber of  Commerce - Auburn Hills Rotary Club - Avondale High School - Meadow Creek
Housing, National Church Residences - The Meadows of  Auburn Hills - Oakland University - OPC Social & Activity
Center -  Rochester Christian University Nursing Students

 City of  Auburn Hills- Senior Services Department 
 1827 N. Squirrel Rd. Auburn Hills, MI 48326

Phone: 248-370-9353
Email: ahcommunitycenter@auburnhills.org



Page 29Age Fr iendly 2025 Act ion Plan

ADDITIONAL INFORMATION

For additional information on Age-Friendly Communities, please refer to the resources listed below.

Age-Friendly Action Plan Report- This report presents the results of  the Auburn Hills Action Plan from 2015
to 2020, detailing the execution of  each action item and its corresponding outcomes.
Adcock, K., & Cohen, S. (2021). Age-Friendly Action Plan Report. In Auburn Hills Resources (pp. 1–51). City of
Auburn Hills. https://www.auburnhills.org/resources/?search=age+friendly

Age-Friendly 2015 Action Plan- The 2015–2020 Auburn Hills Action Plan outlines the City’s plan to solve
issues identified during community conversations held in 2014.
Adcock, K., Willett, M., & Cohen, S. (2015). Age-Friendly 2015 Action Plan. In K. Kafantaris, S. Keenan, K. Marsh, B. Pierce, D.
Olko, D. Keiser, K. Novak, D. Bright, S. Carroll, D. Grice, S. Maruiz, & S. McCoy (Eds.), Auburn Hills Resources (pp. 1–35).
City of Auburn Hills. https://www.auburnhills.org/resources/?search=age+friendly

Age Friendly Auburn Hills Executive Summary and Survey Results- This report compiles and analyzes
the results of  the 2014 Age-Friendly Survey.
City of Auburn Hills. (2014). Age Friendly Auburn Hills Executive Summary and Survey Results. In Auburn Hills Resources (pp.
1–74). City of Auburn Hills. City of Auburn Hills

Ten Questions Concerning Age-Friendly Cities and Communities and the Built Environment- This
journal article provides an overview of  the Age-Friendly Cities movement, including its historical development,
assessment tools, and future perspectives.
Hoof, J. van, Marston, H. R., Kazak, J. K., & Buffel, T. (2021). Ten questions concerning age-friendly cities and communities
and the built environment. Building and Environment, 199(0360-1323). ScienceDirect.
https://www.sciencedirect.com/science/article/pii/S0360132321003267#fig5

Age-Friendly Auburn Hills, Michigan- AARP published an article highlighting Auburn Hills’ approach to
becoming an Age-Friendly community, outlining key accomplishments and future steps.
Goehner, A. (2021, December). Age-Friendly Auburn Hills, Michigan. AARP Livable Communities; AARP.
https://www.aarp.org/livable-communities/network-age-friendly-communities/info-2021/community-profile-age-friendly-
auburn-hills-michigan.html

City of Auburn Hills Community Profile- Population data on Auburn Hills based on the 2020 Census.
Southeast Michigan Council of Governments. (2020). City of Auburn Hills Community Profile. Community Profiles; SEMCOG.
https://www.semcog.org/data-and-maps/community-profiles/communities=2220

A Protocol for Capacity Building Using a Community-Based Participatory Research Approach- This
article applies a Community-Based Participatory Research (CBPR) approach to gain insights into the
development of  age-friendly communities.
McIntosh,B., Adcock, K., Bruder, R., Collins, J., Ellison, C., Nold, R. (2025). A Protocol for Capacity Building Using a
Community-Based Participatory Research Approach. 



1 
 

 
City of Auburn Hills 

Planning Commission 
 

Annual Report 
June 1, 2024 - May 31, 2025 

 

 
Under the Michigan Planning Enabling Act, PA 33 of 2008, the Planning Commission is required to 
provide an annual report to the City Council.  This report is intended to coincide with the City Council’s 
review of the City budget.     
 
This report discusses the following topics: 

1. Summary of the Commission’s operations during the past 12 months 
2. The status of any ongoing planning activities 
3. Recommendations to the City Council related to planning/development and funding 

 
Commission Operations   
The Commission is governed by the Michigan Planning Enabling Act and the City’s Zoning Ordinance.  
During the 12 months starting on June 1, 2024, and ending on May 31, 2025, the Commission’s 
membership was as follows:   
 

Greg Ouellette, Chairperson  
Sam Beidoun, Vice-Chairperson 
Laura Ochs, Secretary (until January 2025) 
Carolyn Shearer, Secretary 
Jack Ferguson, City Council Liaison  
 

Chauncey Hitchcock (until June 2024) 
Darlene MacMillian (appointed July 2024) 
Cynthia Pavlich 
Raymond Saelens  
Dominick Tringali 

 
 
During this period, the Commission held eight meetings, and recommendations were made to the City 
Council on 16 development-related items. 

 

 
 

Measurable Y2015  
-2016 

Y2016 
-2017 

Y2017 
-2018 

Y2018 
-2019 

Y2019 
-2020 

Y2020 
-2021 

Y2021 
-2022 

Y2022 
-2023 

Y2023 -
2024 

Y2024 -
2025 

Meetings 14 13 11 11 9 7 6 9 9 8 
 

Site Plans 10 17 12 12 10 3 7 7 5 4 
Special Land Use Permits 8 11 7 8 9 4 11 5 9 5 
Tree Removal Permits 6 7 11 13 9 1 4 10 7 3 
Planned Unit Developments 4 5 6 6 4 3 1 7 3 1 
Rezonings 3 4 4 5 0 1 0 1 1 1 
Master Plan Amendments 1 1 1 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 
Text Amendments 2 4 1 2 1 1 1 1 1 2 
Private Road 0 0 0 0 0 1 1 0 0 0 
Total Projects 34 49 42 46 33 14 25 31 26 16 

DRAFT 
Adopted by the Planning 
Commission on ________ 



2 
 

Professional Planning Support Staff 
Steve Cohen, Director of Community Development, provides primary staff support to the Planning 
Commission.  Mr. Cohen has served the Commission since October 4, 1999.  He is certified as a 
professional planner (AICP) with the American Planning Association.  He holds a Bachelor's and 
Master's in Urban and Regional Planning from Michigan State University.  
 
Devin Lang, Assistant Director of Community Development, has assisted Mr. Cohen with providing staff 
support to the Planning Commission since November 16, 2023. Among other duties, Mr. Lang oversees 
the implementation of private construction projects and ensures that permits approved by the City are 
adhered to. He has a Bachelor of Science in Fisheries and Wildlife from Michigan State University and 
is currently pursuing a Master of Public Administration from Purdue Global University. 
 
Notable Planning Commission Actions 
A. Development Applications  

Notable projects reviewed by the Commission were the following:  
 
1. The Learning Experience - $3.5 million investment 

Request to construct a 10,000-square-foot childcare facility with an exterior playground for The 
Learning Experience at 2635 N. Squirrel Road. The Five Points Community Church currently 
owns the property, which is the location of its former parsonage. The 2.13-acre parcel is zoned 
B-2, General Business District 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

2. Oakland Christian School – Parking Expansion - $800,000 investment 
Request to construct an additional 93 parking spaces (net 79 parking spaces) and a parent pick-
up/drop-off loop at 3075 Shimmons Road. The 2.16-acre impacted area is zoned R-1A, One-
Family Residential District. The new parking area at the school’s primary entrance will expand 
the facility's overall parking capacity from 194 to 273 spaces.  
 
The project originated from an agreement between the City of Auburn Hills and the OCS to 
exchange land, enabling the realignment of the Shimmons Road curve. This concept had been 
envisioned and discussed between the parties for over a decade.  The road redesign improved 
sight lines and safety in the area by creating a softer curve, along with an extended sidewalk in 
the vicinity. 

Rendering of the building and site viewed from northbound N. Squirrel Road 



3 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 

3. Wescast Industries, Inc. - $11.9 million investment  
A request from Wescast Industries, Inc. (Wescast) to conduct a light industrial activity, in 
addition to administrative functions, at the vacant building located at 3300 University Drive.  
The building, formerly the home of GKN Automotive, is 127,655 square feet in size.  The 
property is situated at the southwest corner of University Drive and Seyburn Drive, just west of 
the Auburn Hills Civic Center Campus.  The site is zoned T&R, Technology and Research District.  
Wescast obtained a similar Special Land Use Permit from the City Council on November 27, 
2017, for this location; however, it did not move forward at that time.  

 
 
 
 

  

Illustrated Site Plan 

Photos of the building 3300 University Drive 



4 
 

4. Alo’s Sports Bar – 3315 Auburn Road - $1.5 million investment 
Request for approval to conduct a restaurant operation with outdoor seating at the vacant 
6,371 square feet building at 3315 Auburn Road.  The property is located at the northeast corner 
of Auburn Road and Parkways Boulevard and is zoned D, Downtown District.  Alo’s proposes 
enlarging the existing outdoor seating area and making significant façade and interior 
improvements to the building.   
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

5. 975 South Opdyke Self Storage Redevelopment PUD - $8.5 million investment 
Request to construct a 45,032-square-foot addition to the existing building located at the 
northeast corner of S. Opdyke Road and South Boulevard.  The expanded building will have a 
total size of 149,865 square feet.  The 13.37-acre site is zoned T&R, Technology and Research 
District.  The new addition and part of the existing building, totaling 107,613 square feet, will 
be developed as a 702-unit, indoor, climate-controlled self-storage facility.  The north 42,252 
square feet of the building will continue to house automotive supplier Pierburg US LLC, which 
has been a tenant since 2008. 
 
 
 
 
 

  

Bird’s Eye Rendering of the Proposed Building and Outdoor Seating 

Bird’s eye view rendering of the building addition 



5 
 

6. Chillbox Corporate Headquarters – 3378 E. Walton Boulevard – $2 million investment (in 
addition to the purchase price of the land and building) 
Request to repurpose the former North Oakland Family YMCA recreational facility at 3378 E. 
Walton Boulevard into a corporate office building for its subsidiary Chillbox Convenience Stores, 
along with an ancillary café and associated outdoor seating. The 61,756-square-foot building 
has been unoccupied since October 6, 2020. 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
B. Text Amendments to the Zoning Ordinance 

Two formal text amendments addressed the four items below: 
1. Updates to the City’s zoning standards in preparation for the site plan submittal of the planned 

extension of the municipal parking structure in Downtown Auburn Hills, which is anticipated to 
begin construction in Spring/Summer 2026. 

2. Requiring off-street parking for new residential dwelling units in the Downtown based on the 
recommendations of the February 2024 Downtown Parking Study conducted by Rich & 
Associates Parking Consultants. 

3. Amending the Planned Unit Development Option (PUD) standards to tighten up and clarify the 
expiration time frames for new projects.  With this amendment, PUD projects would have one 
year to begin construction and 18 months to complete after construction commences, unless 
the City Council approves a more extended construction period.  Additionally, the subsection 
relating to PUD plan amendments has been updated to reflect how minor and material 
amendments have historically been addressed in Development Agreements drafted by the City. 

4. Revision to give the City Council complete control and discretion over approving multi-family 
residential developments in the T&R District.   Before the amendment, multi-family residential 
dwellings were permitted on sites exceeding 10 acres in size, provided a Special Land Use Permit 
was obtained. This amendment now allows the City Council to consider and potentially allow 
housing proposals, with a preference toward owner-occupied condominiums, via the Planned 
Unit Development Option in the T&R District on a case-by-case basis.  

A recent photo of the building from the parking lot adjacent to Walton Boulevard 



6 
 

C. Green Infrastructure Vision Map 
The Planning Commission collaborated with 
staff and representatives from Oakland 
County to identify undeveloped and 
underutilized areas of the City that hold 
ecological and cultural significance for 
Auburn Hills citizens.  Data and input from 
the Planning Commission’s September 11, 
2024 workshop were mapped by Oakland 
County.   
 
Staff will integrate this information as a 
referenced document of the City’s Master 
Land Use Plan.  This information will help 
staff communicate the community's 
expectations and desires during the early 
stages of development.  This will ensure that 
Auburn Hills receives the highest quality 
development proposal, providing maximum 
benefit to the City. 
 
 

D. Approval of the Revised Architectural Design Policy 
The Planning Commission asked staff to revisit the City’s Architectural Design Policy to confirm that 
it still conforms with the community's desire “to promote architectural design that is harmonious 
with adjacent structures and sensitive to the natural environment.”  The policy was adopted initially 
over 22 years ago.  It is noted that no single architectural style is mandated within the City by the 
policy, consistent with the State enabling act and case law.   
 
With the assistance of Planning Commissioner and architect Dominick Tringali, as well as input from 
other Planning Commissioners, the policy statement was updated and approved, incorporating 
revisions and clarifications based on current practices and improvements in construction industry 
standards.  
 
Generally, the revised policy statement now: 
1. Expressly allows decorative metal panels and fiber cement materials on building facades. 
2. Better explains how and where E.I.F.S. material may be used on a building. 
3. Allows the staining of building materials following best practices and upon staff approval. 
4. Explains that when an applicant is considering roof forms, it is recommended that the 

architecture of surrounding buildings be considered, and rooflines of new buildings should 
incorporate changes and variations to create and enhance interest. 

5. Better outlines expectations for architecture, including “four-sided architecture” and the 
massing of a building when viewed from all sides. 

6. Details the reasons why the policy statement was created and that the City Council has 
authorized staff to communicate the expectations of City leaders to ensure an acceptable 
architectural design is implemented. 

 



7 
 

E. City of Auburn Hills 2025 Residential Build-Out Analysis and Future Growth Study 
Mr. Cohen presented the City of Auburn Hills 2025 Residential Build-Out Analysis and Future Growth 
Study at the Planning Commission’s February 5, 2025 meeting.  He explained potential future build-
out scenarios based on the current zoning and master land use plan. The study divided the City’s 
residential areas into 12 sections and showed the existing and projected unit counts for each 
section.   
 
In general, the residential build-out analysis showed the following: 
1. Auburn Hills is approaching build-out in its residential districts. 
2. Auburn Hills has a highly diverse housing stock in terms of product and price points, with a 

heavy emphasis on attached units and rental products.   
3. Auburn Hills has no “easy” greenfield development sites left. Most new developments 

proposed over the next 25 years will be complicated infill projects.   
4. The primary locations left to add owner-occupied detached single-family homes are the 

Northwest and Northeast Corners of the City. The study shows that an approximate net of 543 
new detached single-family homes could be built on the remaining residential-zoned land in 
Auburn Hills (about 1,152 people). These new units are projected to be in small infill 
developments or on existing vacant homesites. Thus, if the City wishes to increase 
homeownership, it will need to occur via attached-unit condominium projects. 

5. If Auburn Hills’ leaders desire to grow the City’s population beyond the projected 28,323 
people, private housing investment will need to occur in non-residential areas.  

 
Mr. Cohen explained that the analysis showed that the City has 11,639 housing units, with an 
estimated population of 24,675.  It is projected that the City could add approximately 1,725 
housing units at build-out, resulting in a population increase of roughly 3,657 people. It is noted 
that these estimates primarily focused on existing residential areas and did not address potential 
residential conversions of hotels or office buildings in the T&R District. The City may add additional 
housing units through commercial conversions; however, these uses are not permitted by right 
and will be implemented via the Planned Unit Development option at the sole discretion of the 
Planning Commission and City Council. This study is the basis for the City’s new Housing Policy 
Statement.  
 
After reviewing Mr. Cohen’s analysis, the Planning Commission decided to generally maintain the 
Master Land Use Plan and zoning as currently adopted, in terms of land use classifications.  Mr. 
Cohen stated that he would formally initiate an update to the City’s Master Land Use Plan, as per 
the Michigan Planning Enabling Act, which was last updated in 2018. This update would enable 
the Planning Commission to make minor editorial changes to the document, facilitating the 
completion of the process by 2025/2026. 

 
F. City of Auburn Hills Housing Policy Statement 

Mr. Cohen presented a draft Housing Policy Statement at the Planning Commission’s February 5, 
2025 meeting. In December 2024, the Planning Commission asked staff to review the City’s existing 
housing stock and draft a housing policy statement in response to a recent amendment to the 
Michigan Planning Enabling Act. Governor Whitmer, on November 13, 2024, signed HB 5557 to 
amend the Michigan Planning Enabling Act to expressly include housing as a core provision of a 
master plan, with an emphasis on promoting a range of housing types and including assessments 
and policies for addressing those demands. 



8 
 

 
Mr. Cohen explained that a housing policy statement is necessary to demonstrate compliance with 
State law and outline how Auburn Hills’ Master Land Use Plan and Zoning Ordinance support “a 
range of housing types, costs, affordability, attainability, ages, and other characteristics, including 
single and multiple-family dwellings to serve the housing demands of a diverse population.”  Mr. 
Cohen explained that the City’s analysis demonstrates an approximate 50/50 mix of owner-
occupied and for-rent properties. He explained that the policy outlines the City’s diverse housing 
types and demonstrates compliance with the intent of the State law.  
 
As a result, the Planning Commission adopted the following goals of the housing policy statement: 
1. Increase Opportunities for Homeownership 

As a formal policy of the City, as the community nears the build-out of its housing stock, it 
desires to continue to promote and increase detached and attached single-family owner-
occupied housing to the greatest extent possible.  Homeownership is believed to keep residents 
rooted in the community; however, due to various geographic and economic factors, Auburn 
Hills has historically permitted ample multi-family rental housing developments. Compared to 
the City’s overall housing stock, this high number of rental units has resulted in a much more 
transient population than other communities in the region.   The residential build-out analysis 
identifies eight potential locations (three of which are currently under construction), where 
approximately 415 apartment units could be added.  Rental products at those locations are not 
permitted by right and would require City Council approval via the Planned Unit Development 
Option.   Thus, implementation and authorization to develop a rental product will be at the full 
discretion of the City Council, determined on a case-by-case basis.  To comply with this policy, 
the remaining potential housing units envisioned in the City’s analysis, detached or attached, 
must be developed as single-family owner-occupied units.    
 

2. Preserve the Character of Established Large-Lot Neighborhoods 
Auburn Hills leaders aim to preserve and protect the City’s established large-lot neighborhoods, 
maintaining their spacious rural character, fabric, and sense of community.  Since 2000, several 
neighborhood master plan studies and zoning changes have been implemented to prevent 
developments that could significantly alter the identities of these areas and disrupt the quality 
of life of their residents.  The City hosts parcels of various sizes with homes of all types in 
neighborhoods ranging from urban/high-density to rural. Thus, the City's goal is to maintain 
some of its historical character and retain the established, rural atmosphere of large-lot 
neighborhoods. 
 

3. Consider Population Growth in Non-Residential Areas Where Appropriate 
The residential build-out analysis contemplates housing growth on a select few commercial and 
industrial properties, but no existing hotel or T&R district-zoned parcel was shown as a potential 
housing growth opportunity.  The City has received inquiries in recent years regarding the 
conversion of underutilized hotels, office buildings, and their associated parking areas to create 
new rental housing/apartments.  The City’s Zoning Ordinance does not permit housing products 
within the T&R District by right, and the City prefers that these properties be used for non-
residential purposes.  The same is true for hotel properties in the B-2 and T&R Districts.  Thus, 
implementation and authorization for a hotel or T&R District property to be redeveloped with 
housing products will be at the full discretion of the City Council via the Planned Unit 
Development Option, determined on a case-by-case basis, with a strong preference toward 
detached single-family homes or attached owner-occupied condominiums being offered 



9 
 

 
The Planning Commission agreed that the data and analysis provided support the finding that the 
City currently hosts an adequate range of housing types, costs, affordability, attainability, ages, and 
other characteristics, including single—and multiple-family dwellings, to serve the housing 
demands of its diverse population.  
 

Support Staff Training  
Steve Cohen participated in several training opportunities in 2024 and 2025 to further advance his 
skills. AICP planners, such as Mr. Cohen, are required to obtain professional development training to 
maintain their credentials.  AICP planners must earn at least 32 Certification Maintenance (CM) credits 
(1 hour = 1 CM credit) within a designated two-year reporting period.   A minimum of 1.0 credits must 
be on planning law, sustainability and resilience, ethics, and equity.  Mr. Cohen has earned 48.50 CM 
credits thus far for the current reporting period of January 1, 2024 and December 31, 2025, and has 
fulfilled his required educational credits.  Devin Lang attended the Michigan Chapter of the American 
Planning Association Conference in Grand Rapids from September 25-27, 2024.  
 
Commission Training  
Training is a high priority for the Planning Commission and City Council.  Members face an enormous 
responsibility to help guide the community's physical development.   Poor decisions could lead the City 
into costly litigation.  The Planning Commission has benefited greatly over the years from training, 
whether for new members who want to learn about planning or veteran members who need to keep 
up to date with changes in the law and planning practices.  This proactive Planning Commissioner 
training program, combined with a well-trained staff. This record of accomplishment has enabled the 
City to lower its general liability insurance rates over the years, resulting in savings for taxpayers.   
 
Members Sam Beidoun, Jack Ferguson, and Darlene MacMillan attended the Michigan Chapter of the 
American Planning Association Conference in Grand Rapids from September 25-27, 2024.  Jack 
Ferguson also participated in a MAP seminar on managing risk. 
 
Planning Commission Terms and Attendance Records 
During this reporting period, the Planning Commission held eight regularly scheduled meetings and no 
special meetings. The table below outlines each member's term and attendance record. 
 

 
Name 

Term  
Endings 

Regular 
Meetings 

Percent 
Attended 

Greg Ouellette July 2027 8 / 8 100% 
Sam Beidoun July 2026 7 / 8 88% 
Laura Ochs July 2026 4 / 5 80% 
Jack Ferguson Nov. 2025 8 / 8 100% 
Chauncey Hitchcock July 2024 1 / 1 100% 
Darlene MacMillian July 2027 7 / 7 100% 
Cynthia Pavlich July 2025 8 / 8 100% 
Raymond Saelens July 2027 7 / 8 88% 
Carolyn Shearer July 2025 7 / 8 88% 
Dominick Tringali July 2025 6 / 8 75% 

 



10 
 

Woodlands Preservation Ordinance – City’s Tree Fund 
There were no payments into the City’s Tree Fund during this reporting period.  As of the date of this 
report, the balance of the fund was $846,433. 
 
Planned Unit Development Option – Financial Contributions for Public Purposes 
There were no financial contributions for public purposes during this reporting period. 
 
Planning Activities Per City Council’s Y2025/2026 Strategic Goals & Objectives 
1. Explore options for industrial redevelopment within the community. 
2. Continue to foster development along the M-24/Opdyke Road Corridor. 
3. Focus redevelopment efforts on TIFA, city-owned, and private properties. 
4. Continue to keep Auburn Hills friendly and livable for all ages and abilities.  
5. Pursue redevelopment opportunities and incentivizing redevelopment; plan for potential changes 

with existing commercial properties 
6. Explore opportunities for repurposing hotels  
7. Leverage to the greatest degree our natural resources, parks, pathways, and waterways 
 
Commission Recommendations to City Council   
The Commission respectfully recommends that the City Council ensure that the Y2025 and Y2026 City 
of Auburn Hills Budgets allow for the following items:   
1. Continued staff support from Steve Cohen, Devin Lang, and the City’s Administrative Development 

Review Team   
2. Funding for planning activities (e.g., citizen participation, maps, printing, technical research, Master 

Plan and Zoning Ordinances updates, etc.)   
3. Funding for educational materials, technical training, and conferences for Planning Commission 

members and City staff. 
 



Planning Michigan Conference
  

Early Bird Registration Open | Regular registration rate of $490 begins on September 12th.  Late
Registration ($25 increase) begins on October 13th.

Full Conference Rates:

Member Rate: $440  | Student Member rate $80 | Non-Member Rate $515

Register Now  Conference Agenda 

Planning Michigan Conference 2025 will take place
in Kalamazoo at the Kalamazoo Radisson October
22-24, 2025.

The Michigan Association of Planning's Planning Michigan Conference Committee is currently identifying
keynote speakers and sessions for our upcoming Annual Conference. Details soon!

Overnight rooms at the Kalamazoo Radisson are $185/night, parking for overnight guests is $10 per
night.  Check in time is 4 p.m. and check out is prior to noon.  

A 4% Kalamazoo County Event and Convention Assessment District (KCECAD) Assessment will be
applied to all guest stays. This new assessment is separate from the existing 5% Occupancy Tax and
6% Michigan Sales Tax.

7/28/25, 8:13 AM Planning Michigan Conference

https://associationdatabase.com/aws/MAP/pt/sp/michigan-conference 1/2

https://associationdatabase.com/aws/MAP/pt/sp/home_page
https://associationdatabase.com/aws/MAP/pt/sp/home_page
https://www.planningmi.org/aws/MAP/registration/add_registrations_prompt?event_id=83733&host=retain
https://whova.com/embedded/event/469OfvkLkmCrbuT2lIbs9XYrPDo4kNVP9L4plxF02B4%3D/?utc_source=ems


Event Agenda
2025 Planning Michigan Conference

Wednesday, October 22, 2025

10:00 AM - 11:00 AM Small City, Big Brownfield!
Speakers: David Stegink, Trudy Galla, FAICP ; Moderators: William Schutt, AICP

10:00 AM - 11:00 AM Underwriting the Unknown: How Better Financial Review Can Improve Housing Outcomes
Speaker: Jamie McCarthy

10:00 AM - 11:00 AM TBA

11:00 AM - 1:00 PM Lunch on Your Own

1:00 PM - 2:00 PM Exercising and Defending Tribal Sovereignty in Planning and Land Use (1 CM)
Speakers: Nat Spurr, Chris Rogers, Lynn TenBrink ; Moderators: Harmony Fierke-Gmazel, AICP

1:00 PM - 2:00 PM Good Intentions Lead To…? (MAP Board Session Part 1)
Speakers: Suzanne Schulz, FAICP, Jaclyn Walker, JD

1:00 PM - 2:00 PM TBA

1:00 PM - 3:30 PM Kalamazoo through the Eras Downtown Walking Tour - $20
Speaker: Luis Pena

1:00 PM - 3:30 PM Public Art and Placemaking in Kalamazoo Walking Tour - $20
Speakers: Kim Shaw, Rebekah Kik

2:15 PM - 3:30 PM Where Traffic Meets the Bay: A Vision for East Bay Beach
Speakers: Claire Karner, AICP, Sara Kopriva, AICP

2:15 PM - 3:30 PM MAP Board Advances Planning-focused, Capacity-enhancing Future (MAP Board Session
Part 2)
Speakers: Christina Anderson, AICP, Jill Bahm, AICP, Michigan Association of Regions Board Representative

2:15 PM - 3:30 PM A Model for Community Solar
Speakers: Valerie Brader, JD, Joel Howrani Heeres, AICP

3:45 PM - 5:00 PM General Session

5:00 PM - 6:00 PM Planning Michigan Reception

6:00 PM - 8:00 PM [RSVP Required] Awards Dinner

6:30 PM - 9:30 PM [RSVP Required] Michigan Black Professional Planners Reception

Thursday, October 23, 2025

8:30 AM - 9:45 AM Welcome Opening Keynote: On the Move: The Overheating Earth and the Uprooting of
America
Speaker: Abrahm Lustgarten

10:00 AM - 11:15 AM Navigating Law in Planning Practice: Know the Line (1 CM)
Speakers: Emily Palacios, JD, Catherine Kaufman, JD, AICP



10:00 AM - 11:15 AM Michigan Black Professional Planners Session: The Strength Within: Exploring Resilience in
the Black Community
Speakers: Toccarra Nicole Thomas, AICP, Mattie Jordan Woods, Dr. Alaina Jackson

10:00 AM - 11:15 AM Reconnecting a Community: Lessons from the I-75 Cap Project
Speakers: Rebeka Rooks, AICP, Issac Douglas, Catherine Clarke

10:00 AM - 11:15 AM Something in Return: Get the Most Out of Planned Unit Development
Speakers: Joe Tangari, AICP, Erik Perdonik, AICP, Andy Aamodt

10:00 AM - 12:30 PM Stuart Neighborhood: Reckoning with the Legacy of Past Decisions Walking Tour - $20

11:30 AM - 12:30 PM The Changing Role of Planning: Host Community Agreements and Decommissioning
Policies
Speakers: Rex LaMore, PhD, Henry Jerred

11:30 AM - 12:30 PM Communicating through Conflict
Speaker: Tyler Augst

11:30 AM - 12:30 PM Finding Your Path: Storytelling Your Career
Speakers: Danielle Bouchard, AICP, Julia Upfal, AICP, Corey Christensen, AICP, Hillary Taylor

11:30 AM - 12:30 PM The Planning Translator: Demystifying Government to Empower Better Planning
Speakers: Dominique D. Boyer, AICP Candidate, Shelby Wyche, MUP

12:30 PM - 2:00 PM Luncheon Keynote: The Growth Equation: Housing + Equity = Future-Proof Cities
Speaker: Toccarra Nicole Thomas, AICP

2:15 PM - 3:30 PM Hit Refresh: Optimize the Performance of your Boards and Commissions
Speakers: Caitlyn Habben, AICP, Adam Young, AICP

2:15 PM - 3:30 PM Beyond the Master Plan: Vision, Process, and Projects for Small Geographies
Speakers: Christopher Khorey, AICP, Dr. Har Ye Kan, AICP, James McManus, AICP, Kacey Dominguez, Paige
Brodeur

2:15 PM - 3:30 PM From Blueprint to Impact: Revitalizing Neighborhoods with Permit-Ready Plans
Speakers: Dan Leonard, Jen Tucker

2:15 PM - 3:30 PM Not Your Grandpa's Parking Study: Innovation in Parking Standards
Speakers: Kayla Mauldin, AICP, PMP, Jake Parcell, PhD ; Moderators: Cassi Meitl, AICP, PMP

2:30 PM - 3:00 PM The Hub - Every Planner is a Leader: Understanding and Strengthening Your Style
Speaker: Jill Bahm, AICP

3:10 PM - 3:40 PM The Hub - Transitioning into Planning: Tips and Pitfalls for New and Non-Traditional
Planners
Speakers: Colton Hyble, Jack Grice

3:45 PM - 5:00 PM Bicycle Futurism: What Happens when Two Wheels meet Tomorrow’s Tech?
Speakers: Mariel Colman, PE, AICP, Paul Lippens, AICP

3:45 PM - 5:00 PM Michigan Innovations
Speakers: Brent Savidant, AICP, Madeleine Krol, Marion Bonneaux, Nathan Mehmed, AICP, Theresa Waldo

3:45 PM - 5:00 PM How to Streamline the Development Review Process
Speakers: Michelle Marin, AICP, Megan Minnock, AICP

3:45 PM - 5:00 PM Trial by Fire: Learning Zoning & Planning From the Witness Stand (1.25 CM)
Speakers: Andy Moore, AICP, Christopher Patterson, Eric Conn



3:50 PM - 4:20 PM The Hub - AICP Questions Answered
Speaker: Andy Larsen

Friday, October 24, 2025

8:30 AM - 9:45 AM Mapping the Message: Using GIS to Communicate Planning Priorities
Speakers: Chris McLeod, AICP, Doreen Groth

8:30 AM - 9:45 AM Using the CNU Approach for Housing Success
Speakers: Adam Cook, Jocelyn Gibson, MCP, Mark Nickita, FAIA

8:30 AM - 9:45 AM Beyond Cost-Burdened: A New Lens on Housing Affordability
Speaker: Ben Honeyford

8:30 AM - 9:45 AM Connecting with the Unrepresented: Community Engagement in a Post-Covid Era
Speakers: Holly Madill, AICP, John Martin, Zeenat Kotval Karamchandani, AICP

10:00 AM - 11:15 AM Community First: Northeast Flint’s Choice Neighborhood Story
Speakers: Soumi Basu, AICP, Jason Borror, Dequan Allen

10:00 AM - 11:15 AM Getting The Most From "Good" AI
Speaker: Dennis A. Randolph, PE

10:00 AM - 11:15 AM Solving Family Homelessness through Adaptive Reuse and Congregational Partnerships
Speakers: Jim Davis, Bill Hardiman

11:30 AM - 12:45 PM Michigan Black Professional Planners Annual Meeting

11:30 AM - 12:45 PM Planners in Private Practice Annual Meeting


	AGENDA
	4. APPROVAL OF MINUTES
	May 7, 2025 Planning Commission Meeting Minutes

	5. PETITIONERS
	5a. Brose Parking Lot Addition
	MOTION
	Development Application
	Letter from the Applicant

	Public Notice
	OHM Engineering Review Letter
	Police Review Letter
	Fire Review Letter
	Woodlands Review Letter
	SITE PLAN (17 SHEETS)
	Cover Sheet
	Topography / Existing Condition
	Tree Survey
	Dimensional Site Plan
	Overall Site and Restriping Plan
	Engineering Plan
	Stormwater Management Analysis
	Soil Erosion Plan
	Details (6 sheets)
	Landscape Plan
	Woodland Preservation Plan
	Woodland Preservation Tree List



	7. NEW BUSINESS
	7a. Age-Friendly Auburn Hills Y2025-2030 Action Plan
	7b. Y2024-2025 Auburn Hills Planning Commission Annual Report

	8. COMMUNICATIONS
	Planning Michigan Conference
	Agenda - October 22-24, 2025





